SO Q Application, Transcript, Small Exhibits, Etc. pplication poration: Devonian Jake 80-acre Pool Hamon and

### BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CASE NO. 719

APPLICATION OF JAKE L. HAMON AND WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION FOR APPROVAL OF 80-ACRE SPACING AND METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION OF ALLOWABLE IN THE SOUTHEAST KNOWLES AREA, LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, COM-PRISING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LANDS, TO-WIT:

> T. 17 S., R. 38 E. Section 12:  $E_2^{\pm}$ ,  $SW_4^{\pm}$ Section 13: All Section 24: All

T. 17 S., R. 39 E. Section 7: W<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> Section 18: W<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> Section 19: W<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>

Come the undersigned, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation and respectfully show:

1. That Jake L. Hamon is a resident of Dallas, Texas, and that the Warren Petroleum Corporation is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of <u>Delaware</u> with a certificate of authority to do business in the State of New Mexico, and that Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation are each the owners of an undivided 1/2 interest in and to certain oil and gas leases embracing the following described lands situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

 $\begin{array}{c} \underline{\text{T. } 17 \text{ S., R. } 38 \text{ E., N.M.P.M.}} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 12: \quad NE_{\overline{4}}^{\perp}, \ SW_{\overline{4}}^{\perp} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 13: \quad E_{\overline{2}}^{\perp}, \ NW_{\overline{4}}^{\perp} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 24: \quad W_{\overline{2}}^{\perp}, \ S_{\overline{2}}^{\perp}NE_{\overline{4}}^{\perp}, \ SE_{\overline{4}}^{\perp} \\ \underline{\text{T. } 17 \text{ S., R. } 39 \text{ E., N.M.P.M.}} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 7: \quad NW_{\overline{4}}^{\perp}, \ W_{\overline{2}}^{\perp}SW_{\overline{4}}^{\perp} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 18: \quad W_{\overline{2}}^{\perp} \\ \underline{\text{Section } 19: \quad W_{\overline{2}}^{\perp} \\ \end{array} } } \end{array}$ 

2. That the Gulf Oil Corporation is the owner of certain leasehold interests covering the following described land situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.M.P.M. Section 12: SE<sup>1</sup> Section 13: SW<sup>1</sup>  $\frac{\text{T. 17 S., R. 39 E., N.M.P.M.}}{\text{Section 7: } E_2^2 S W_{\frac{1}{4}}}$ 

3. That the Amerada Petroleum Corporation is the owner of certain leasehold interests covering the following described land situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

$$\frac{T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.M.P.M.}{Section 24: N_{2}^{1}NE_{4}^{1}}$$

4. That the oil and gas leasehold interests hereinabove referred to owned by the undersigned applicants and the Gulf Oil Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation cover all of the lands which are believed to be within the productive limits of the "Southeast Knowles Area", which is more particularly shown by the plat attached hereto, made a part hereof and for purposes of identification marked Exhibit "A".

5. That Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation drilled the "Jake L. Hamon No. 1 Federal Davis" located in approximately the center of the  $NE_{h}^{1}NE_{h}^{1}$  Section 13, T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.M.P.M., which was the discovery well in the "Southeast Knowles Area" and which was completed as a well capable of producing oil and gas in paying quantities from the Devonian formation on or about May 19, 1954, at a depth of 12,171 feet. That since the drilling of said discovery well, there have been several additional producing wells completed in the area and from the information obtained in the drilling of these wells and geophysical surveys made of the area, the probable producing limits of the zone, reservoir or pool are believed to be reasonably well defined. That the plat attached hereto as Exhibit "A" shows the locations of the producing wells and the wells which are being drilled at the present time.

6. That the character of the production obtained in said field or area is such that due to the great cost of drilling said wells to a depth in excess of 12,000 feet, it would not be economical to develop said field or area by the drilling of one well to each 40acre legal subdivision of the probable producing area. That the oil being produced from the Devonian formation underlying said area is actuated by a water drive and that the water table or level has been established with reasonable certainty and the porosity and permeability

-5-

of the producing horizon is such that one well will effectively, efficiently and economically drain 80 acres or more of the lands in said area and that the development of said area on an 80-acre spacing pattern would be the most economical and beneficial to all parties concerned and would be in the interest of conservation and have the effect of preventing waste, in that marginal wells would not be drilled if developed on a 40-acre spacing pattern due to the fact that the cost of drilling the same could not be recovered.

7. That the undersigned applicants are the owners of approximately 82.4% of the working interests in the oil and gas leases embracing the lands as shown on the plat attached hereto as Exhibit "A" covering the probable productive limits of the "Southeast Knowles Area" and have agreed upon a plan for the spacing of wells in the development of said area and also upon a plan or method for the distribution of the allowable fixed by the Commission for the pool or area. Under said plan, the area would be developed by the drilling of one well upon each 80-acre legal subdivision, the wells to be located not closer than 660 feet to any lease line and at least 1320 feet between wells, and the regular 40-acre allowable with deep well proportional factor set by the Commission each month for the pool or area would be allocated to each 80-acre subdivision constituting the proration unit for the well situated thereon. That the Gulf Oil Corporation is the owner of approximately 14.7% and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation is the owner of approximately 2.9% of the working interests in and to the oil and gas leases covering the said "Southeast Knowles Area" and both of said parties have indicated that they are in accord with said plan of development, as will more particularly appear by photostatic copies of letters of the Gulf Oil Corporation and Amerada Petroleum Corporation respectively, addressed to applicants, attached hereto, made a part hereof and for purposes of identification marked Exhibits "B" and "C" respectively.

It is believed that said 80-acre spacing pattern and plan or method for the distribution of the allowable will be in the interest of conservation and the prevention of waste and will promote the

-3**-**

greatest ultimate recovery of oil and gas from the area, as the characteristics of the reservoir are such that a too rapid rate of withdrawal and the coning effect caused by the drilling of one well upon each 40-acre legal subdivision will reduce the ultimate recovery

8. That it is believed that the well spacing plan and method from the pool or reservoir.

of distribution of the allowable to be fixed by the Commission each month for the "Southeast Knowles Area" as hereinabove set forth, will be fair to the royalty owners having royalty and overriding royalty interests under the respective leases covering said area, in that by such method of spacing and development, each of the leases will be allocated a fair share of the recoverable oil from the pool or reservoir and that the ultimate recovery will be greater under such plan than by the drilling of one well upon each 40-acre legal subdivision and consequently, will be beneficial to and in the interest of said royalty owners as well as the working interest owners. WHEREFORE, the undersigned applicants respectfully request

that after notice and hearing hereon as provided by law, that the Commission enter an order approving the plan outlined herein for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of the allowable fixed by the Commission for the "Southeast Knowles Area" in accordance with the provisions of Section 13(e) (69-213<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> N.M. Stat. '41 Annot.; 65-3-14

N.M. Stat. '53 Annot.).

Respectfully submitted,

Jake L. Hamon

WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION

ing By & & Calvert

HERVEY, DOW & HINKLE Roswell, New Mexico Attorneys for Applicants

-4-



. - .

EXHIBIT "A"

Application of Jake L. Hamon et al for approval of agreed plan for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico



PETROLEUM AND ITS PRODUCTS

# **GULF OIL CORPORATION**

P.O. DRAWER 1290 · FORT WORTH 1, TEXAS

H. M. BAYER VICE-PRESIDENT January 20, 1955

FORT WORTH PRODUCTION DIVISION

Mr, Jake L. Hamon First National Bank Building Dallas, Texas

Warren Petroleum Corporation Tulsa, Oklahoma

## Gentlemen:

We understand that you contemplate making application to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission to enter an order for 660-1320 foot spacing in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico, and also for the formation of 80-acre proration units. Gulf Oil Corporation has a relatively small percentage of the total area involved and would be in accord with the Commission's entering an order providing for 80-acre proration units for the Devonian Reservoir in the Southeast Knowles Area as outlined in your application; we are also in accord with your recommendation that the normal 40-acre allowable, with the appropriate depth factor, be assigned to the 80-acre proration units.

For your information, Gulf Oil Corporation will have a representative present at the hearing to make a statement substantiating its position as outlined above.

Yours very truly,

# H. M. BAYER

# EXHIBIT "B"

Application of Jake L. Hamon et al for approval of agreed plan for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico



Re: South Knowles Field Lea County, New Mexico

Mr. Jake L. Hamon First National Bank Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Sir:

We have been informed of your intention to file with the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission an application for a hearing to consider the adoption of 80-acre proration units in the South Knowles Field, Lea County, New Mexico.

This is to advise we have no objection to the establishment of 80acre units in this field and will favor an order of the Commission which provides for a reasonable development on an 80-acre unit basis.

Yours very truly,

J. E. Low

General Superintendent

RSC:mt

cc: Warren Petroleum Corporation National Bank of Tulsa Tulsa, Oklahoma Attention: Mr. Roy Sears

> Mr. Clarence E. Hinkle Hervey, Dow & Hinkle First National Bank Building Roswell, New Mexico

EXHIBIT 'C

Application of Jake L. Hamon et al for approval of agreed plan for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico.



MAY 27 - 1955

MR. JEFFERSON S. EWING c/o JAKE L. HAMON, OIL PRODUCER FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS

ORDER R-638 DENYING YOUR EIGHTY-ACRE SPACING APPLICATION FOR SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN POOL SIGNED AND ENTERED AS OF THIS DATE

•

W B HACEY DIRECTOR, OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

CASE All.

J. S. EWING

JAKE L. HAMON FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS

March 3, 1955

and in the

GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT PRODUCTION DEPARTMENT

> Mr. W. B. Macey, State Geologist Secretary and Director New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Macey:

South Knowles-Devonian Pool Lea County, New Mexico

Enclosed are core analyses and Schlumberger log received since the hearing on February 16.

Water was encountered in the Cooper "A" No. 1 on test from 8530-40' sub sea. It has been completed from 8496-8521' sub sea and will be potentialed in the near future. On test it was producing approximately 20% water.

We are anxiously awaiting the decision of the Committee on our application for 80 acre spacing. Any further information you may desire will be cheerfully furnished.

Very truly yours, nove J. S. Ewing

mm

Case 8.19.

CORE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR JAKE L. HAMON

COOPER "A" NO. 1 WELL SOUTH KNOWLES FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO '

÷



CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS, TEXAS

· . .

February 24, 1955

REPLY TO P. Q. 80X 36 MIDLAND, TEXAS

Jake L. Hamon 501 First National Bank Building Dallas, Texas

· · · · ·

.

Attention: Mr. J. S. Ewing

Subject: Core Analysis Cooper "A" No. 1 Well South Knowles Field

Lea County, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

The Devonian formation in the Cooper "A" No. 1 well was cored from 12, 190 to 12, 258 feet. Shale was recovered down to 12, 202 feet, but the remainder of the formation was fractured and vuggy dolomite and was analyzed in the Lovington laboratory by whole-core methods. The zone, 12, 202.0 to 12, 210.0 feet, is considered to be nonproductive

due to the absence of significant permeability and porosity. The zones, 12, 228.5 to 12, 239.0, 12, 244.0 to 12, 251.8, and 12, 256.2 to 12, 258.0 feet, are expected to be oil productive. The zones, 12,210.0 to 12,228.5, 12,239.0 to 12,244.0, and 12,251.8 to 12,256.2 feet, were determined to have low permeability and porosity. These characteristics are lowest from 12, 210.0 to 12, 228.5 feet, and no significant flow is expected from this interval. The zone, 12,251.8 to 12,256.2 feet, may produce some fluid as a result of permeability through fractures. High permeability values obtained on sample Nos, 5, 21, 33, 35 and 39 were measured

Estimates of recoverable oil have been prepared for the zones interpreted to be oil productive. Average data for those zones in which only permeability and porosity were measured also are included in this report for

Jake L. Hamon - Cooper "A" No. 1 Well

Page Two

It has been a pleasure to serve you, and we trust these data will assist in the evaluation of this property.

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RS Bipun Ju (PE)

R. S. Bynum, Jr., District Engineer

RSB:WCF:ma

15cc. - Addressee

CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS

• .

Page _	1	.of		2	
	WP-3-212 S				
Well	Cooper "A'	' No.	1		_

### CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL

ORE SUMMARY	p	•		·····
FORMATION NAME	Devonian	Devonian	Devonian	Devonian
DEPTH, FEET	12,210.0-12,228.5	12,228.5-12,239.0	12,239.0-12,244.0	12,244.0-12,251.
% CORE RECOVERY	100	100	100	100
FEET OF PERMEABLE, PRODUCTIVE Formation recovered	18.5	8.9	5.0	7.8
AVERAGE PERMEABILITY MILLIDARCYS	Max.: 0.7 90°: 0.3	Max.: 17 90°: 3.4	Max.: 0.9 90°: 0.6	Max.: 12 90°: 5.2
CAPACITY AVERAGE PERMEABILITY × FEET PRODUCTIVE FORMATION	Max.: 13 90 <sup>0</sup> : 5.6	<b>Max.</b> : 151 90 <sup>0</sup> : 30	Max.: 4.5 90 <sup>0</sup> : 3.0	Max.: 94 90 <sup>0</sup> : 41
AVERAGE POROSITY, PERCENT	1.7	7.5	2.9	5.3
AVERAGE RESIDUAL OIL SATURA- TION, % Pore space		6.6		7.3
GRAVITY OF OIL, 'A.P.I.		45.3		45.3
AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURA- TION, % PORE SPACE		41.7		40.8
AVERAGE CALCULATED CONNATE WATER BATURATION, % PORE SPACE		41.7		40.8
SOLUTION GAS-OIL RATIO. CUBIC FEET PER BARREL (1)	}	498		498
FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR—VOL- UME THAT ONE BARREL OF STOCK TANK OIL OCCUPIES IN RESERVOIR (1)		1.368		1.368
ALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL		i on complete isolation of each area of well should be com	l division. Structural position of sidered.	l wall lotal permeable thicks
BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION, BBLS, PER ACRE FOOT (2)		39		28

BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION, BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (2)	39	28
INCREASE DUE TO WATER DRIVE. BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT	171	120
TOTAL AFTER COMPLETE WATER DRIVE, BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (3)	210	148

NOTE:

-

FORM F-11A

.

(\*) REFER TO ATTACHED LETTER.

(1) REDUCTION IN PRESSURE FROM MEASUred SATURATION PRESSURE TO ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE.

(2) AFTER REDUCTION FROM ORIGINAL RESERVOIR PRESSURE TO ZERO POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH.

(3) RESERVOIR PRESSURE MAINTAINED BY WATER DRIVE AT OR ABOVE MEASURED ORIGINAL SATURATION PRESSURE.

(4) NO ESTIMATE FOR GAS PHASE RESERVOIRS

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use, this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted); but the tree Laboratories, Inc. and its officers and employees assume no responsibility and make no warranty or representation, as to the productivity, proper operation, or profitableness of any oil, gas or other mineral well or sand in connection with which such report is used or relied upon.

CORE LABORATORIES. INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS

.

.

Page _	2	of	2
File	WP-3-212	S	
Well_	Gooper "A	" No.	1

# CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL

<b>CD</b>	OF.	511	MM	

.

FORM FILLA

CORE SUMMARY	•			
FORMATION NAME	Devonian			
DEPTH, FEET	12,251.8-12,256.2			
% CORE RECOVERY	100			
FEET OF PERMEABLE. PRODUCTIVE FORMATION RECOVERED	4.4			
AVERAGE PERMEABILITY NILLIDARCYS	Max.: 30 90 : 13			
CAPACITY AVERAGE PERMEABILITY × FEET PRODUCTIVE FORMATION	Max.: 132 90 <sup>0</sup> : 57			
AVERAGE POROSITY, PERCENT	2.1			
AVERAGE RESIDUAL OIL SATURA- TION, % PORE SPACE				
GRAVITY OF OIL, "A.P.I.				
AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURA- Tion, % pore space				
AVERAGE CALCULATED CONNATE WATER SATURATION, % PORE SPACE				
SOLUTION GAS-OIL RATIO, Cubic feet per Barrel (1)				
FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR-VOL- UME THAT ONE BARREL OF STOCK TANK OIL GCCUPIES IN RESERVOIR (1)				
CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL		on complete isolation al each area of well should be com	-	well, total permeable thickness
BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION. BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (2)				
INCREASE DUE TO WATER DRIVE. BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT				
TOTAL AFTER COMPLETE WATER DRIVE, BBLS, PER ACRE FOOT (3)				

Core Laboratories, Inc. RS Biprem

ORIGINAL SATURATION PRESSURE.

R. S. Bynum, Jr.

NOTE:

(\*) REFER TO ATTACHED LETTER.

(1) REDUCTION IN PRESSURE FROM

(2) AFTER REDUCTION FROM ORIGINAL RESERVOIR PRESSURE TO ZERO POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH.

SATURATION PRESSURE TO ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE.

(3) RESERVOIR PRESSURE MAINTAINED BY WATER DRIVE AT OR ABOVE

(4) NO ESTIMATE FOR GAS PHASE RESERVOIRS.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use, this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted); but Core Laboratories, Inc. and its officers and employees assume no responsibility and make no warranty or representation, as to the productivity, proper operation, or profitableness of any oil, gas or other mineral well or sand in connection with which such report is used or relied upon.

Care 819

CORE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR JAKE L. HAMON

FANNYE M. HOLLOWAY NO. 1 WELL HAMON-DEVONIAN FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

\$



# CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS, TEXAS

. . . . .

September 1, 1954

BERLY TO P. D. 80X 36 MIDLAND, TEXAS

Jake L. Hamon 102 Western Building Midland, Texas

Attention: Mr. A. C. Elliott

Subject: Core Analysis Fannye M. Holloway No. 1 Well Hamon-Devonian Field Lea County, New Mexico

### Gentlemen:

The Devonian formation was cored between 12, 114 and 12, 208 feet in the Fannye M. Holloway No. 1 well. Diamond coring equipment and a water base drilling fluid were used. The core was logged, quick-frozen and transported by Core Laboratories, Inc., to the Lovington laboratory for analysis.

Dense, shaly limestone between 12, 114 and 12, 164 feet is nonproductive. Formation from 12, 164 to 12, 203 feet, consisting of fractured and vugular, stylolitic dolomite and anhydritic dolomite, is expected to be oil productive.

Permeability, porosity and fluid saturations were determined by the whole-core method in order to take into account the effects of wags and fractures upon the productive characteristics of the formation.

Estimates of recoverable oil by gas expansion and water drive mechanisms of recovery have been prepared. It should be observed that these estimates represent the theoretical maximum unit volumes to be recovered. No economic limits on gas-oil or water-oil ratios have been taken into account.

We trust these data will assist in the evaluation of this property.

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc. <u>К. S. Bynum</u>, Jr., -Jury

District Engineer

RSB:WCF:ln 16cc. - Addressee CORE LABORATORIES. INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS

\_. · ·

Page	1	of	1
File	LNML	-160 S	
	Fannye		
	No. 1		

### CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL

CORE SUMMARY							
FORMATION NAME	Dev	onian					
DEPTH. FEET	12,164.	0-12,201.5					
% CORE RECOVERY		100					
FEET OF PERMEABLE, PRODUCTIVE FORMATION RECOVERED		34.9		{			
AVERAGE PERMEABILITY MILLIDARCYS	Max.: 90°:	26 7.4					
CAPACITY - AVERAGE PERMEABILITY X FEET PRODUCTIVE FORMATION	Max.: 90 <sup>0</sup> :	907 258					
AVERAGE POROSITY, PERCENT	}	3.9					
AVERAGE RESIDUAL OIL SATURA- TION, % PORE SPACE		9.0					
GRAVITY OF OIL. "A.P.I.		43.8		ļ			
AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURA- Tion, % pore space		45.9					
AVERAGE CALCULATED CONNATE WATER BATURATION, % PORE SPACE		45.9					
SOLUTION GAS-OIL RATIO. CUBIC FEET PER BARREL (1)	}						
FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR-VOL- UME THAY ONE BARREL OF STOCK TANK OIL OCCUPIES IN RESERVOIR (1)							
CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL	1		n complete isolation ( area of well should		m. Structural position of d.	well total permeable	thicknes
BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION.		20					

20			
76			
96			
	76	76	76

Core Laboratories, Inc.

NOTE:

٠

FORM F-11A

.

(\*) REFER TO ATTACHED LETTER.

RSBymm Jrie)

(1) REDUCTION IN PRESSURE FROM Estimated SATURATION PRESSURE TO ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE.

(2) AFTER REDUCTION FROM ORIGINAL RESERVOIR PRESSURE TO ZERO POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH.

(3) RESERVOIR PRESSURE MAINTAINED BY WATER DRIVE AT OR ABOVE ESTIMATED ORIGINAL SATURATION PRESSURE.

(4) NO ESTIMATE FOR GAS PHASE RESERVOIRS.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use, this teport is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted); but Core Laboratories, Inc. and its officers and employees assume no responsibility and make no varianty or representation, as to the productivity, proper operation, or profitableness of any oil, gas or other mineral well or sand in connection with which such report is used or relied upon.

CAMPBELL & RUSSELL LAWYERS

JACK M, GAMPBELL John F. Russell

-

r Partifle Case File TELEPHONES 4975 - 4287

March 30, 1955

Mr. W. B. Macey Director, Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Bill:

I am enclosing herewith for the record in case number 819 a tabulation of mineral ownership insofar as I have been able to determine it from the records available to me.

With kindest personal regards, I am,

Very /truly yours, QU Jack M. Campbell

JMC:hh Enclosures 3

### kanhollar.bUh:

### TO: Uil Conservation Commission of New Mexico

FROM: Campbell & Aussell, Attorneys for Protestants Case No. 819 -

> Application of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation for approval of 80-acre spacing and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico.

Purusant to agreement between counsel the following is a parteal tabulation of mineral ownership of various protestants in above-styled application:

Name of Mineral Owner	kineral Interest	fract
Powhatan Carter, Anderson Carter, Powhatan Carter, Jr.	Entire 160 A. 160 A. 320 A. 160 A.	₩ <b>4-7-175-39E</b> ₩ <u>3</u> -19-175-39E ₩ <u>3</u> -24-178-38E A11-25-178-38E ₩ <u>3</u> -30-178-39E
Vallye N. Hardin, John R. Hardin	454. 48.A. 48.A. 120A. 220 A.	Ng-24-178-38E E5-24-178-38E N5-19-178-39E N5-30-178-39E N5-25-178-38E
dobert H. Reeves, Carl L. Reeves	50 A.	AI1-24-178-38E
Lee Carter	36t á.	E≟-24-178-38E All-25-178-38E M≟-19-178-39E N출-30-178-39E
T. C. Porter C. A. Porter	20 Å. 49 Å. 40 Å.	AĨ1-12-175-385 All-12-175-385 All-24-178-385

In addition to the foregoing the following protestants own various undivided mineral interests in the area:

Jenny L. Cliston F. E. Chartier Luther Cooper C. C. Yearwood Virgil Linas Lora day Leinhardt Lora day Leinhardt Lora day Leinhardt Lora S. Core Y. E. Lora, Jr. Holba Juan Aluridge Loy J. Narton L. ...Lack Fanny Lolloway Feasrice Howell

Longeculuily submitted,

alay as sido Shilas Aack M. Campbell

أنم

# **PRODUCTION HISTORY**

.1

# SOUTH KNOWLES FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

	Number of	Oil Productio	n, Barrels
Date	Wells	Daily Average	Cumulative
1954			
May	1	90	2, 798
June	1	286	11,391
July	1	260	19,447
August	1	270	27, 829
September	3	622	46, 489
October	3	820	71,901
November	4	904	99, 022
December	6	878	126, 235
1955			
January	6	1039	158, 429
February	7	1067	188, 318
March	8	1238	226, 698
April	8	1006	256, 882
May	9	1387	299, 894
June	9	1233	336, 887
July	9	1314	377,615
August	9	1267	416,878
September	10	1149	451, 345
October	10	1215	489,013
November	10	1159	523, 794
December	10	1359	565, 938
1956			
January	10	1228	603,991
February	14	1487	647, 113
March	14	1727	700, 643
April	14	1727	752,455
May	14	1583	801, 526

C · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	BEFORE THE RVAHON COMMISSION
1-1-21	FE, NEW MEXICO
CASE	

# WELL DATA SOUTH KNOWLES FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

e<sup>4</sup>

ŀ

.

Operator, Lease, Well Number	Completion <u>Date</u>	Total Depth (Schlumberger)	Completion Depth (Subsea)
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - Federal Davis #1	5-54	12, 174	<b>8445 - 84</b> 76
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - Federal Davis #2	1-55	12,290	8486 - 8518
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - D. Wilhoit #1	9-54	12,554	8479 - 8509
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - D. Wilhoit #2	5-56	12, 325	D & A
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - F. Holloway #1	9-54	12, 213	<b>8458 - 850</b> 2
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - F. Holloway #2	9-55	12, 133	3408 - 8440
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - J. G. Cox #1	11-54	12, 247	8489 - 8542
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - L. Cooper A #1	3-55	12, 263	8496 - 8531
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corporation - R. K. Cone #1	12-54	12, 238	8497 - 8517
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corp W. V. Lawrence A #1	2-56	12,188	8445 - 8502
Jake L. Hamon & Warren Petroleum Corp W. V. Lawrence C #1	2-56	12, 236	8500 - 8557
Gulf Oil Corporation - R. K. Cone#1	12-54	12, 151	8422 - 8454
Gulf Oil Corporation - R. K. Cone #2	5-55	12,261	8443 - 8549
Gulf Oil Corporation - H. V. Black #1	2-56	12, 165	8413 - 8468
J. C. Williamson - Amerada #1 BEFORI OIL CONSERVAIU SANTA FE, M <u>FVa vi</u> E CASE	HE COMMISSION	12,126	8414 - 8434

# WELL TEST DATA MAY - JULY, 1956

2.

#

.

# SOUTH KNOWLES FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Well Name & Number	Test Date	Oil Production, Barrels	Water Cut, Percent	Pressure, (1) June 1, 1956
Hamon & Warren				
Cooper A #1	7-56	35	87	
Cone #1	7⊷56	43	93	
Cox #1	7-56	81	35	4638
Holloway #1	7-56	80	9	4743
Holloway #2	7-56	165	0	4825
Federal Davis #1	7-56	163	0	4777
Federal Davis #2	7-56	145	0	4820
Wilhoit #1	756	166	12	4779
Lawrence C #1	7-56	165	23	4818
Lawrence A #1	7-56	123	8	4825
Gulf				
Cone #1	6-56	176	Trace	4774
Cone #2	556	157	10	4740
Black #1	556	176	4	4824

(1) Pressure at 8450 feet subsea after 48 hour shut in period.

CIL CONS	BEFORE THE IVATION COMMISSION FE, NEW MEXICO EXHIBIT NO. <u>E</u>
CASE	819

	Compar Well Field	ny				County	Lea w Mexico	Date 7-1	2-56
	Field	South	Knowles						
i									
5000									
and tee's									
0		0	6	•					
4900		<b>R</b>			0				
5 4900									
					8				
Ű									
j 4800									
<u>)</u>									
4700									
4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1									
4		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
4600									
4500	Lan. Kebi Mari Nay	A Contraction	Han. Han. Mar. Luna	Nuty Not Dec	2 2 2 2 2	June July Sept. Nov.	Dec. Feb. Mar. Mus.		May June Aux
	1954		1955			<u>6</u>	1957		9 <b>58</b>
	1941	<b>.</b> .			BEFORE NSERVATION TA FE, NE			<u>_</u>	

.

-



State of the state



· . 4

R. 39 E R 38 E Sinclair Jake L. Hamon & Warren Jake L. Hamon & Warren Shell Roberts R.Halmes 1 C.J. Antron Jake L. Hamon B. Warren 12 Gulf P Carter Jake L. Hamon | Gulf Jake L. Hamon & Warren Gulf **"۵**" 8. Warren 2 4740 4774 ł L Cooper R.K.Cone Jake L. Hamon Jake L. Hamon R.K.Cone T Jake L. Hamon & Worren Jake L. Hamon & Warren & Warren 8 Warren 17 • 4743 •<sup>1</sup> 4777 4638 • 4779 S J G Cox 13 18 ..... Gulf . 4824

•

------



and the second of the second

4

• ~

# Warren Petroleum Corporation

January 21, 1955

Tulsa 2, Oklahoma Martin 18 9:44 Clase 819

· XE4-16

Mr. Bill Macey Conservation Commission State of New Mexico Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Macey:

7

Enclosed herewith are an original and two copies of application of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation for approval of 80-acre spacing and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico.

Yours very truly,

WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION, OIL DIVISION

T. C. Sears R. C. Sears

дм Encl.

Natural Gasoline Natural Gas Crude Oil . Propane Butane Hexane Heptane . Iso-Butano Iso-Pentane

# BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

# STATE OF NEW MEXICO

APPLICATION OF EAKE L. HANON AND VARREN PETROLNUM CORPORATION POR APPROVAL OF 80-ACRE SPACING AND METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION OF ALLONABLE IN THE SOUTHEAST KNOWLES AREA, LEA GOUNTY, NEW MEXICO, CON-PRESING THE POLLOWING DESCRIPED LANDS, TO-WIT:

> T. 17 S., R. 38 E. Section 12: 54, 5W; Section 13: All Section 24: All

Ŧ.	17 8. 1	<b>I.</b> 39	R.
	3001300	71	WF
	Section Section	18:	TH H
	Section	19:	₩Ŧ

Come the undersigned, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation and respectfully show:

1. That Jake L. Hamon is a resident of Dallas, Texas, and that the Warren Petroleum Corporation is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of <u>Delaware</u>, with a certificate of authority to do business in the State of New Mexico, and that Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation are each the owners of an undivided 1/2 interest in and to certain oil and gas leases embracing the following described lands situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.M.P.M. Section 12: RE; SW; Section 13: E; NW; Section 24: W; S;NE; SE; T. 17 S., R. 39 E., N.M.P.M. Section 7: NWt, W2SWt Section 18: W2 Section 19: W2

2. That the Gulf Oil Corporation is the owner of certain leasehold interests covering the following described land situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.M.P.M. Section 12: 55 Section 13: 5W T. 17 S., R. 39 E., N.M.P.M. Section 7: E3SW

CASE NO. 810

3. That the Amerada Petroleum Corporation is the owner of certain leagehold interests covering the following described land situated in the "Southeast Knowles Area", Lea County, New Mexico, to-wit:

# T. 17 S., R. 38 K., N.M.P.M. Section 24: MgRE:

4. That the oil and gas leasehold interests hereinabove referred to owned by the undersigned applicants and the Gulf Oil Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation cover all of the lands which are believed to be within the productive limits of the "Southeast Knowles Area", which is more particularly shown by the plat attached hereto, made a part hereof and for purposes of identification marked Exhibit "A".

5. That Zake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation drilled the "Jake L. Hamon No. 1 Pederal Davis" located in approximately the center of the HE4NE4 Section 13, T. 17 S., R. 38 E., N.N.P.M., which was the discovery well in the "Southeast Knowles Area" and which was completed as a well capable of producing oil and gas in paying quantities from the Devonian formation on or about May 19, 1954, at a depth of 12,171 feet. That since the drilling of said discovery well, there have been several additional producing wells completed in the area and from the information obtained in the drilling of these wells and geophysical surveys made of the area, the probable producing limits of the zone, reservoir or pool are believed to be reasonably well defined. That the plat attached hereto as Exhibit "A" shows the locations of the producing wells and the wells which are being drilled at the present time.

6. That the character of the production obtained in said field or area is such that due to the great cost of drilling said wells to a depth in excess of 12,000 feet, it would not be economical to develop said field or area by the drilling of one well to each 40acre legal subdivision of the probable producing area. That the oil being produced from the Devonian formation underlying said area is actuated by a water drive and that the water table or level has been established with reasonable certainty and the porosity and permeability

-2-

of the producing horizon is such that one well will effectively, efficiently and economically drain 80 acres or more of the lands in said area and that the development of said area on an 80-acre spacing pattern would be the most economical and beneficial to all parties concerned and would be in the interest of conservation and have the effect of preventing waste, in that marginal wells would not be drilled if developed on a 40-acre spacing pattern due to the fact that the cost of drilling the same could not be recovered.

7. That the undersigned applicants are the owners of approximately 82.4% of the working interests in the oil and gas leases embracing the lands as shown on the plat attached hereto as Exhibit "A" covering the probable productive limits of the "Southeast Knowles Area" and have agreed upon a plan for the spacing of wells in the development of said area and also upon a plan or method for the distribution of the allowable fixed by the Commission for the pool or area. Under said plan, the area would be developed by the drilling of one well upon each 80-acre legal subdivision, the wells to be located not closer than 660 feet to any lease line and at least 1320 feet between wells, and the regular 40-acre allowable with deep well proportional factor set by the Commission each month for the pool or area would be allocated to each 80-acre subdivision constituting the proration unit for the well situated thereon. That the Gulf Oil Corporation is the owner of approximately 14.7% and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation is the owner of approximately 2.9% of the working interests in and to the oil and gas leases covering the said "Southeast Knowles Area" and both of said parties have indicated that they are in accord with said plan of development, as will more particularly appear by photostatic copies of letters of the Gulf Oil Corporation and Amerada Petroleum Corporation respectively, addressed to applicants, attached hereto, made a part hereof and for purposes of identification marked Exhibits "B" and "C" respectively.

It is believed that said 80-acre spacing pattern and plan or method for the distribution of the allowable will be in the interest of conservation and the prevention of waste and will promote the

-3-

greatest ultimate recovery of oil and gas from the area, as the characteristics of the reservoir are such that a too rapid rate of withdrawal and the coming effect caused by the drilling of one well upon each 40-acre legal subdivision will reduce the ultimate recovery from the pool or reservoir.

8. That it is believed that the well spacing plan and method of distribution of the allowable to be fixed by the Commission each month for the "Southeast Knowles Area" as hereinabove set forth, will be fair to the royalty owners having royalty and overriding royalty interests under the respective leases covering said area, in that by such method of spacing and development, each of the leases will be allocated a fair share of the recoverable oil from the pool or reservoir and that the ultimate recovery will be greater under such plan than by the drilling of one well upon each 40-acre legal subdivision and consequently, will be beneficial to and in the interest of said royalty owners as well as the working interest owners.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned applicants respectfully request that after notice and hearing hereon as provided by law, that the Commission enter an order approving the plan outlined herein for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of the allowable fixed by the Commission for the "Southeast Knowles Area" in accordance with the previsions of Section 13(e) (69-213<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> N.M. Stat. '41 Annot.; 65-3-14 N.M. Stat. '53 Annot.).

Respectfully submitted,

Jake L. Hamon

WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION

Calvert. gr/

HERVEY DOW & HINKLE GN BN Roswell, New Mexico

Attorneys for Applicants

-4-



EXHIBIT 'A' Application of Jake L. Hamon et al for approval of agreed plan for the spacing of wells and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico

-

· · · .

.

PETROLEUM AND ITS PRODUCTS

# GULF OIL CORPORATION

P. O. DRAWER 1290 FORT WORTH I, TEXAS

H. M. BAYER VICE-FRESIDENT January 20, 1955

FORT WORTH PRODUCTION DIVISION

3-28-FD

Mr. Jake L. Hamon First National Bank Building Dallas. Texas

Warren Petroleum Corporation Tulsa, Oklahoma

Gentlemen:

We understand that you contemplate making application to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission to enter an order for 660-1320 foot spacing in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico, and also for the formation of 80-acre proration units. Gulf Oil Corporation has a relatively small percentage of the total area involved and would be in accord with the Commission's entering an order providing for 80-acre proration units for the Devonian Reservoir in the Southeast Knowles Area as outlined in your application; we are also in accord with your recommendation that the normal 40-acre allowable, with the appropriate depth factor, be assigned to the 80-acre proration units.

For your information, Gulf Oil Corporation will have a representative present at the hearing to make a statement substantiating its position as outlined above.

ruly, Yours verv H. M. BAYER



Re: South Knowles Field Lea County, New Mexico

Mr. Jake L. Hamon First National Bank Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Sir:

We have been informed of your intention to file with the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission an application for a hearing to consider the adoption of 80-acre proration units in the South Knowles Field, Lea County, New Mexico.

This is to advise we have no objection to the establishment of 80acre units in this field and will favor an order of the Commission which provides for a reasonable development on an 80-acre unit basis.

Yours very truly,

J. E 1 m

General Superintendent

RSC:mt

cc: Warren Petroleum Corporation National Bank of Tulsa Tulsa, Oklahoma Attention: Mr. Roy Sears

> Mr. Clarence E. Hinkle Hervey, Dow & Hinkle First National Bank Building Roswell, New Mexico

Appliented of July 4. Here of all ler gy word of applied july for the graphy of verte ord period of distribution of automated in the contract frontes Aren, lea Genty, for Moxico.
# OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION P. O. BOX 871 SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO

P

June 24, 1955

Mr. Clarence Hinkle Hervey, Dow and Hinkle First National Bank Bldg. Roswell, New Maxico

Dear Mr. Hinkle:

RE: Case No. 819

In behalf of your clients, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation, we enclose a copy of Order R-638-A issued in Case 819.

Very truly yours,

WBMtbrp Enclosure W. B. Macey Secretary - Director

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION P. O. BOX 871 SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

September 20, 1955

Mr. Clarence Hinkle Hervey, Dow & Hinkle First National Bank Bldg. Roswell, New Mexico

Dear Sir:

In behalf of your clients, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation, we enclose a copy of Order R-638-B issued September 15, 1955, by the Oil Conservation Commission in Case 819, which was heard at the July Lith hearing.

Very truly yours,

W. B. Macey Secretary - Director

WBM:brp Enclosure



DEFORE THE <b>Gil Conserbation Commission</b> SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO July 14, 1955	
IN THE MATTER OF:	
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS	
ADA DEARNLEY AND ASSOCIATES Court Reporters 605 Simms Building Telephone 3-6691 Albuquerque, New Mexico	

•

•

. . .

· .

:

BEFORE THE
<b>Gil</b> Conservation Commission
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
July 14, 1955
IN THE MATTER OF:
CASE NO. 819
/
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
ADA DEARNLEY AND ASSOCIATES
COURT REPORTERS
TELEPHONE 3.6691
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

. .

•

•

• •

•

:

#### BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION Santa Fe, New Mexico July 14, 1955

IN THE MATTER OF:

By provisions of Order R-638-A, the Commission granted rehearing in Case 819 upon application of Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation. This case involves an application for 80-acre well spacing and allocation factors in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool, Lea County, New Mexico.

Case 819

BEFORE:

Honorable John F. Simms Mr. E. S. (Johnny) Walker Mr. William B. Macey

#### TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

MR. MACEY: The next case on the docket is Case 819.

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, Clarence Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico, appearing on behalf of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation. This case is before the Commission on the application of Hamon and Warren for rehearing for an 80-acre spacing order in the Penrose-Devonian Pool of Lea County, New Mexico.

The testimony we propose to introduce here will be largely supplemental to that that was introduced at the original hearing, to show there has been a changed condition which we believe makes it absolutely necessary from an economic standpoint that this area be developed on an 80-acre spacing pattern on 80-acre proration units. We have also submitted with the application for rehearing a plat which shows an agreed spacing pattern between the Hamon and

> NA DEALCA ANNA ALBUDA TALA

Warren, the Gulf Oil Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation. At the original hearing, we indicated that they had, these operators who, by the way, are all the operators in the probable producing area, had agreed on an 80-acre spacing, but we did not present at that time a map showing the agreed pattern.

As I say, the pattern now has been definitely agreed upon by these operators and submitted with the application.

In addition to being just an application for rehearing, it is actually submission of the case under the provision of the Statute which provides in effect, which is 13-E of the Conservation Act, which provides this: "Whenever it appears that the owners of any pool have agreed upon a plan for the spacing of wells, or upon a plan or method of distribution of any allowable fixed by the Commission for the pool, or upon any other plan for the development or operation of such pool, which plan, in the judgment of the Commission, has the effect of preventing waste as prohibited by this act and is fair to the royalty owners in such pool, then such plan shall be adopted by the Commission with respect to such pool; however, the Commission, upon hearing and after notice, may subsequently modify any such plan to the extent necessary to prevent waste as prohibited by this act."

We have two witnesses, Mr. U. S. Branson, Jr., and Mr. J. S. Ewing, that I would like to have sworn.

## $\underline{U}. \quad \underline{S}. \quad \underline{B} \ \underline{R} \ \underline{A} \ \underline{N} \ \underline{S} \ \underline{O} \ \underline{N},$

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

#### DIRECT EXAMINATION

By MR. HINKLE:

.MR. HINKLE: I am going to hand to the Commission the exhibits

n da forentiatades en la construcción de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción de la construcción la construcción de la construcción d la construcción de la construcción d

that will be introduced in evidence and attached to the application

(Hamon-Warren Exhibits Nos. 1, 2 and 3 marked for identification.) 3

Q State your name, please.

A U. S. Branson, Jr.

Q You testified in the original hearing of this case, I believe, in February?

A I did.

Q I hand you Hamon and Warren's Exhibit No. 1 and would suggest that you tell the Commission what that exhibit shows.

A Exhibit 1 shows a spacing pattern showing how the wells as presently arilled and the remainder of the producing area can be divided up into 80-acre proration units and conform to the leaselines as they exist.

Q Was there any particular reason that you know of that these wells were drilled on the pattern which was shown here?

A The discovery well, Federal Davis 1, has three direct offsets drilled around it. The Wilhoit No. 1, the Fanny Holloway No. 1, and the Gulf's Cone No. 1 -- these wells were arilled there to comply with offset obligations immediately following the completion of the Federal Davis 1.

Q is each well located on a separate lease?

A Each of those wells is located on a separate and distinct lease.

Q Are there any instances where there is more than one well on one lease?

A There are. One, that being the Federal Davis in the east half of 13 and the Gulf's Cone lease in the southeast of 12; in both

> nte tra da Anto Po Da Contra

cases those two wells fit into the 80 acre proration pattern as shown here and have 80 acres assigned to them.

MR. MACEY: Does this show all the wells that have been drilled in this particular area?

A All the wells that have been completed in this particular area are on this particular map.

Q Are there any other wells being drilled at the present time?

A There is one well being drilled on the south end of the Fanny Holloway lease offsetting the Federal Davis 2.

Q What is the location of that well?

A It is 660 feet from the west line and 660 feet from the south line of the southeast quarter of Section 13.

Q That would be approximately the center, then, of the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 13?

A That is correct.

Q That is the offset to the Federal Davis No. 2?

A Yes.

Q Do you know how deep that well is?

A 6565 this morning at 7 o'clock.

**Q** Does, in your opinion, this spacing pattern which is shown by Exhibit No. 1 be fair and equitable to all the operators, and would it protect correlative rights and the interest of the property owner?

A In my opinion, the spacing pattern is fair to the operators and does protect the correlative rights of the royalty owners.

Q Is there any reason that you know of why this pattern cannot be put into effect at this stage of the development of the field?

NDA DALERS

A No, that is, no engineering reason.

Q State whether or not in your opinion the development on 80acre basis would be in the interest of conservation and prevention

5

A In the interest of conservation, development on 80 acre spacing pattern is capable of draining the area as thoroughly as development on any closer spacing pattern. Development on a closer spacing pattern with the correspondingly higher rates of withdrawal will result in aggravation of edgewater movement and the combination of edgewater movement and bottom water coning will result in trapping off of oil beyond the producing wells. For that reason, it is my opinion that drilling on a closer

spacing will result actually in loss of production and ultimate recovery.

Q In that respect, would this protect correlative rights and the interest of royalty owners?

A The drilling on the 40 acre spacing would not protect

correlative rights any better than drilling on the 80 acre spacing. Q What wells have been drilled and completed since the original hearing in this case?

A The Cooper No. 1 has been completed; the Gulf Cone No. 2

has been completed since the original hearing of the case. Q Have the completion of those wells furnished any additional information which has any bearing upon the further development of

A Yes, sir. Water was encountered in the L. Cooper No. 1 Well at minus 8530 feet, some 60 feet above where we thought the water level was at the last hearing. That simply shrinks the reservoir and makes recovery from the top of the reservoir consider-

 $\Delta E_{\rm BDH}^{\rm Advalue}$ 

ably below what was calculated originally. It shrinks the reservoir.

Q Was Exhibit No. 1, the plat showing the pattern, prepared by you and under your direction?

A It was.

Q I hand you Hamon and Warren's Exhibit No. 2; state to the Commission what that exhibit shows.

A This map is a plat showing the status of the wells in the field as of May the first of this year. There are three numbers given under each well, the top number is the cumulative oil production to the first of May, by wells. The second number is the subsea section open, simply showing where the wells are completed. The bottom number was the water cut at that time. Beginning with the Cooper No. 1, by the time the well had produced 4,618 barrels completed at depths of 8496 to 531, it was producing at 50 per cent water cut. Gulf Cone 2, completed from 8438 to 549, was producing at 12 per cent water cut with, practically speaking, no past production attributed to it. In each of the successive wells, simply give the cumulative production, the amount of water being produced and the section open.

Q Why are the figures on this plat shown as of May 1st, 1955? A That is the last time at which complete data from the entire field was available.

Q Do you have any additional information as to the status of the water that is being made at the present time?

A Yes, sir; since the time that this map was made, and as of the first of July, the Cooper No. 1 is no longer making 50 percent water. It is making about 62 and a half percent. The Cone No. 1 is producing approximately 8 percent water at the present time. The Cox No. 1 has increased to 17 percent. The Holloway and the Wilhoit, by reduction in production, we have been able to reduce the water cut in those wells. This map also shows, among other things, that all wells completed below the minus-8530 or at the minus 8530 contour are producing some water.

7

Q The production figures which are shown in this plat were obtained from what source?

A The New Mexico Conservation Commission records and the records of the operators themselves, of course.

Q At what rate have these wells been producing or are they being produced at the present time?

A The rate varies from well to well, depending on how much they will produce without increasing rapidly in water cut. On the L Cooper No. 1 well, that one is being produced at capacity and makes 61 barrels per day of oil at 62 percent water cut. The Cone No. 1, that is Hamon and Warren's Cone No. 1, is producing around 130 barrels per day; both of those two wells are pumped. The remaining wells are flowing, with the Cox 1 producing at 113 barrels and we have been able to hold, by maintaining a restricted rate on that, we have been able to keep the water cut from increasing rapidly. The Holloway No. 1, as I mentioned before, has been restricted as of July 1st to 92 barrels per day, at which rate we almost succeeded in drying the well up. The water cut is below 1 percent at present.

Q Your experience has been that few tried to flow these wells successfully at the full allowable?

A If we attempt to pull a full allowable, the water cut increases.

Q You are trying to produce them at the rate to cut down the water production?

A We are trying to produce them at a rate that will not permit coning water.

Q Are any of the wells capable of producing the 40 acre allowable?

A Yes, quite a number of wells are capable of producing the 40-acre allowable for a limited time. Specifically, whether they would produce them flowing or not is something else.

Q What, in your opinion, would be the result of trying to produce these wells at the full 40 acre allowable rate?

A Most of the wells would promptly increase in water cut and a few among the ones flowing, with the increase in water cut, would go to pumping, with a resultant drop in production, so it would be possible to maintain the allowable rate for a limited time on most of the wells.

Q Was this plat No. 2 prepared by you and under your direction? A It was.

Q I hand you Hamon-Warren's Exhibit 3 and ask you to state to the Commission what that shows?

A It is a revised structure map prepared since the completion of the Cooper No. 1 well, showing the contour on top of the Devonian section.

Q Mr. Branson, in connection with the original hearing, there was an exhibit No. 4, I believe, introduced, which was similar to this structural plat on the Devonian. Can you state to the Commission the changes in this exhibit over that exhibit No. 4 that was originally introduced?

ADA DEALCH!

A After encountering water in the Cooper 1 sixty feet above where we expected, we went back and checked our structure map carefully. This particular structure map represents two deviations from the map presented as Exhibit 4. One, the oil-water contact has been moved to 8530 subsea depth, found in Cooper No. 1 well. The second change is a stemming of the gradient on the righthand side of that on the southeast corner of the field from a re-evaluation of shot pictures.

9

Q The major change then, in the structural map, is the oilwater contact?

A That is the major change in the structure, yes.

Q Have you made any additional bottom hole pressure surveys since the original hearing?

A A pressure survey was conducted on June 30th in which all wells in the field with the exception of the two pumping wells, were shut in 48 hours and bottom hole pressured at minus 8450. Those pressures ranged on this second survey, as of June 30th, from 4760 on the Cox No. 1 to 4900 on the Federal-Davis 2. The total variation represents a range of about  $1\frac{1}{2}$  percent of the pressure, of the average pressure there, being about 69 pounds above and 70 pounds below, the mean pressure. The pressure variation actually reflects more the lack of sufficient time for building up than it does the actual ultimate pressure on buildup.

Q Does this survey have any significance as far as the 80 acre spacing is concerned?

A The continuity of the pressure, the close relationship between the pressures on the different wells across the field, and the fact that the nighest pressure measured is still approximately

io de veri

the original reservoir pressure, indicates first that the wells are draining, are capable of draining the wide spacing or relatively wider spacing and, second, of course, that the water drive is fairly effectively maintaining pressure in the reservoir. The increase in buildup time is normal with continued production in a tight reservoir and actually indicates that the well is pulling from further back in the reservoir than during the early stages of development or production.

Q Due to the change in the conditions since the original hearing and the additional information which you obtained from the experience in the field and the drilling of additional wells, do you have any different view than was expressed by you at the original hearing, with respect to the economic aspects of the development of this area?

A The economic aspects of this development are, of course, considerably less favorable to the operators than we believed them to be when we had a deeper water level. That is approximately 60 feet off of the net effective section which amounts to a reduction of approximately 1500 barrels per acre in expected recovery, or, in other words, converts a marginal well from --- to a losing proposition and converts one that was going to make a little money to a marginal proposition.

Q Have you made a study as to the probable production of each of the wells that have been drilled?

A To a limited extent.

Q What would you say would be the result of your opinion after making the study?

A Economically?

Q Yes.

A There are several wells here that undoubtedly will not pay out the drilling cost now. Specifically, the Cooper No. 1, which had a production of about, under 8000 of barrels, is already making some 62 and a half percent water cut, with an increase in water cut of 12 and a half percent, along with a production of only 3500 Q Is that one of the wells that is on the pump? barrels of oil. A That is one of the wells that is pumping, yes. The indicated recovery is far below sufficient actually to pay for the pipe in the well. Other wells there that are questionable as far as payout is concerned are the Cox and the Cone and some of the others there will be a pretty close fit to pay for the drill also. Q What other well is on the pump? A Cooper No. 1 and Cone No. 1 are pumping at present. Q From an economic point of view, if the probable productive area is developed on 40 acre spacing pattern, will the pool or field return a profit to the operators, based on the present price of A Developed on 40 acre spacing pattern, it is very unlikely production? Q How many additional wells would have to be drilled to comthat it would pay for the drilling. pletely develop the present prospectively productive area on 40 acre? Q By the drilling of these six additional wells, would any A Six additional wells. additional oil be recovered? Q What would be the additional cost of drilling these six A NO. additional wells?

A About \$1,800,000. They cost approximately \$300,000 apiece. Q This would mean, would it not, that it would result in an economic loss, additional economic loss of approximately \$1,800,000?

A That is correct. The additional expenditure investment of the operators would simply reflect that much loss.

Q In addition to the \$1,800,000 cost of drilling those wells, you would also have an economic loss in the cost of operating the wells and in lifting cost, would you not?

A That is correct. Each additional well increases the operating cost in the field. The more wells you have the more it costs you to produce. If you produce the same amount of oil, you simply have spent additional production money in obtaining it.

Q Then your conclusion is that if this area is required to be developed on 40 acre spacing pattern and all the necessary wells drilled that it would probably result in a loss to the operator?

A It would probably result in a financial loss to the operators.

Q As far as protecting correlative rights and the interests of royalty owners, would it serve any purpose in that connection?

A It would not serve to protect correlative rights as well as the 80 acre spacing, if as well.

MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness?

MR. HINKLE: I would like to offer in evidence Exhibits 1, 2, and 3.

MR. MACEY: Without objection, they will be received. Mr. Campbell.

#### CROUS EXAMINATION

By MR. CAMPBELL:

Q I gather from your testimony, Mr. Branson, concerning the

water situation and the fact that you cannot produce the full allowable from these wells, that whether the field is on 40 or 80 acre spacing program, you consider it to be a pretty sorry oil pool, is that correct? Q Do you know of anything, Mr. Branson, in the rules or regulations or the Statutes that require you to drill any wells? A I can<sup>\*</sup>t answer that question because I am not an expert on Q Do you know of anything in the rules and regulations or the New Mexico law. Statutes that require you to produce the full allowable? Q Do you feel that any time you want to stop recommending A Not that I know of, no. that they drill any additional wells, they can stop drilling, MR. HINKLE: I think that is the question of law. We have irrespective of the pattern? an implied obligation to these owners for reasonable development MR. CAMPBELL: I will be glad to ask Mr. Hinkle if he wants That is a question of law. Q Mr. Branson, since the last hearing, the only well that has to answer it. been commenced is a well in the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 13, is that correct? Quite obviously, that well wasn't commenced on your recommenaution, if your contour is correct, is that right? 4 But that well is a alreet 40-acre offset to the Federal-A That is right.

Davis No. 2 to the east, is it not?

A 1320 feet west of the No. 2.

Q So that the only additional development that has taken place

since the last hearing is another 40 acre location insofar as offset is concerned?

A With reference to Exhibit 1, it is in an 80 acre proration pattern. It is in the south end of the 80 acre proration pattern section on the Holloway lease, just as the No. 2 Federal-Davis is on the south end.

Q But it is 1320 feet from the nearest well?

A That is right.

4

Q With reference to the spacing pattern as indicated in your Exhibit 1, what is the reason for changing the pattern from northsouth unit to east-west unit in Section 24 and 19 in the south part of the area?

A Primarily the east-west 80 of the Ameradas there in the northeast of 24, simply to fit the lease ownership.

Q Do you know, Mr. Branson, whether or not the original leases

are two separate leases covering the east-half of 24 and the west

half of 19?

A Of my own knowledge, no.

Q Would you, so far as the development of the field is concerned, if the field were to be continued on 80 acre spacing, object to the changing of your pattern here in Sections 19 and 34, to a northscuth unit instead of an east-west unit.

A So far as engineering is concerned, there would be no

distinction.

MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that is als.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else? Mr. Rieder.

By MR. RIEDER:

Q You mentioned before that there might be six additional wells drilled?

15

A Yes.

Q Could you give me an idea where?

A The question as asked was to give complete development on 40 acre spacing. For those six there would be, besides the one being drilled on the south end of the Holloway lease at the present time, there would be two additional Holloway, two additional Federal-Davis, and two, either one or both of them might be questionable, one on the Wilhoit and one on Cox.

Q On this 80 acre spacing pattern there would be no further development?

A As to that, I can't say for sure. Within the 8530 contour as we understand it at present, there would be no additional wells.

Q On the Holloway No. 2 from the contour, if the contour is correct, the well hasn't got a chance of being a producer?

A That is correct.

Q It would have had a better chance if it had been the north-west to the southeast?

A That is correct.

Q It would seem that the northwest to southeast would have been a more practical location and still proved the southern end for your contour.

A 1 expect that location was staked for other than engineering reasons.

Mn. HINKLE: May I ack a question to clear that up?

3. N. A.

MR. HINKLE: Do you know whether or not any demand was made MR. MACEY: Yes. A I do understand it was an offset to Federal-Davis No. 2 by royalty owners? that was responsible for the staking of that location. MR. RIEDER: No further questions. MR. MACEY: Anyone else? MR. CAMPBELL: Does your company just automatically meet ▲ In a good share of cases - I don't believe I could state those demands? MR. MACEY: Anyone else have a question of the witness? the company policy. Q I would like to know, Mr. Branson, whether you consider the By MR. MACEY: present top allowable for this pool, and taking the pool in its entirety, you consider that that figure, which is 264 barrels a day, do you consider it excessive from the standpoint of economic, efficient recovery? Q There may be circumstances where you could produce it without? A I think it is excessive. A There is, isolated on the structure, where the wells are capable of producing that without coning the water into them, there are isolated cases; in most of the field that is not true. Q Can you explain why the Federal-Davis No. 2 which is completed only 12 feet from the oil-water contact, isn't producing any water, yet it is producing at high rate? A It has been restricted to 125 barrels since its completion. We had water in some wells completed higher than that before we NOL DEALL ------

completed the Federal-Davis No. 2, and as of the first of July, it is producing 125 barrels per day.

Q How much is the Federal Davis No. 1 producing?

A 230.

Q What about the Wilhoit 1?

A 206. These tests are as of July 1st.

Q Do you have any information on the Cone wells of Gulf?

A I do not know of my own knowledge what they are producing now. It is my understanding, however, that with the appearance of water in Gulf Cone No. 2 its production has been restricted to someplace in the range of 125 to 150 barrels per day, and No. 1 is producing approximately the allowable rate, just as the Federal No. 1 Davis is. That is purely hearsay.

Q Did you use any geophysical data in order to make the interpretation of your possible oil-water contact on your Exhibit No. 3, I believe.

A The structure map itself is based, with the exception of where we have sub-surface control, it is based on geophysical data, yes. As far as the water level itself, that is based on where we found the water in the Cooper No. 1.

Q Is there a possibility of a tilted water table?

A Yes, I would say there is a possibility.

Q Do you have the top of the Devonian on the No. 1 Cone? It is not very important if you don't have it on your exhibit.

A 8463, it is on this exhibit. I thought it was on all of them. Minus 8463.

MR. MACEY: Does anyone else have a question of the witness? If no further questions the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

## $\underline{J}. \underline{S}. \underline{E} \underline{W} \underline{I} \underline{N} \underline{G},$

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

18

## DIRECT EXAMINATION

By MR. HINKLE:

Q State your name, please.

A J. S. Ewing.

Q You have testified at the previous or the original hearing in this case, did you not?

A Yes, sir.

Q I believe your testimony shows that you were general superintendent for Jack Hamon?

A That is correct.

Q Do you know whether or not any agreement has been reached between Mr. Hamon, Warren Petroleum Corporation, Gulf Oil Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation, with respect to spacing units or proration units in this South Knowles area?

A Yes, sir, that was agreed upon at a meeting on June 7th, with the representatives of engineers and counsel of Gulf, Amerada, and Warren and Hamon.

Q What does this agreement consist of, essentially?

A Well, the proration pattern as shown on Figure 3 ---

Q That is the Exhibit No. 1, I believe? A Yes.

Q . That is the pattern referred to and the same plat which is attached to the application for rehearing in this case?

A That is correct.

Q Does your agreement require the drilling of wells in either component part of 80?

19 A No, sir, either 40 acres. Q Are you familiar with the well which is being drilled at the present time in the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 13? Q Do you know when you expect to complete that well, or about A Yes, sir. when? A About the first of September. Q If you don't have any trouble? A If we don't have any trouble. Q Do you have any short-term leases that might be affected by that particular well, the completion of it? A Yes, sir. Q What ---A (Interrupting) The west half, I believe, of 19, and the east half of 24. I understand the Amerada lease, also. Q That also includes the Amerada 80? A Yes, sir. Q Do you know when those leases expire? A November 7, 1955. Q In other words, if the Holloway No. 2 should prove to be a dry hole or a well that is so low that it wouldn't pay out, what would be the natural result, with respect to these leases to the south? A I would imagine they would release them. 2 Or they would expire? A They would expire, yes. MR. HINKLE: I believe that is all. No CONSTAN

MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness?

#### CROSS EXAMINATION

By MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Supposing the Federal Holloway well is a good well, what would be the result?

▲ I hope it is.

Q What would be the result?

A I imagine they would start a couple right quick.

Q On the basis of the spacing pattern that you suggest here, by the changing of your pattern to east-west in Sections 19 and 24, it would appear that instead of drilling two offsets to meet your unit requirements there, you would drill one.

A Well, the Amerada have that 80, it wouldn't be our well. We probably would have to go over here, I would say, in the west half of 24, wouldn't we -- 19, I mean.

Q If you drill one in the west half of 24 and drilled it, which you undoubtedly would, in the north tract there, --

A (Interrupting) I mean the west half of 19. I beg your pardon. I meant we would have to go into 19 would be my guess.

Q I am not asking you to commit yourself on what you would do. I am trying to get the result of changing the direction of your units when you reach this point. I believe the fact is that there is one lease covering all the east half of 24 and one lease covering all the west half of 19?

A That is right.

Q If you followed the same arrangement, you did up in the north part of this pool, by making your offsets direct offsets to meet lease obligations in that fashion, it seems to me that by re-

ADD DEARD

arranging the pattern here, even though it was not the purpose for which you did it, that the result would be that you could hold the east half of 24 and all of the west half of 19 with one well each.

A Well, I wouldn't know about that.

Q Would you have any objection if the 80 acre spacing is granted, to changing the direction of the proration units in Sections 24 and 19?

A Well, personally, I wouldn't, but I wouldn't know what the management would do about it, but my guess would be they would be glad to do it.

Q So far as your management is concerned, it would be a benefit to them?

A It looks like it would.

Q Do you know of anything, Mr. Ewing, in the rules or the Statutes of New Mexico that prevent you from stopping your drilling program whenever you see fit?

A I am not an authority on New Mexico regulations. I wouldn't know.

MR. CAMPBELL: That is all.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have a question of the witness? If nothing further, the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, that is all we have. I would like to make a short statement in connection with this matter.

As I have already pointed out, we have come in here now with an agreed plan of all of the operators who are involved in the area agreeing on the spacing and proration pattern. We have come under

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

that Section of the Statute that provides in that case where the operators so agree that the pattern, and agreement must be respected by the Commission unless the Commission finds that it would not be fair to royalty owners. There has been no evidence introduced here by Mr. Campbell or anybody else which would show that this plan is not fair to the royalty owners or that it would not adequately and fairly protect correlative rights. In fact, the only evidence that has been introduced in this case by Hamon and Warren shows clearly that all rights will be protected.

There is another aspect to this thing which I think ought to be brought to the attention of the Commission, and that is the economic aspect. It has been clearly shown here that this is a case where, if the Commission requires that this field be developed and the royalty owners insist upon it on 40 acre spacing, that there would be an economic loss to the operators. There would not be any additional oil actually recovered in the operation. If the Commission is going to take that position in connection particularly with these deep pools, it is certainly going to discourage development in New Mexico. I think it has always been the policy of the State by the laws which have been enacted by the Commission and encouraging development in the State, particularly with respect to State lands and Federal lands, and the State ultimately gets the benefit of that by reason of the operation, the money that is expended in them, and in connection with the Federal and State lands, by the royalties which accrue and also the citizens of the State by the royalties that accrue to them in connection with fee land. I don't think the Commission should adopt any arbitrary rule that there should be no fields developed on 80 acre spacing pattern

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

I think when we come in with a case of this kind, when we clearly show it is economically not sound to develop it on 40 acres, that the Commission should have that in mind, that an overall general policy should be adopted that would encourage development in New Mexico and encourage the drilling of these deep wells which cost some 300,000 to 350,000 to drill, being 13,000 feet deep. If the operators get the idea that the Commission is arbitrarily going to shut them off from 40 acre development, they are going to be reluctant to come into New Mexico and develop the areas, particularly when we know from the experience of Lea County that the deep Devonian areas are small in size. They are pinpoints that do not cover large areas. That has been the experience generally in New Mexico.

I think that the evidence clearly shows that this is a case where we are entitled to have 80 acre spacing. It shows that the operators of the field are in agreement on the spacing and the proration units. It clearly shows that the royalty owners are not going to be hurt.

Another thing I want to point out is that up to date I don't think there is any evidence or statement on the part of counsel for the royalty owners showing that they actually have any royalty interest that would be affected in the probable producing area of the field.

MR. CAMPBELL: I would like to make a brief statement on behalf of the protestants. The Commission has on file a list of the royalty owners who have entered an appearance in this case, and a tabulation of the mineral interests insofar as we were able to obtain them at the time of the original hearing. I think that the only question involved here really is whether or not it is

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

necessary for the Commission in a situation where you have a field as poor as this one apparently is to enter an order establishing a wide spacing pattern. The wide spacing patterns that we have come upon in New Mexico have always been in either real good fields or real bad fields. When you get to a situation where you have a bad field, it is hard for me to understand, other than the proposition that it might avoid somebody suing them, which is a chance that I think they take when they get a lease contract, why the Commission needs to intercede. If he feels that a prudent operator would not drill any more wells or would drill his wells on 80 acre spacing or 160 acre spacing, then there is nothing to compel him to drill on any other pattern. What it amounts to is that the Commission, by entering an order for 80 acre spacing, is simply, in my judgment as I view it, coming between the lessor and the lessee in this contract.

24

Mr. Hinkle has said that they have an implied obligation to drill wells. That is quite true, as long as you are on 40-acre spacing; I think that implied obligation probably means each 40 acres, but if conditions are such that a reasonably prudent operator would not drill those wells, then that obligation doesn't exist and couldn't be enforced if the conditions in this field are what these people say they are. I am sure they are. I for one wouldn't try to get them to drill 40-acre locations. I don't think it is a matter to be decided in this form. I don't think it is a matter that the Oil Conservation Commission from the point of conservation and protection of correlative rights should decide in a situation of this kind. If the Commission snould see fit to approve 80-acre spacing in this area because of the fact that the operators can't pay their wells out on 40-acre spacing, then there are two things

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPTIONE 3-6691

that we would like to request that the Commission consider.

In the first place, to my knowledge there has never been in New Mexico at the outset a permanent 80-acre spacing order. They have been on a temporary basis and the operators have been required to come in at some stated time, usually one year, and tell the Commission what conditions have developed since the field went on this spacing. I suppose it is conceivable, though improbable, that Mr. Eranson could be wrong and that this well they are drilling there against his better judgment, apparently, might turn out to be an oil well. I suppose that is possible. If it did, and if the field started to develop back to the south, I think that it is incumbent on the Commission to protect the correlative rights of the royalty owners, that at least they had the opportunity by future information to request a change in the pattern. It keeps the operators and the Commission and royalty owners advised of the development.

We suggest first that it be a temporary period of one year if on 80-acre spacing.

Second, we would like to request that the Commission, if it sees fit to put it on temporary 80-acre spacing, to change the pattern insofar as 19 and 24 are concerned so that the proration units will run north and south, just as they do in the rest of the field. I can understand why, with this Amerada situation here, Amerada having received in some manner either the original lease and farmed the rest out, or having a farmout, I don't know how it worked out, but it is all under the basic lease where they have an east-west 80 there that the simplest way, from the operator's point of view, to avoid pooling of interest, was to make the units east and west, but the way we view it, the result could be unfair to the

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

royalty owners, because if the well now drilling proved to be a well, instead of having to drill an offset to the Federal Holloway or the Holloway No. 2 and to the Federal Davis, or two wells to hold the entire west half or east half of Section 24, they would only have to drill one well in the unit lying to the north. We feel that if it is fair to divide these units north-south elsewhere, they should be divided the same way by the Commission in any order they may see fit to enter for temporary 80-acre spacing in this particular field.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have anything else? Mr. Hinkle.

MR. HINKLE: Mr. Campbell has mentioned about the implied obligations of the lease owners for full development, which I had mentioned a while ago, which might require us to develop or drill these additional wells, which would result in an economic loss. One of the reasons the Oil Conservation Commission was established was to determine in matters of this kind what proper spacing units and proration units should be in connection with proration. That is set out specifically in the Statute and I think we have a perfect right to come in here and ask the Commission to determine a spacing and a location pattern for this area, and that we not be left to the Courts as far as our lease obligations are concerned in that respect. As far as the temporary order of one year is concerned, we have no objection to that. If the Commission should see fit in entering an order in this case to make it a temporary order for one year, I think that would be all right. I think certainly at the end of the year by the drilling of this additional well which would be completed before that time, that it will determine whether there is any additional area there that needs to be developed and if

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

conditions warrant at that time that further development of it, I an sure that Hamon and Warren would be willing to go ahead and develop it. They are as anxious as anybody else to develop anything that will show a profit. They are certainly not anxious to be forced to drill six or seven additional wells here which would be a total loss to them. I believe the record in this case will show that both the Gulf and the Amerada agreed to this form of spacing. I was informed that the Amerada had sent the Commission a telegram ---

27

MR. MACEY: That is right.

2

MR. HINKLE: -- which shows they were in agreement. Mr. John Woodward, attorney for the Amerada, was present at the meeting where this spacing was agreed upon. He couldn't be here and I understand he sent a telegram. I understand that the Gulf has written the Commission a letter also, stating that they concur in the application and want the 80-acre spacing as it has been agreed upon. I would like for those, the telegram and the letter, to be made a part of the record in this case.

MR. MACEY: Very well. Mr. Malone, did you have a statement?

MR. MALCNE: May it please the Commission, Ross Malone for Gulf Oil Corporation. Gulf, as has been pointed out, is an operator in the South-Knowles-Devonian Pool and is in accord with the application which has been made by Hamon and Warren for an 80-acre spacing order, with 40-acre allowables to be assigned, with the customary depth factor. In supporting that, I would like to point out, as I have mentioned on previous occasions, to the Commission that we view with a number of reservations any argument that this Commission should act or should not act because of obligations that exist between an operator and the royalty owner. Those are contractual

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

testimony which has of the testimony is the te- adopted, the number of wei- and the rate of withdrawa doubled. The testimony s boundary water encroachm there will be a waste an be ultimately recovered which created the Commi spacing pattern of that which must be kept in in the argument as to would not pay out for mestion of waste is t that waste will result an increase in the r	rights. In this case, as a resented, the most important optimony that if a 40-acre and a that can be drilled will all from this reservoir likew shows that in that situation and a reduction in the amount from this reservoir. Under assion, that waste which wou at kind is certainly the pri- mind, rather than the quest the Commission acting becau a particular operator. As the predominant question and at from a 40-acre spacing pa- ate of withdrawal from the assion? Nothing further? We wi * * * * * * * * *	l be doubled, vise would be n both coning and the result that t of oil that can r the Statute and result from a imary consideration ion as suggested use a well would or we view it, the the evidence shows attern, by reason of reservoir, which	
	ANN 2011		

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) : ss. COUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

I, ADA DEARNLEY, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my hand and notarial seal this 21st day of July, 1955.

Notary Public, Court Reporter

My Commission expires:

June 19, 1959.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 •

•

**\*** .

۰.

• .

ŀ

.

-

## BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

## IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NC. 819 Order No. R-638

THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF JAKE L. HAMON AND WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER ESTABLISHING 80-ACRE WELL SPACING AND AN ALLOCA-TION FACTOR, DETERMINED AS THE PRODUCT OF A STANDARD 40-ACRE ALLOWABLE AND THE APPROPRIATE DEPTH FACTOR FOR THE COMMON SOURCE OF SUPPLY DESIGNATED AS THE SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN POOL OF LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

#### ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

#### BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 o'clock a.m. on February 16, 1955, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "Commission".

NOW, on this 2 day of May, 1955, the Commission, a quorum being present, having considered the testimony adduced and the exhibits received at said hearing and being fully advised in the premises,

#### FINDS:

(1) That due notice of the time and place of hearing having been given as required by law, the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.

(2) That operations to date in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool have been conducted on the basis of 40-acre drilling and proration units.

(3) That development in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool has progressed to a point where it is not practical to initiate a change in drilling and proration practices in said pool.

(4) That the establishment of 30-acre drilling and proration units in the South Knowles-Devonian Gool at this late date would not be in the best interests of conservation and would not protect correlative rights.

#### IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED;

That the application of Jake 2. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation for approval of 80-acre well spacing and an allocation factor determined as the product of a standard 40-acre allowable and the appropriate

-2-Order No. R-638

depth factor for the common source of supply designated as the South Knowles-Devonian Poel of Les County, New Mexico, be, and the same hereby is denied.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico on the day and year hereinabove designated.

> STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

John 7 L. JOHN F. SIMMS, Chairman

S. WALKER Member

W B. MACEY, Member and Secretary



/ir


### BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 819 Order No. R-638

THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF JAKE L. HAMON AND WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER ESTABLISHING 80-ACRE WELL SPACING AND AN ALLOCATION FACTOR, DETERMINED AS THE PRODUCT OF A STANDARD 40-ACRE ALLOWABLE AND THE APPROPRIATE DEPTH FACTOR FOR THE COMMON SOURCE OF SUPPLY DESIGNATED AS THE SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN POOL OF LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

#### APPLICATION FOR REHEARING

Come Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation and hereby make application for rehearing with respect to the matters hereinafter referred to determined by Order No. R-638 of the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission in connection with the above styled cause, and in support thereof respectfully show:

1. That this cause was heard before the Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on February 16, 1955, and on May 27, 1955, an order was entered denying the application of Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation for the approval of 30-acre well spacing and an allocation factor determined as the product of a standard 40-acre allowable and the appropriate depth factor for the common source of supply designated as the South Knowles-Devonian Pool.

2. That applicants believe said order is erroneous with respect to the following matters:

(1) That Finding No. 2 of the Commission "that operations to date in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool have been conducted on the basis of 40-acre drilling and proration units" does not preclude the development of said pool on an 80-acre basis because of the manner in which the respective leases are located and that it was necessary to drill said wells in order to meet offset obligations existing with respect to the several leases involved and that the evidence clearly shows that 80acre spacing or proration units can be assigned to the respective wells which have been drilled, in a manner which will protect all interested parties and be fair and equitable to the royalty owners.

(2) That Finding No. 3 of the Commission "that development in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool has progressed to a point where it is not practical to initiate a change in drilling and proration practices in said pool" is not supported by the evidence and, on the contrary, it is believed that the evidence conclusively shows that it is still practical to develop said pool on an 80-acre spacing pattern.

(3) That Finding No. 4 "that the establishment of 80acre drilling and proration units in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool at this late date would not be in the best interest of conservation and would not protect correlative rights" is not supported by the evidence and, on the contrary, it is believed that the evidence conclusively shows that the establishment of 80-acre drilling and proration units would actually be in the interest of conservation in that it would promote the greatesi ultimate recovery and conservation of reservoir energy and would fully and adequately protect correlative rights, including the interest of royalty owners.

3. That applicants would further show that in fairness and in equity, they are entitled to a rehearing upon all phases involved in connection with the original application upon the following additional grounds:

(1) That since the original hearing on February 16, 1955, there have been two additional wells completed in the reservoir, viz., Hamon & Warren L. Cooper A #1 and the Gulf Cone #2, from which information has been obtained which will have

-2-

a decided bearing on the further development of the reservoir.

(2) That the status or condition of the producing area has changed since the original hearing in that all wells having any section open as low as 8,530 feet sub-sea are producing water.

(3) Positive evidence is now available which confirms the thinness of the producing section and the resulting low per acre ultimate recovery and clearly indicating that if the area is required to be drilled on 40-acre drilling and proration units, that such wells would probably not return development costs.

(4) That because of the marked change in conditions since the original hearing, it is clearly indicated that said pool or area cannot be economically developed on a 40-acre spacing pattern and that the development of said pool on such a pattern would result in a severe economic loss to the operators on account of the depth of the producing horizon and the great cost of drilling and producing said wells.

(5) That the Gulf Oil Corporation, the Amerada Petroleum Corporation, Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation, being all of the working interest owners within the probable productive limits of the pool or area, have agreed upon a plan for the spacing of wells, which is more particularly shown by the plat attached hereto, made a part hereof and for purposes of identification marked Exhibit "A". That said parties have agreed that any well which any party elects to drill, will be drilled in conformity with the 80-acre spacing and proration units as shown by Exhibit A attached hereto and may be located in the approximate center of either 40-acre component comprising such unit, unless subsequent drilling should show a change in circumstances which would warrant some exception to said spacing plan. That said parties have further agreed upon a plan or method of distribution of the allowable to be fixed by the Commission for said pool or area by limiting the production from each well to not more than the standard 40-acre allowable and the appropriate depth factor

-3-

for the producing zone, and which said plan is in conformity with Section 13(e) of the New Mexico Conservation Act  $(69-213\frac{1}{2} \text{ N.M.}$ Stat. <sup>1</sup>41 Annot.; 65-3-14 N.M. Stat. <sup>1</sup>53 Annot.).

That it is believed that said agreement for the spacing of said wells and the method of distribution of the allowable fixed by the Commission for the pool or area will be fair and equitable to all interested parties and will protect correlative rights, including those of royalty owners, and that such plan is in the interest of conservation and the prevention of waste in that because of the economic factors involved, it is likely that said pool or area will never be fully developed or drilled in such a manner that the greatest ultimate recovery of oil can be obtained.

Respectfully submitted,

JAKE L. HAMON

WARREN/RETROLEUM CORPORATION

the firm of Hervey, Dow Member of & Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico

-4--



· . . ·



and the second second second

Exhibit A

. . .

•

# BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

# IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 819 Order No. R-638-A

THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF JAKE L. HAMON AND WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER ESTABLISH-ING 80-ACRE WELL SPACING AND AN ALLOCA-TION FACTOR, DETERMINED AS THE PRODUCT OF A STANDARD 40-ACRE ALLOWABLE AND THE APPROPRIATE DEPTH FACTOR FOR THE COMMON SOURCE OF SUPPLY DESIGNATED AS THE SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN POOL OF LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

#### ORDER OF THE COMMISSION FOR REHEARING

BY THE COMMISSION:

This matter came on for consideration upon petition of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation, through their attorney, Clarence E. Hinkle, for rehearing on Order No. R-638, heretofore entered by the Commission

NOW, on this  $23^{nd}$  day of June, 1955, the Commission, a quorum being present, having fully considered said application for rehearing;

# IT IS HEREEY ORDERED:

That the above-entitled matter be reopened and a rehearing in said cause be held July 14, 1955 at 9 o'clock a.m. on said day at Mabry Hall, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico on the day and year hereinabove designated.

> STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

John 7 Sun JOHN F. SIMMS, Chairman

E. S. WALKER, Member

W B MACEY, Member and Secretary





BY R. S. CHRISTIE AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION

LAEBERGUE AE ARCÉ LAE COMMISSION VEEBOAE LAE VEEFICVION' IS IN LAE INLEBERST OF CONSERVATION AND THE PREVENTION OF WASTE AND WASTE IF FORCED TO DRIFT BUNDECESSARY WELLS, THAT THEIR PROPOSAL TAAT TO DENT THEN 80-ACRE PROBATION BUILS WORLD RESULT IN ECONOMIC 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ORE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ON AND THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, 1955, IT IS ONE OFINION THE FA

1

ATTENTION. NR. V. B. MACEY

SVALV LE<sup>V</sup> NEA HEXICO NEA HEXICO DIF CONSEBAVLION CONMISSION

LAFEV' OKTANONA JULY 12, 1955

OCC SVILLY LE

OCC SANTA FE

TULSA, OKLANONA JULY 12, 1955

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

ATTENTION. HR. V. B. HACEY

REFERENCE RENEARING UN XXX IN CASE NO. 819 SET FOR 9.00 AM, JULY 14, 1955, IT IS OUR OPINION THE FACTS OF THE APPLICANTS ARE SOUND, THAT TO DEMY THEM 80-ACRE PROBATION UNITS WOULD RESULT IN ECONOMIC WASTE IF FORCED TO DRILL UNNECESSARY WELLS, THAT THEIR PROPOSAL IS IN THE INTEREST OF CONSERVATION AND THE PREVENTION OF WASTE AND IS IN THE INTEREST OF CONSERVATION APPROVE THE APPLICATON. THEREFORE WE URGE THE COMMISSION APPROVE THE APPLICATON.

AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION BY R. S. CHRISTIE

PETROLEUM AND ITS PRODUCTS

P. O. DRAWER 1290 FORT WORTH 1, TEXAS

**GULF OIL CORPORATION** 

H. M. BAYER VICE-PRESIDENT

13 5 6

June 20, 1955

FORT WORTH PRODUCTION DIVISION

Oil Conservation Commission State of New Mexico Santa Fe, New Mexico

· 7

Re - Case No. 819 Order No. R-638

Gentlemen:

We have been furnished a copy of the Application For Rehearing filed by Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation in the above captioned case.

This is to advise that Subsection (5) of Section 3 of the Application For Rehearing correctly sets forth the agreements between Gulf Oil Corporation, The Amerada Petroleum Corporation, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation as working interest owners; and we respectfully request the Oil Conservation Commission to grant such Application For Rehearing.

Yours very truly, GULF OIL CORPORATION By President Vice

U M. HERVEY IG... HJRAM M. DOW CLARENÇE E.HINNLE W. E BONDURÂNT, JR. GEDRGE H. HUNKER, JR. - SCHAUER ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO WILLIAM C. SCHAUER HOWARD C. BRATTON S. B. CHRISTY IV June 14, 1955

TELEPHONE 2160

Mr. W. B. Macey Executive Secretary New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Macey:

We hand you herewith in triplicate application of Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation for rehearing in connection with Case No. 819, Order No. R-638. I hope that the Commission will see fit to give this matter prompt and favorable consideration, as you will note from the petition that conditions have changed considerably since the original hearing was held which, in my opinion, justify a rehearing in connection with this matter.

Yours sincerely,

HERVEY, DOW & HINKLE By

CEH:mp Encl. May 27, 1955

Nr. Clarence Hinkle HERVEY, DON AND HINKLE ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO

Dear Mr. Hinkle:

RE: Case No. 819

In behalf of your clients, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation, we enclose a copy of Order R-638 issued in Case 819, which was heard on February 16.

As the copy of the telegram indicates, we have today advised Mr. Jeff Ewing of the fact that the order has been signed and entered as of May 27.

Very truly yours,

worinr

W. B. Macsy Secretary - Director

cc: Mr. Jeff Ewing

May 27, 1955

Mr. Jack Campbell CAMPBELL & RUSSELL J. P. White Building Roswell, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Campbell:

In behalf of your clients who made appearances in Case 819, we enclose copy of Order R-638 signed and entered by the Oil Conservation Commission on this date.

Very truly yours,

WEMINT

ŧ

ŝ

W. B. Macey Secretary - Director



. . . . . . .

í

-----

•

-----

•	
•	BEFORE THE
	<b>Bil Conservation Commission</b>
	SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO July 18, 1956
	001y 10, 1990
¥	
	IN THE MATTER OF:
	CASE NO. 819
•	
ء ج	
	TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
	DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES
	COURT REPORTERS 605 SIMMS BUILDING
	TELEPHONE 3-6691 ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

•

2 BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEV MEXICO July 18, 1956 IN THE MATTER OF: Application of the Oil Conservation Commission upon : its own motion for all operators in the South Enewles-Bevenien Peel, Les County, New Mexico, to : appear before the Commission in compliance with : Case No. paragraph 6 of Order R-638-B to shew cause why 80 . . acre drilling and proration units in the South 819 Knowles-Devenian Poel provided for in Order R-638-B : should be continued; operators shall present evidence to support the continuation of 80 acre drilling and proration units and show necessity fer continuing Order R-638-B beyond September 30, 1956, in said pool. BEFORE : Homerable John F. Simms, Jr. Mr. E. S. (Johnny) Valker Mr. A. L. Perter TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING MR. PORTER: The next case on the docket is Case No. 819. MR. GURLEY: Case No. 819, the application of the Oil Conservation Commission upon its own motion for all operators in the South Knowles-Devenian Pool, Les County, New Mexico, to appear before the Commission in compliance with Paragraph 6 of Order R-638-B to show cause why 80 acre drilling and proration units in the South Knowlesbevonian Pool provided for in Order R-638-B should be continued; operators shall present evidence to support the continuation of 80 fore drilling and proration units and show necessity for continuing rder R-638-B beyond September 30, 1956, in said pool. MR. HINKIE: Clarence Hinkle, Rosvell. Appearing on behalf of DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Jake Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation. I would like to make a brief statement in connection with this matter before we presend with the evidence.

As the Commission knows the original hearing in this Case 819 was held on July the 14th, 1955; the petition for rehearing was filed and the subsequent hearing was held on October the 20th, 1955. There was also some evidence having a bearing on this case which was introduced in connection with Case No. 965, which was the application of Mr. Williamson for an unorthodox location. I simply mention this because it is my understanding that the evidence introduced in connection with this Case 819 and in connection with the two previous hearings will constitute a part of the record in connection with this hearing, being simply a continuation of the case, and we will also probably refer to one or two of the exhibits that were introduced in connection with the Williamson hearing which was No. 965.

The evidence which we propose to introduce here this morning will be simply supplemental of that which has heretofore been introduced in connection with this case, and the Williamson case. In order to bring the Commission up to date on the statute of the development of the field and to show that there is no reason for the change in the spacing pattern, we have eight exhibits which we have marked from "A" to "H" inclusive. The previous exhibits in this case were numbered, so this will distinguish them from the previous exhibits. We also have two witnesses, Mr. Elliott and Mr. Branson,which we would like to have sworn.

(The witnesses were sworn.)

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A. C. ELLIGII called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as DIRECT EXAMINATION follows: BY MR. HINKLE: A A. C. Elliett, District Geolegist, Hamon & Warren Petroleum Q State your name, please. Corporation for West Texas and Southeast New Mexico. Q Where do you live? Q Have you previously testified before the Commission? A Yes, sir. Q In connection with what matter? The hearing in behalf of J. C. Williamson. Q In October? Q At that time you qualified as an expert geologist? A October, yes, sir. MR. HINKLE: Are the gualifications of the witness acceptable here? Q Hr. Elliott, you are familiar with what has transpired in MR. PORTER: They are. connection with this case at the original hearing and the subsequent hearing, and also in the Williamson case which you have referred to Q During the original hearing of July the 14th in 1955 and A Yes, sir. October the 20th of '55, there was introduced in evidence a contour map showing the structure as portrayed at that time from the DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO

information of the wells that had been drilled on top of the Bevenian Fermation, is that not right?

A Yes, sir.

Q And there was also an additional exhibit introduced in connection with the Williampon case which showed the contour on top of the Devonian Fermation, due to the change and condition -because of the well which had been drilled subsequent to the eriginal hearing?

A Yes, sir.

Q How many wells have been drilled since these original exhibits were introduced, which were exhibits having borne exhibit numbers one and three, I believe?

A Since Mr. Williamson's hearing there has been one, two, three, four, five, five additional wells.

Q There was one well drilled subsequent to the original hearing in Case 819, is that not right?

A That's right.

Q What well was that?

A Holloway No. 2.

Q And where is that located?

A This well right here.

Q Would you give the location to the Commission, rather than referring to the exhibit at the present time?

A The Holloway No. 2 was drilled 1980 from the east line and 660 from the south line of Section 13. Seventeen South, Twentynine East.

Q And when was that well completed?

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDIYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A That well was completed, let's see, the Holloway No. 2 in September of '55.

Q All right, new what is the next well that has been drilled since that time? Give the location and the name of the well.

A Subsequent to the drilling of this well, Mr. Williamson's well which was drilled 1980 from the east line and 660 from the morth line of Section 24, and the next well was the Warren-Hamen C-1.

Q When was the second well completed?

A The second well --

Q Was that referred to as the Gulf Black No. 17

A The Gulf Black No. 1 was February 19, 1956, which was drilled 1980 from the west, 1980 from the south of Section 17, 17 South, 38 East.

Q What is the next well chronologically?

A The Hamon and C-1.

MR. PORTER: Is that Lawrence C-1?

A Lawrence C-1, yes, sir. Subsequent to the drilling of this well --

Q In what location is that? Give the location.

A The location of the Lawrence C-1 is 1980 from the west and 660 from the south of Section 24, 17 South, 38 East.

Q All right, what was the next one?

A The Lawrence A-1, located 660 south of the northwest corner of Section 19, 17 South, 39 East.

Q And when was it completed?

A Lawrence A-1 in February, 1956.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

```
Q What was the next well drilled?
   A The Wilheit No. 2 located 660 from the west, 660 from the
south of Section 18, 17 South, 39 East.
    Q When was it completed?
    A May, 1956.
    Q Is that all of the wells which have been drilled?
    A Yes, sir.
    Q Subsequent to the original hearing?
     Q New, since the completion of these wells have you made an
 additional study of the South Knowles reservoir, Devonian reserveir
     Q And have you prepared a contour map showing the top of the
     A Yes, sir.
  Bevenian Formation as from the information obtained from these
  additional wells?
      A This is an up to date interpretation --
      Q Well, now just a minute, answer the question, answer the
   question have you prepared --
       A (Interrupting) Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
       Q Refer to Exhibit A, and tell the Commission what that is
   and what it shows.
       A Exhibit A is a structural map contoured on Top Devonian
    Formation, based on Schlumberger core analysis.
        Q What else does it show?
        A It shows the position, the structural elevation of the top
    of the Devonian fifty foot contours that we have established in
    the original presentation, access running a little bit west of
```

7

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

south, our subsequent drilling has only shown that there is a slight access from the information from the Lawrence A-1 and the Wilheit No. 2, a slight lebe existing on the southeast flat of the Q Were any of these additional six wells which you have structure. testified as having been drilled, completed as dry holes? A The Wilheit No. 2 was completed as a dry hole. A It is structurally a high well on top of the Devonian. Q Is it a high or low well? Q In your opinion is there any reason why it didn't produce A The development of the limestone and porosity in this well is, -- was cored and there was no porosity, and has no showing of any although high? commercial value to the extent that would justify completing it Q Now, Mr. Elliott, refer to Hamon-Warren Exhibit "B" and as an oil well. tell the Commission what it is and what it shows. A Exhibit "B" is a Schlumberger cross section showing the structure on the South Knowles of the Devonian Pool and is shewn on our plat as a section extending along the red line, which is shown on the structural interpretation plat. Q That's Exhibit "A"? GOVERNOR SIMMS: Do you want us to make one of these or are A Exhibit "A". you going to introduce those? MR. HINKLE: Those are going to be introduced. Q Mr. Elliott, what does the blue line on Exhibit "B" represent DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3.6691

A We have drawn the blue line, -- the black line is marked on the top of the Schlumberger, top of the Devonian Formation and the A-1, the Williamson-Hardin No. 1, the Holloway No. 2, the Hamon and Warren Davis No. 2, and the Lawrence A-1. The blue line represents the structural top of the Devonian based on Schlumberger cerrelations.

9

Q Do you know whether or not, in connection with previous testimony in this case, a similar cross section was introduced that covers the morth portion of the field?

A We introduced a similar cross section extending across the merth end of the field, across this line of wells, at the J. C. Williamson hearing in October.

Q And there would be no change in that condition because of the drilling of these wells to the south, is that right?

A We see no evidence for any change.

Q So there is no reason for offering another cross section, as far as the north pertion of the field is concerned?

A Right.

Q Now, I believe you stated that you were familiar with the previous contour maps which had been introduced in connection with this case and the Williamson case. Explain to the Commission the difference between those and the one which you have referred to as Exhibit "A".

A On the access of these wells on the southeast flange, we had this Davis No. 2 well and the Holloway No. 2, which is absent in this data. We connected the high Devonian points here and showed the access in this direction.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

4 Does Exhibit "A" still show that all of the wells which have been drilled are producing from the same reservoir?

A Yes, sir.

4 Your revision of the contour on top of the Devonian, has that changed in any way, the spacing or the reason for the spacing of the wells in the area?

A From the geological standpoint and additional information, we have no evidence that would require any change in the present spacing pattern.

MR. HINKLE: That is all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone else have a question of Mr. Elliott? Mr. Mankin.

QUESTIONS BY MR. MARKIN:

Q Warren Hankin of the Oil Commission. Mr. Elliott, I notice you have drawn a cross section on your Exhibit "B" and then on your Exhibit "A" have you attempted to draw any connecting section on the Wilhoit No. 2, through the Wilhoit No. 2 as to try to interpret what happened there? The Wilhoit No. 2 has recently been completed as a dry hole?

A This cross section here was prepared at the time we completed this well here. This well was just recently completed and we have not prepared any section, the only reasons that we have, from a geological standpoint, was the fact that we have the development of porosity which was sufficiently high in A-1 to make a marginal well, whereas in the Wilhoit No. 2 we had a development of lime for a hundred and thirty feet, and at the time we reached the porosity, we had three drill stem tests and the third test showed water.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALDUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q You indicated that the Lawrence A-1 was a marginal well, it is not a top allowable well? 11

A That, I think, would be covered in the testimony of the reserveir engineer, by Mr. Branson.

4 Will this Wilhoit No. 2, not having any porosity development, which was anticipated, will be used for a salt water well in the upper horizon. Was this structure map which you have drawn here, drawn after the Wilhoit No. 2 was completed?

A Yes, sir.

Q And it is still the same interpretation?

A We have taken the top of the Devonian into consideration.

4 There was no development of porosity in there?

A No, it was cored and examined very thoroughly.

Q The field has not yet been completely defined? The South Devonian Pool has not yet been completely defined, has it?

A Well, we feel that with the edge wells, the A-1 as showing water, the C-1 showing water, we feel that it is defined as far as economics is concerned.

Q You say it is showing water. During the test in March neither one, the Lawrence A or Lawrence C, produced any water but it did in May, is that correct?

A That will be covered by the reservoir engineer.

Q I don't believe I understood you, you feel that it is practicably developed, the field is practicably developed from the outer boundaries?

A Yes, sir.

MR. MANKIN: That is all.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 MR. PORTER: Mr. Campbell.

MR. CAMPBELL: Jack Campbell, Reswell, New Mexico. I would like to show an appearance in this case for Ted Carter and other reyalty owners for whom an original appearance was made at the time the original hearing was held in this case. QUESTIONS BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q At the time the hearing was held on Williamson on an unorthodox lecation, you also thought that this field was fully developed at that time, didn't you?

A Net to my knowledge.

Q Didn't you testify at that time that as far as economics were concerned you were satisfied that the field had been developed to the fullest extent?

A Not at that time.

Q Well, another question, is it possible that your findings with regard to your Wilhoit No. 2 being a dry hole, could tend to confirm the interpretation of the structure as made by Mr. Williamson at the time of the hearing on his application?

A Not at all.

Q You are unwilling to say that it is a possibility that you may have a dry hole there by reason other than the lack of permeability in the Devonian?

A Lack of permeability and porosity.

Q No other possibilities as far as you are concerned?

A Not to my knowledge.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone have a question of Mr. Elliott?

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS AUBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Vitness may be excused.

MR. HINKLE: I would like to ask him one other question. Were both of these exhibits "A" and "B" prepared by you and under your direction?

A Yes, sir.

MR. HINKLE: I would like to offer Exhibits "A" and "B".

HR. PORTER: Without objection, they will be accepted.

(Vitness excused.)

13

MR. PORTER: Next witness, please.

U. S. BRANSON, JR.

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as fellows:

## DIRECT BRAMINATION

# BY M. LINKLE:

4 State your name, please.
A U. S. Branson, Jr.
9 Where de you live, Mr. Branson?
A Dallas, Texas.
9 And what is your profession?
A Consulting engineer, pretroleum engineer.
9 Have you previously testified in connection with this Case
819?
A Yes, sir.
9 At both hearings?
A Yes, sir. At three past hearings.

Q And also in connection with the Williamson case?

A Yes.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 4 No. 965.

GOVERNOR SIMES: His qualifications are accepted.

Q For the benefit of the Commission we have six different exhibits which I would like to have Mr. Branson refer to, and we have marked them from Exhibit "C" to "H" inclusive.

Now, Mr. Branson, please refer to Exhibit "C", Hamon and Varren Exhibit "C" and state to the Commission what that is and what it shows.

A Exhibit "C" is simply a summary of the production data from the entire field, giving both the number of wells producing during the particular menth, the average daily oil production from all wells for each menth, and cumulative production from the beginning of the field, from the completion of the first well. This production information was obtained from the individual operator and simply added up and presented for convenience in seeing what the field has produced and what time.

4 And what is, this is through May, 1956, is it not?

A Yes, sir.

Q What is the accumulative production?

A As of June the 1st, '56 the accumulative production was 801,526. There were fourteen wells in the field, the average daily production during the month of May was one thousand five hundred eighty-three barrels per day.

Q Now, refer to Hamon-Warren Exhibit "D" and state to the Commission what it is and what it shows.

A Exhibit "D" is a summary of the data on each of the wells that has been completed in the South Knowles Devonian Pool to the present

> DEARNLEY-MEISE AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6591

time. At an earlier hearing, I think, all but six of these wells were presented, these wells have been then included here simply to keep from having to refer to two different exhibits. It gives all fifteen wells that have been drilled in the field, the data at which they were completed, that is, the month they were completed, the total depth to which they were drilled by Schlumberger measure, and the section that is open to production at the present time.

Q All right. New, refer to exhibit, Hamon-Warren Exhibit "E" and state to the Commission what that is and what it shows.

A Hamon and Warren Exhibit "E" is a summary of test data on all wells in the field except the Villiamson well. Some of the tests were made in May and in particular the test on the group of wells were made between, in the period May 19th through May 28th, except the No. 1 Cone which was retested following acidation. The tests on the Hamon & Warren wells were run in thefirst ten days of July, the last one being completed on the 10th of July. Opposite each well is given the twenty-four hour cil production, or the cil producing rate, and the water out at which these wells are produced.

At the completion of the well test program carried on in May, we closed the wells in forty-eight hours, in forty-eight hour thut-in pressure on each of the wells as shown here on each of the flowing wells. We didnot pull the tubing and run the pressure on the Cooper or Cone Wells. This exhibit in connection with past exhibits, and with one of the subsequent ones, simply serves to illustrate the progressive increase in water cuts in most of the wells around the field. It also indicates or shows in particular that in the Lawrence C-1 there was some question about before, in

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBHOUEROUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

July it was producing, was capable of producing one hundred sixtyfive barrels of eil with twenty-three per cent water cut. The Lawrence A-1 in July was producing one hundred twenty-three barrels of eil with enly eight per cent water cut. The only other new well in that group is the Gulf's Black No. 1, which was flewing at a rate of one hundred seventy-six barrels of oil with four per cent water cut.

Q This shows, does it not, that there are only three wells in the entire pool, field that are not making water, is that right?

A Ne, sir, Mr. Villiamson's well was not, again I state on that, and in the Gulf Cone No. 1 the water is a bare trace, it was not sufficient to record any percentage. There are three wells of the thirteen that we tested that were dry, making less than two tenths per cent of water, and one that was making a bare trace. The remaining wells in the field are producing water in percentages warying from 4.93.

4 What is the average pressure for the field?

A The average pressure, neglecting one well in taking these average pressures, the Cex No. 1 Well has, for the past year ran memothing over around one hundred pounds below the average pressure in the rest of the wells in the field, it is also a low capacity well and we consider that evident that the buildup of the well was very slow and will drop it from the average of the wells. Excluding that well, the average pressure is four thousand seven hundred ninety-two pounds as of June the lst, '56.

Q is there any great differential between any of the wells, what is the average percentage of variation?

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A Approximately one per cent of deviation of the average is the maximum, both below and above the average pressure.

Q Were these pressure tests made under the same conditions, as to all wells which were tested?

A Yes, sir, the wells were shut in simultaneously and two days later a bemb was run in. The entire field was, with the exception of, or all of the Gulf and Hamen and Varren were shut in and --

Q What was the shut in?

A Perty-eight hours. The pressure reference was eight thousand fifty feet, at approximately the middle of the producing zone.

Q New, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "F" and explain to the Commission what that shows.

A Exhibit "F" is a plot of the pressure history of the field. On discovery or on completion of the Federal Davis No. 1 in July, "54 the well was shut in twenty-four hours, it built up considerable water in it, and the bomb shell and the pressure ceased rising before the end of twenty-four hours, pressure four thousand nine hundred two pounds. At intervals since then, to begin with, of approximately every month, over the past year at six months intervals, the field has been shut in and pressure measured. The solid black line on Exhibit "F" is simply a plot of the average pressures as measured in the Field, with the exception that since July of "55 the Cox No. 1 has been dropped from the average. Circles on the map are the pressures measured after forty-eight hours

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

shut in period on a well that has been under production for a period less than a month. Some of the new wells, in particular this one measured in October of '54 did not build up appreciably above the field average. Other wells drilled since then, as shown by the peints across the top, were fairly high in pressure, even on the forty-eight hour shut in period until the ones completed in February and measured in March of this year, and now that reserveir pressure measured in the new vells has declined below that measured in the new wells initially, indicating that the production from the field is having an affect even in the areas where there is no production. The principal purpose of that exhibit is simply to indicate that there is pressure continuity Q All right. Now, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "G" and across the field. explain to the Commission what that shows. A Schibit "G" is the pressure, present pressure that is shown on, is the same pressure as the ones included in the last column of Exhibit "E". Simply shown in the map for areal reasons. A Yes, sir, comparing them with the exhibit that was intro-Q To the different wells? duced last July, as figure 4, you find that all of the wells in the field have fallen somewhat, varying from approximately thirty pounds to as much as seventy pounds. This simply serves further to illustrate the same thing as the tabulated pressures that the present continuity across the field is quite low, within approximately one per cent deviation from the average. Q Now, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "H" and explain to DEARNLEY MEIER AND ASSOCIATES

STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

the Commission what that shows.

A Exhibit "H" is an areal plot of the same thing as the test data shown in Exhibit "E", also, for reference or for comparison with the same chart which was presented in May of 1955. At that time w placed under each well on the map accumulative production to that time and the present per cent water cut. To bring that status up to date we have here the status of May and July actually, 1956, showing the accumulated production from each well as afforded incidently from the test data, and the water cut at which each well is producing. Now it serves to show, perhaps, better than the tabulations of test data, that around the flanks of the field all of the wells are producing water. In particular, when compared with Exhibit "D" which gives the completion depths, it indicates that the new wells as a result, Hamon and Warren Lawrence 1 and Lawrence Black 1, both show water almost immediately after completion, after production of very small amounts of oil indicating that the water is actually moving into an area which had no production within nineteen hundred feet from it, as a result of the production from the remainder of the field. This simply confirms our original belief that the field would reduce under a water drive and that the field would be capable of drilling wells in excess of thirteen hundred foot rates.

Q Were all of these exhibits "C" to "H" inclusive prepared by you and under your direction?

MR. HINKLE: We would like to offer in evidence, Exhibits "C"

through "H".

DEARNLEY MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691
MR. PORTER: Any objections to the admission of these exhibits? They will be admitted.

Q Hr. Bransen, in that previous hearing I believe you testified as to the probable ultimate recovery of the field if developed on a forty acre spacing pattern as against an eighty acre spacing pattern. Have you any reason to change your opinion, of your previous testimony in connection with this?

A No, sir, I have no reason to believe that production on a forty acre spacing pattern, ultimate production, will exceed that on eighty. Actually, the apparent move, possible edge water movement along the sides indicates that closer spacing would, if anything, reduce the ultimate recevery from the reservoir.

Q The exhibits which you have referred to and testified to in regard to the wells, do they show that all of the wells which have been drilled are producing from the same reservoir?

- A Yes, sir.
- 4 They tend to show that?

A They show that there is considerable pressure continuity, within actually practicably speaking the limits of the access of the bomb, the pressure measurements there are approximately the same pressure. It also shows, or the appearance of water early in relative high wells drilled after considerable production, indicates that the reservoir is being drained by existing wells.

Q Now, Mr. Branson, I believe also in your previous testimony in this case, you testified that a high producing rate, because of reservoir character in particular, might be injurious to the entire field?

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A High producing rate in this particular reservoir would have two harmful effects. First, it will result in coning as proven early in the life of the field by the appearance of water in the Hamen and Warren Helleway No. 1 well which yield climbed to apprex imately twenty per cent water out in a period of four months after completion. The well producing rate was out back, the water out drep last July was about one and a half per cent after three months of reduced production. Continuing that reduced production, the water has in the past six months began to rise slowly, being now approximately nine per cent, as compared to a higher earlier value. Ve feel that excessive production, or that any increase in the production rate will increase the tendency to cone water into the bottom of the wells, resulting in the operator having produced abnormally large volumes of the water too early in the life of the field, and the result an earlier abandonment than will be if they produce at a reasonable rate. In addition to that the high rate of the withdrawal from the field as a whole will promote the encouraging of the edge water, in general the horizontal permeability runs a little higher than vortical, and the water will run a little better, side water, horizontal and vertically. What we are attempting to do here is bring the water up, slowly up from the bottom, keeping the water level as level as possible so that all of the reservoir will be swept out rather than bring water in from the side to meet with the coning under a rapidly producing well, possibly resulting in additional loss of oil through trapping off.

4 It is your opinion then that the field should be continued to be produced on lower than the regular allowable rate?

> DEARNI.EY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALDIQUERQUE, NZW MEXICO TELEFRONE 3-6691

A Yes, sir.

Q New, I believe you also previously testified in connection with this case as to the economic aspect, as far as the operators are concerned, of the field being developed on a forty as against an eighty more basis. Do you have any reason to change your opinion with respect to that?

A Vell, the picture at present is even gloomier than it was in the beginning. Complete development on a forty acre spacing new instead of having all the wells marginal, there would be a large share in commercial losses, and only a relative small percentage of the wells actually drilled or to be drilled that would make commercial producers, and they would be commercially in the, close to marginal class at best.

4 Approximately how many wells would it require, additional wells would be required if the field were developed on the forty acre basis at this time?

A Assuming that all operators would drill any place they could make any oil on forty, it would require approximately ten additional wells. That does not mean to imply that the operator would necessarily drill those wells. There are a number of them that would, the leases would probably be recessed in preference to trilling.

Q Has there been any change in the cost of drilling wells? A Since getting into it more thoroughly we found that we have been able to reduce the cost somewhat below that experienced in the first six or eight wells, in the current cost so I understand, this is not of my knowledge. I haven't totaled the figures, it

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

runs approximately two hundred fifty thousand dellars per well, on the average.

Q Then if ten wells were drilled it would amount to an investment of seme two and a half million dollars?

A Yes, sir, for the recovery, practicably speaking.

Q In your opinion would that result in the recovery of any more oil than would be produced under the present pattern spacing?

A It would develop in the recovery of no appreciable amount of additional eil. There might be a few additional buyers.

Q If the operators were forced to drill these wells on the forty acre spacing basis, how would they come out?

A They would be two hundred fifty million dollars further in the hele.

MR. HINKLE: I believe that is all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone have a question of Mr. Branson? Mr. Campbell.

AUESTIONS BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Mr. Branson, you represent just Mr. Hamon, or Warron, also?

A Hamon and Warren.

4 You make the recommendations for the drilling of additional wells by those concerns?

A You mean do I stake the locations?

Q No, do you recommend --

A Not the specific locations, no. I recommend the areal spacing. I recommend the areal spacing in the reservoir but not for the specific location.

Q Would you recommend to either of, or both of them, that any

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

additional wells be drilled?

A You mean drill additional wells on their tract at this time? Q Yes, sir.

A Judging from this structural map I don't see any very premising locations, no, sir.

Q Would you recommend to them that rather than drill any additional wells on the basis of your structure map, that they surrender the leases?

A You are referring to edge leases or to the entire area?

Q Any leases. Rather than drill any forty acre locations.

A There are some possible forty acre locations in the center of the field that it might be desirable to drill rather than release.

Q You would not recommend that as to any of the outer boundaries?

A No, sir, I would not recommend drilling a twelve thousand feet well, offsetting wells already producing water.

Q I assume that the J. C. Williamson well is not producing water, would you recommend the drilling of any additional wells to the south of that?

A I haven't made a direct study of this with regard to the staking of any particular location. However, just a quick glance, the structure is dipping in this direction from it, probably dipping also in this direction, your best location here would be with respect to encounter the top of the Devonian at about eight thousand five hundred feet below sea level, with his low completed as high as eight thousand five hundred one producing in excess of

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

twelve per cent water. That would not be commercial at all.

4 Mr. Branson, at the time the Holloway No. 2 was drilled you anticipated that to be the only well?

A That's correct.

Q So the structure is changed with the drilling of additional wells?

A In this particular case the Federal Well No. 2 offsetting had been a low well. At that time we only had one well in the structure at the south end of the field. At the present time there are seven. At that time, originally it was their opinion that the structure was morth, south and drilling the low well on the Federal Davis No. 2 about halfway condemned the southern area. Newever, there was considerable acreage down here, and a possibility that the access might be tilted at a somewhat different angle, and besides I think there was an official demand that the well be drilled.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

MR. PORTER: You are through questioning? Mr. Mankin. QUESTIONS BY MR. MANKIN:

Q Warren Mankin of the Oil Conservation Commission. Mr. Branson, relating to your Exhibit "H" which shows the water cut of the wells, let's consider for a moment the Lawrence "A" Well in Section 19. I believe it shows that it now has eight per cent water cut?

A Yes.

Q Do you have knowledge that in March that Hamon and Warren took a survey and that showed zero water production, March of this

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

year?	
*	Just a second, sir. I do not have that March potential of
gas i	n the well, me.
Q	It was submitted?
*	The first test that I have was on the 19th of May.
Q	And in May it was approximately three and a half per cent
water	1
*	Yes.
28	R. PORTER: Just a minute, for classification, Mr. Mankin,
are y	u referring to a test for C-1, 167
H	R. MANKIN: Yes, represented to the Commission.
Q	In May approximately the same percentage for this same well,
the L	swrence C-1?
*	That is my recollection, yes.
Q	At the present time, the 1st of July?
Å	Eight per cent, yes.
Q	Referring now to the Lawrence C #1, you apparently have ne
knowl (	edge that in March that was zero water production on the test
*	No, sir, the only thing I actually know is a verbal report
that (	they were completed dry, I don't have any record.
Q.	In May, a little over sixteen per cent on the same well,
sixtee	en per cent water?
A	That's correct.
Ŷ	And at the present time twenty-three per cent?
A	Yes, sir.
ų.	On the basis of that increase in water, and on the basis of
a stat	tement that you made awhile ago about producing rate, do you
	DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS

¢

ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 feel a hundred fifty barrels -- Before I ask that question, those two wells are top allowable at the present time, are they not?

27

A I believe so, I do not know what the allowable is.

Q One hundred fifty barrels a day.

A I think so.

Q You think that is too great a rate for these wells on the edge to be producing?

A In this particular case, the wells were completed fairly low on the structure, with the water level having already moved up as a result of the preduction of eight hundred thousand barrels of eil, I feel that they would be making water even if the rate were out back, or that the water would appear in the future in any event. And I don't actually consider that further reduction in their rate would have much prospect of improving them very much. We found that it did not in the cone for the Cooper 1 and Cox 1 which were completed low, also.

Q Then you do not have a recommendation to reduce top allowables from one hundred fifty barrels a day?

A No. sir, not at this time.

Q I thought I heard you make such a recommendation or statement previously, but apparently that was an error.

A No, I think the only figure I ever used was one hundred fifty, actually of course, I qualify, the reservoir should be produced differentially in theory. But it is noceasary to have a reasonable pay out at that time on the well, and be able to pay the cost of production, and that interferes with the theoretical production make. If you call these wells much below one hundred fifty

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

barrels the pay out on them gets extensively long, and for that reason as well as the fact that I don't feel they are actually injuring the reservoir at this time, I don't think there is any particular reason for reducing the allovable. Q All right, Mr. Branson, referring now to the Wilhoit No. 1, I noticed on your Exhibit "H", that shows that is twelve per cent

water out?

A Yes, sir.

Q However, on a test submitted by Hamon and Warren in May, showed a production of ninety-five barrels of oil and forty-three barrels of water, which would be approximately thirty-one per cent? A That is correct, at the time of the May test the well was

flewing and apparently loading up on water, in the tube, and when we ran the test we got a load of water. Since that time pumping equipment has been installed and the well is pumping, keeping the water pumped out of the tubing and the actual water out we have found since then is twelve per cent.

Q It is pumping higher, therefore it is not producing much

A It pumps at a higher produce rate, which tends to keep the water? tubing in the lower part of the casing from loading up with water. of getting a slug of water in any one test. Q But the actual oil production rate has increased as a result

A Yes, it would flow only ninety-five barrels proviously, at of the pump being installed? present from seven thousand feet it's producing one hundred sixtyix barrels of oil at twelve per cont water out.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDIVE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q So it is now a top allowable well with pumping equipment? A Yes.

Q Referring to Exhibit "A" which Mr. Elliott had prepared, and referring to your prior testimony as to the water table, has the water table changed?

A It is our feeling, or actually the result of completing the new wells, the Lawrence A-1. I will have to go back to Exhibit "D" I believe it is, that gives the completion dates of those wells. The Lawrence A-1 well was completed from 445 to 502, and shortly after completion showing some water in the flanks on the field. Gulf Black was completed higher than that, at 413 to 468, and shortly after production, after completion started showing some water. We feel that the water level has moved up considerably. At the time of the initial completion, the water production in the Cene 1 and the Cooper 1 was comparatively slight. Since that time, although their compression interval has not particularly changed, the Cone is not a fair case because that well was acidized The Cooper has not been changed in any way and the water out is from, oh, about fifty per cent last May to eighty-seven per cent, I believe, on our last test; indicating an actual movement of the water in the reservoir.

Q Could you recall what the original oil-water contact was? A At the completion of the Cooper we found water at the com-

pleted drill stom at the time at 8530.

- Q Sub sea minus 8530?
- A Yes.

4 What do you feel it is now?

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A Probably the actual high water-cil contact is something in the neighborhood of 8512. Now there will be, of course, local variation there.

Q So there has been a movement of about eighteen feet?

A Semething like that, yes.

Q Referring to your Exhibit "C" on the oil production in April, 1956 and May, 1956; what was the reason for the decrease in eil production in May of 1956 from April?

A In May of 1956 from April?

Q Yes, sir, showed 1583 daily average in May, and 1727 in April, was that because -- what was the reason for that decrease?

A Well, part of it, I expect, was the fact that we shut in the entire field for two days in order to make a pressure survey.

4 Had nothing to do with producing ability of the wells?

A No, the producing ability of the wells in May was substantially the same as it was in April, all the wells were shut in a minimum of two days and others were shut in longer than that.

Q Your exhibits do not indicate any reflection of data from the Williamson well, you have no data from the Williamson well?

A I have no data from the Williamson well with the exception of its monthly production figures.

4 Have no water production?

A No, sir, nor test data, nor pressure.

4 Mr. Campbell asked you a question with regard to the development of the south of Mr. Williamson's well, and you indicated that you didn't think that was a vory favorable well. On the Wilhoit lease of Hamon, now with the drilling of the dry hole of the Wilhoit

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

No. 2 and still a commercial well in the Wilhoit No. 1, do you feel there will be some development between those two wells?

A The Wilheit No. 1 well has increased in water out over the past year, let's see, I have those figures here, a year ago the Wilheit No. 1 well was producing at one and a half per cent water out, at the present time it is producing at twelve per cent water out. Nost of this increase in water out came about actually just before we had to put in the pump. I feel that the water out in the Wilheit No. 1 will increase quite rapidly. We are finding the informal effect of the upper part of the Wilheit No. 2 leaves the picture about like this. If you drill a well there you will get one, or judging from the performance of Wilheit No. 1 which is emmercial since, that is it is producing at the present time a full allowable, but somewhat questionable in the sense that in ultimate production it is producing some water which is really half ensugh to really pay the well out. It is already showing a twelve per cent water cut. We would expect, possibly, to get a well equivalent to that, possibly get a well on the same line development on the top of the Devonian and get another dry hole, so it would be at best a very marginal venture, risky venture.

Q It would be another well on that Section 18, and would be a little higher structurally than the Wilhoit No. 1, would it not?

A Judging from the structure I found in Wilholt No. 2, yes.

Q It would not make a commercial well?

A That would not mean you found enough porosity in the Devonian to make a commercial well. We found the top of the Devonian quite level in the Wilhoit No. 2, but the first producing

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

section was back in the water, so you will be fighting actually two things there, encroachment of the water that already exists as shown by the performance of Wilheit No. 1 and the tightening up of the top of the lime as you go south there, indicated by the Wilheit No. 2.

Q The original hearing on South Knewles, I believe, was in July of '55, at least the Order 638B was entered, at which certain eighty acre patterns were specified at that time based upon structure and other means. Would you at this time recommend any shange to the eighty acre patterns that were developed and introduced at that time?

A Considering that the development is practically complete and the acreage assigned, I don't see any particular change to be made, no.

Q Of course, you are assuming that there will be no more wells drilled on that basis?

A That's correct.

Q If there was another well drilled would you be in favor of a change in pattern such as the Williamson well was granted, and was also considered at that original hearing in July of last year?

A At that time we showed, I believe, the Williamson drill on an cast-west angle due to the lease ownership. From the apparent shape of the structure the south well might be better off on an east eighty, also. However, if I don't consider them a commercial venture any way, I won't recommend drilling them or changing the pattern, to requesting a change in pattern to make them more attractive.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q To bring us up to date for the eighty acre units that have been assigned since the original hearing of July, 1955; do you have knowledge of what units had been assigned for the new wells that had been completed since that hearing?

A No, sir, I do not. I have no personal knowledge of that at all.

Q So far as you know, other than the Williamson well, they possibly were a standard east half or west half of the forty section?

A That's correct, that is my understanding.

MR. PORTER: Anyone else have a question?

MR. HINELE: I have one more question.

MR. PORTER: Mr. Hinkle.

QUESTIONS BY MR. HINKLE:

4 Mr. Branson, Mr. Mankin referred to in his cross examination, to Lawrence A-1 and the Lawrence 1-C, you know when those wells were completed?

A February of 1956.

Q And the test you referred to where they were making water was in May?

A That is correct.

Q In other words, they were not making any water, but by May 1956 --

A That is my understanding, there was no measurable water shown on the original completion.

Q But they started making water very fast?

A That's right.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. HINKLE: That's all.

MR. PORTER: If there are no further questions the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

MR. HINKLE: That's all we have. I am ready for a statement. MR. PORTER: Are there any other witnesses in this case? Mr. Hinkle.

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, we believe that the evidence which has been submitted here clearly shows that there is no reason for a change in the spacing pattern for the development of these wells at this time, and that it would be clearly an economic loss if it should be changed and go back to forty acre pattern. It would be untenable as far as the operators are concorned.

There has been no evidence submitted here to show that anybedy really is objecting to the continuation of the field on an eighty acre basis and at the allowable.

Ve recommend to the Commission that the order which has heretefere been entered in Case 819 be continued at least for a year. If the Commission wanted to make it permanent it would suit as, but if they just want to make it for a year it would be all right. And I think that has clearly been demonstrated in the end that it has been for the best interest of all concerned, and in the interest of conservation for the prevention of waste to develop and produce this field on an eighty acre basis.

MR. PORTER: Mr. Campbell:

MR. CAMPBELL: On behalf of the people for whom I have entered

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUEROUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

an appearance, we have no objection to the continuation of this spacing pattern for an additional year. We don't feel that the field has been fully developed, I think that the number of changes that have been made since the matter first came to the attention of the Commission, as evidenced, it is difficult to tell when the field is fully developed until there is more than one dry hole.

Ye have no objection to the continuation of the spacing pattern for another year. We are not requesting at this time that there be any increase in allovable. Hevever, we do not want to commit ourselves to top allowable of a hundred and fifty barrels for a full year. We want to reserve the right, upon proper application to the Commission, to request an increased allovable. This one hundred fifty barrels was established at the time when there was enly one or possibly two operators in the field who were in accordance as to what the maximum or top allowable should be. And if they have marginal wells in the field, of course that is unfortunate if others have wells that can produce the regular allowable without damage to the reservoir or to the wells. We see no reason why they could not be permitted to do it, upon proper application and upon evidence that there would be no waste committed by virtue of a higher or normal allowable for that depth. But so far as the present extension is concerned we do not oppose it for one year, reserving the right if we see fit to request an increased allowable at a future date.

MR. FORTER: Mr. Walker.

MR. WALKER: Don Walker of Gulf Oil. We operate three wells in this pool and we are in accord with Hamon and Warren for a

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

continuation of the present spacing.

MR. PORTER: If there is nothing further we will take the case under advisoment.

The hearing will be recessed until one-fifteen. (Recess.)

88

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) COUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

I, AMADO TRUJILLO, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and cerrect record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

/rigilla

Subscribed and sworn to before me. Vitness my Hand and Seal this, the \_\_\_\_\_day of August, 1956.

Notary Public

My Commission expires:

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 •

. , 

ș.

•

4 ---

.

#### BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

> CASE NO. 819 Order No. R-638-C

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF JAKE L. MAMON AND WARREN PRIMOLEUM CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER ESTABLISHING SO-ACRE WELL SPACING AND AN ALLOCATION FACTOR DETERMINED AS THE PRODUCT OF A STANDARD 4G-ACRE ALLOWABLE AND THE APPROPRIATE DEPTH FACTOR FOR THE COMMON BOUNCE OF SUPPLY, DESIGNATED AS THE SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN FOOL IN LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

#### ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE CONDISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 o'clock a.m. on July 18, 1956, before the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico hereinafter referred to as the "Commission", in compliance with Paragraph 6 of Order R-638-B issued by the Commission on the 15th day of September, 1955.

NOW, on this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of September, 1956, the Commission, a quorum being present, having considered the testimony adduced and the exhibits received at said hearing and being fully advised in the premises,

FIRDS:

1. That due public notice of the time and place of the initial re-hearing on July 14, 1935 having been given as required by law, the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.

2. That geological and engineering data now available to the Commission indicate that one well will drain 30 acres and that the South Knowles-Devonian Pool should be developed on the basis of 80-acre promation units, said promation units to consist of the E/2 or the W/2 of each quarter section.

3. That in order to prevent waste, the maximum perwell allowable for the pool should be set at 150 barrels for each proration unit.

4. That the provisions of Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, and 4 in full and Paragraph 5 in part as set forth in Order R-638-B should be ordered to be permanently in full force and effect.

-2-Order No. R-638-C

# IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That 80-acre proration units be and the same are hereby established for the South Knowles-Devonian Pool, said proration units to consist of the E/2 or the W/2 of each governmental quarter section.

2. That all wells drilled in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool may be located on either 40-acre portion of the 80acre proration unit, provided however that the well shall be located in the center of the 40-acre tract with a tolerance of 150 feet in any direction to avoid surface obstructions.

3. That no well shall be drilled and produced except in conformity with the spacing pattern set for the above without special order of the Commission after due notice and hearing.

4. That the maximum allowable assigned any well on an 80-acre proration unit within the South Knowles-Devonian Pool shall be 150 barrels per day subject to gas-oil ratio limitations and adjustment.

5. That this order shall cover all of the South Knowles-Devonian Pool as heretofore delineated and any extension thereof as may be determined by further development and shall continue in full force and effect until further order of the Commission.

DUNK at Santa Fa, New Mexico, on the day and year hereinabove designated.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

JOHN F. SIMMS, Chairman

A. L. PORTER, Jr., Wenber & Secretary





## BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

# IN THE MATTER OF THE REHEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 819 Order No. R-638-B

THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF JAKE L. HAMON AND WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER ESTABLISHING 80 ACRE WELL SPACING AND AN ALLOCATION FACTOR DETERMINED AS THE PRODUCT OF A STANDARD 40 ACRE ALLOWABLE AND THE APPROPRIATE DEPTH FACTOR FOR THE COMMON SOURCE OF SUPPLY, DESIGNATED AS THE SOUTH KNOWLES-DEVONIAN POOL IN LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

### ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

#### BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for rehearing at 9 o'clock a.m. on July 14, 1955, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "Commission".

NOW, on this <u>15<sup>±4</sup></u>day of September 1955, the Commission, a quorum being present, having considered the testimony adduced and the exhibits received at said hearing being fully advised in the premises,

### FINDS:

(1) That due notice of the time and place of rehearing having been given as required by law, the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.

(2) That geological and engineering data now available to the Commission indicate that one well apparently will drain 80 acres and that the South Knowles-Devonian Oil Pool should be developed on the basis of 80 acre provation units, said provation units to consist of the D/2 and W/2 of each quarter section.

(3) That in order to prevent waste, the maximum per well allowable for the pool shall be set at 150 barrels for each proration unit.

## IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That 60 acre provation units are hereby established for the South Knowles-Devonian Pool, said provation units to consist of the 11/2 and W/2 of each governmental quarter section.

2. That all wells drilled in the South Knowles-Devonian Oil Pool may be located on either 40 acre portion of the 80 acre provation mit, provided however that the well shall be located in the center of the 40 acre tract with a relevance of 100 feet is any direction to avoid surface obstructions, A boo

-2-Order No. R-638-B

3. That no well shall be drilled and produced except in conformity with the spacing pattern set for the above without special order of the Commission after due notice and hearing.

4. That the maximum allowable assigned any well on an 80 acre proration unit within the South Knowles-Devonian Oil Pool shall be 150 barrels per day subject to gas-oil ratio limitations and adjustment.

5. That this order shall cover all of the South Knowles-Devonian Oil Pool as heretofore delineated and any extension thereof as may be determined by further development and shall continue in force for a period of one year from the first day of October, 1955.

6. That applicants shall appear before the Commission during the regularly scheduled hearing in July, 1956, to show cause why said 80 acre drilling and proration units in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool, as herein ordered, should be continued.

7. That all operators in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool shall submit complete data on all future wells; said data to consist of drill stem test records, core records and core analyses, bottom hole pressure surveys, electrical logs and any other pertinent data.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico on the day and year hereinabove designated.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

71 JOHN F. SIMMS, Chairman

WB macey W. B. MACEY, Member and Secretary





CORE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR JAKE L. HAMON

FEDERAL DAVIS NO. 2 WELL SOUTH KNOWLES FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO LOCATION: SEC. 13 · T17S · R38E



CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS, TEXAB

January 17, 1955

REFLY TO P. D. BOX 36 MIDLAND, TEXAS

Jake L. Hamon 501 First National Bank Building Dallas, Texas

Attention: Mr. J. S. Ewing

Subject: Core Analysis Federal Davis No. 2 Well South Knowles Field Lea County, New Mexico

Location: Sec. 13-T17S-R38E

Gentlemen:

The Federal Davis No. 2 well has been cored between 12,075 and 12,216 feet. Only shale was recovered from 12,075 to 12,187 feet, but slightly fractured and vuggy dolomite was recovered from 12,187 to 12,216 feet. All dolomite was sampled and analyzed for its productive characteris-tics. Analysis was performed by whole-core methods.

Results of these analyses indicate the zone, 12, 187.0 to 12, 204.2 feet, to be oil productive. Water production is expected from analyzed formation below 12, 207.9 feet; however, permeability is low.

Estimates of recoverable oil by gas expansion and water drive mechanisms of recovery have been prepared for the zone, 12,187.0 to 12,204.2 feet. No economic limits on gas-oil or water-oil ratios have been taken into account.

It has been a pleasure to serve you, and we trust these data will assist in the evaluation of this property.

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RS Byrum Jr(PE)

R. S. Bynum, Jr., District Engineer

RSB:WCF:ma

6cc. - Addressee

CORE LABORATORIES. INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS

.

.

Page	_1of1
File	LNML-195 S
Well	Federal Davis No. 2

#### CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL

# CORE SUMMARY

FORM F-11A

FORMATION NAME	Devonian		
DEPTH, FEET	12,187.0412,204.2		
% CORE RECOVERY	100		
FEET OF PERMEABLE, PRODUCTIVE Formation recovered	15.5		
AVERAGE PERWEABILITY MILLIDARCYS	Max.: 44 90 <sup>0</sup> : 26		
CAPACITY AVERAGE PERMEABILITY X FEET PRODUCTIVE FORMATION	Max.: 682 90 <sup>0</sup> : 403		
AVERAGE POROBITY, PERCENT	4,8		
AVERAGE RESIDUAL OIL SATURA- Tion, % Pore space	10.5		
GRAVITY OF OIL. "A.P.I.	45.3		
AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURA- TION, % PORE SPACE	48.1		
AVERAGE CALCULATED CONNATE Water Saturation, % Pore space	48.1		<b>`</b>
SOLUTION GAS-OIL RATIO. CUBIC FEET PER BARREL (1)	498		
FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR—VOL- UME THAT ONE BARREL OF STOCK TANK OIL OCCUPIES IN RESERVOIR (1)	1.368		

BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION. BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (2)	22		
INCREASE DUE TO WATER DRIVE. BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT	80		
TOTAL AFTER COMPLETE WATER DRIVE, BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (3)	102		

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RS Bynum Juipe) R. S. Bynum, Jr.

(\*) REFER TO ATTACHED LETTER.

NOTE:

(1) REDUCTION IN PRESSURE FROM MEASUred SATURATION PRESSURE TO ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE.

(2) AFTER REDUCTION FROM ORIGINAL RESERVOIR PRESSURE TO ZERO POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH.

(3) RESERVOIR PRESSURE MAINTAINED BY WATER DRIVE AT OR ABOVE MEASUred original saturation pressure.

(4) NO ESTIMATE FOR GAS PHASE RESERVOIRS.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use, this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted); but Core Laboratories, Inc. and its officiers and employees assume no responsibility and make no warranty or representation, as to the productivity, proper operation, or profitableness of any oil, gas or other mineral well or sand in connection with which such report is used or relied upon. CORE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR JAKE L. HAMON

FEDERAL-DAVIS NO. 1 WELL WILDCAT LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO LOCATION: SEC. 13 - T17S - R38E



CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS, TEXAS

May 21, 1954

REPLY TO P. O. BOX 36 MIDLAND, TEXAS

Jake L. Hamon Box 4162 Odessa, Texas

Attention: Mr. H. W. Shaw

Subject: Core Analysis Federal-Davis No. 1 Well Wildcat Lea County, New Mexico Location: Sec. 13-T17S-R38E

Gentlemen:

The Federal-Davis No. 1 well was cored using diamond coring equipment and water base mud. The core was logged, sampled and quick-frozen at the well site by a representative of Core Laboratories, Inc., and transported to the Lovington laboratory for analysis.

The Devonian formation was cored from 12, 142 to 12, 171 feet. All recovered core was analyzed for permeability, porosity and fluid saturations by whole-core methods in order to take into account the effects of vugs and fractures upon the productive characteristics of the formation. Results of these analyses indicate the analyzed interval to be oil productive where permeable; however, commercial completion will be dependent upon there being additional oil productive section above or below the analyzed interval.

Because of the limited section analyzed, estimates of recoverable oil have been withheld.

We trust these data will be of assistance.

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RSB ynum Drips

R. S. Bynum, Jr., District Engineer

RSB:WCF:ma

10cc. - Addressee

CORE ANALYSIS REPORT FOR JAKE L. HAMON WARREN PETROLEUM CORPORATION

> D. F. WILHOIT NO. 1 WELL HAMON - DEVONIAN FIELD LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO LOCATION: SEC. 18 - T175 - R39E



CORE LABORATORIES, INC. Petroleum Reservoir Engineering DALLAS, TEXAS

September 7, 1954

REPLY TO P. D. BOX 36 MIDLAND, TEXAS

Jake L. Hamon 102 Western Building Midland, Texas

Attention: Mr. A. C. Elliott

Subject: Core Analysis Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation D. F. Wilhoit No. 1 Well Hamon-Devonian Field Lea County, New Mexico Location: Sec. 18-T17S-R39E

Gentlemen:

The D. F. Wilhoit No. 1 well was cored using diamond coring equipment and water base mud. The core was logged and quick-frozen by a representative of Core Laboratories, Inc., and transported to the Lovington laboratory where it was sampled and analyzed.

The Woodford formation was cored from 12, 134 to 12, 152 feet, and the Devonian formation was cored from 12, 152 to 12, 551 feet. Permeability, porosity and fluid saturations were measured by whole-core methods in order to take into account the effects of vugs and fractures upon the productive characteristics of the formation. Results of these analyses indicate the zone, 12, 134 to 12, 156.5 feet, to be nonproductive. Oil production is expected from formation between 12, 156.5 feet and 12, 257 feet; however, the bulk of capacity occurs from 12, 156.5 to 12, 200 feet. Because of its low permeability and porosity, the zone 12, 257 to 12, 501 feet is considered to be nonproductive. Fluid saturations from 12, 355 to 12, 392 feet are favorable to oil production, but no significant flow is expected due to low capacity. Formation between 12, 501 and 12, 509 feet is water productive. Fluid saturations below 12, 509 feet indicate water productior; however, the limited productive and storage within this region are not expected to permit flow. Jake L. Hamon - D. F. Wilhoit No. 1 Well

Page Two

Those permeability measurements followed by an asterisk are representative of only the matrix material, as the samples were broken and unsuitable for full-diameter permeability measurement.

Estimates of recoverable oil by gas expansion and water drive mechanisms of recovery have been prepared for the interval, 12, 157.0 to 12,255.0 feet. Samples having a trace or less residual oil saturation have been omitted from these calculations.

We trust these data will be of assistance.

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc.

R. S. Bynum, Jr.,

District Engineer

RSB:WCF:ma

16cc. - Addressee

CORE LA	BORAT	ORIES.	INC.	
Petroleum	Reservoir	Engineer	ing	
DALLAS				

Page _	1		of	1
File	LN	IML	-158 S	
Well	D.	F.	Wilhoit No.	1

### CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL

CORE SUMMARY				
FORMATION NAME	Devonian			
DEPTH, FRET	12,157.0-12,255.0			
% CORE RECOVERY	100			
FEET OF PERMEABLE, PRODUCTIVE FORMATION RECOVERED	52.8			
AVERAGE PERMEABILITY Millidarcys	Max.:10 90 <sup>0</sup> : 2.9			
CAPACITY AVERAGE PERMEABILITY X FEET PRODUCTIVE FORMATION	Max.: 528 90°: 153			
AVERAGE POROSITY, PERCENT	4.0			
AVERAGE RESIDUAL OIL SATURA- TION, % PORE SPACE	6.7			
GRAVITY OF OIL, "A.P.I.	43.8			
AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURA. TION, % PORE SPACE	55.1			
AVERAGE CALCULATED CONNATE Water Saturation, % pore space	55.1			
SOLUTION GAS-OIL RATIO, CUBIC FEET PER BARREL (1)				
FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR				
CALCULATED RECOVERABLE DIL	Prediction dependent upo	n complete isolation of eac	h division. Structural position o	f well, total permeable thickne

... RECO ) of oil some and drainage area of well should be considered.

BY NATURAL OR GAS EXPANSION BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT (2)	17		
INCREASE DUE TO WATER DRIVE BBLS. PER ACRE FOOT	6?		
TOTAL AFTER COMPLETE WATER			
DRIVE BELS, PER ACRE FOOT (3)	84		

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RS. June 1 R. S. Bynum, Jr.

(\*) REFER TO ATTACHED LETTER.

NOTE:

.

FORM FILLA

(1) REDUCTION IN PRESSURE FROM estimated SATURATION PRESSURE TO ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE.

(2) AFTER REDUCTION FROM ORIGINAL RESERVOIR PRESSURE TO ZERO POUNDE PER SQUARE INCH.

(3) RESERVOIR PRESSURE MAINTAINED BY WATER DRIVE AT OR ABOVE EStimated Original Saturation Pressure.

(4) NO ESTIMATE FOR GAS PHASE RESERVCIRS.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use, this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted); but Core Laboratories, Inc. and its officers and employees assume no responsibility and make no warranty or representation, as to the productivity, proper operation, or profitableness of any oil, gas or other mineral well or sand in connection with which such report is used or relied upon.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION P. O. BOX 871 SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

### September 14, 1956



Mr. Clarence Hinkle Hervey, Dow & Hinkle P. O. Box 547 Roswell, New Mexico

Dear Sir:

In behalf of your clients, Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation, we enclose three copies of Order No. R-638-C issued September 13, 1956, by the Oil Conservation Commission in Case No. 819, which was heard July 18, 1956.

Very truly yours,

A. L. Porter, Jr. Secretary-Director

jh encls. MEMORANDUM:

TO: 011 Conservation Commission of New Mexico

FROM: Campbell & Aussell, Attorneys for Protestants Case No. 819 -

> Application of Jake L. Hamon and Marren Petroleum Corporation for approval of 80-acre spacing and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County, New Mexico.

Purusant to agreement between counsel the following is a partial tabulation of mineral ownership of various protestants in above-styled application:

Name of Mineral Owner	Rineral Interest	Tract
Powhatan Carter, Anderson Carter, Powhatan Carter, Jr.	Entire 160 A. 160 A. 320 A. 160 A.	₩ <b>4-7-178-39E</b> ₩ <b>4-19-178-39E</b> ₩ <b>4-24-178-38E</b> A11-25-178-38E ₽4-30-178-39E
Vallye M. Hardin, John R. Hardin	454. 48.A. 48.A. 120A. 220 A.	₩5-24-178-38E E5-24-178-38E ₩5-19-178-39E N5-30-178-39E ₩5-25-178-38E
Robert H. Reeves, Carl L. Reeves	50 A.	AĨ1-24-175-38E
Lee Carter	360 A.	Е}-24-178-38E A11-25-173-38E W}-19-175-39E Na-30-178-39E
T. O. Porter C. A. Porter	20 A. 49 A. 40 A.	AĨ1-12-175-38E Al1-12-175-38E Al1-24-173-38E

In addition to the foregoing the following protestants own various undivided mineral interests in the area:

Jenny L. Olinton F. D. Chartier Luther Cooper C. C. Yearwood Virgil Dinam Edna Pay Scinhardt Artie E. Cone T. E. Lears, Sr. Helba Jean Aldridge Hoy G. Barton H. Y. Black Fanny Holloway Beatrice Howell

despectfully submitted,

CAS. PBELL & USSELL Dr: Kack M. Campbell

J M HERVEY (874-1953 HIRAM M DOW CLARENCE E.HINKLE W E BONDURANT, JR GEORGE H. HUNKER, JR WILLIAM C SCHAUER HOWARD C BRATTON S B. CHRISTY IV

LAW OFFICES HERVEY, DOW & HINKLE FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO January 20, 1955

Mr. W. B. Macey New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

#### Dear Mr. Macey:

I enclose copy of application of Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation for approval of 80-acre spacing and method of distribution of allowable in the Southeast Knowles Area, Lea County. You will recall that we discussed this matter generally with you in Santa Fe on January 14th and that you stated it would be necessary to have the application in your hands by not later than January 24th so that you could get in the necessary publication to include the matter on the docket at the regular hearing to be held on February 16th.

I have sent the original of the application to Dallas for Mr. Hamon to sign and his office will, in turn, send it to the Warren at Tulsa for the signature of the Warren, with instructions to send it direct to you air mail. I thought it might be helpful to have a copy so that you could go ahead and prepare the necessary notice and have it ready, as I feel reasonably certain that the signed copies of the application will reach you by the 24th.

While both the Gulf and Amerada have agreed in principle upon the plan which will be presented at the hearing, due to the rather small percentage of acreage owned by them and most of which is marginal, they preferred not to join in the application, but have indicated their approval by letters, copies of which will be attached to the original application, and I feel certain that representatives of both companies will be present at the hearing and indicate to the Commission their approval of the plan.

Representatives of Mr. Hamon and Warren and their engineer, together with the writer, expect to be in Santa Fe by around noon, February 15th, and as suggested by you, we would likt to meet with your engineering staff to go over the plats, exhibits and other data which is being prepared by Dr. Branson for use at the hearing. If we could meet with your staff around 2:00 or 2:30 on the 15th, we feel that it will be very helpful.

Thanking you for your cooperating in connection with this matter, I am

Yours sincerely,

HERVEY, DOW & HINKLE

Writer + Plicker W/Ricder + Plicker How Feb 15. Here Propriet

Encl. cc - Mr. J. S. Ewing Gen. Supt., Jake L. Hamon cc -Dr. U. S. Branson, Jr. Dallas, Texas

CEH:mp
BEFORE THE (**Bil Conservation Commission** 

SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO July 14, 1955

IN THE MATTER OF:

CASE NO. 819

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

ADA DEARNLEY AND ASSOCIATES COURT REPORTERS 605 SIMMB BUILDING TELEPHONE 3-6691 ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION Santa Fe, New Mexico July 14, 1955

IN THE MATTER OF:

By provisions of Order R-638-A, the Commission granted rehearing in Case 819 upon application of Jake L. Hamon and the Warren Fetroleum Corporation. This case involves an application for 80-acre well spacing and allocation factors in the South Knowles-Devonian Pool, Lea County, New Mexico.

Case 819

EFORE :

Honorable John F. Simms Mr. E. S. (Johnny) Walker Mr. William B. Macey

#### TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

MR. MACEY: The next case on the docket is Case 819. MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, Clarence Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico, appearing on behalf of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation. This case is before the Commission on the application of Hamon and Warren for rehearing for an 80-acre spacing order in the Penrose-Devonian Pool of Lea County, New Mexico.

The testimony we propose to introduce here will be largely supplemental to that that was introduced at the original hearing, to show there has been a changed condition which we believe makes it absolutely necessary from an economic standpoint that this area be developed on an 80-acre spacing pattern on 80-acre proration units. We have also submitted with the application for rehearing a plat which shows an agreed spacing pattern between the damon and

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPTIONE 3-6691

Warren, the Gulf Gil Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation. At the original hearing, we indicated that they had, these operators who, by the way, are all the operators in the probable producing area, had agreed on an 80-acre spacing, but we did not present at that time a map showing the agreed pattern.

As I say, the pattern now has been definitely agreed upon by these operators and submitted with the application.

In addition to being just an application for rehearing, it is actually submission of the case under the provision of the Statute which provides in effect, which is 13-E of the Conservation Act, which provides this: "Whenever it appears that the owners of any pool have agreed upon a plan for the spacing of wells, or upon a plan or method of distribution of any allowable fixed by the Commission for the pool, or upon any other plan for the development or operation of such pool, which plan, in the judgment of the Commission, has the effect of preventing waste as pronibited by this act and is fair to the royalty owners in such pool, then such plan shall be adopted by the Commission with respect to such pool; however, the Commission, upon hearing and after notice, may subsequently modify any such plan to the extent necessary to prevent waste as prohibited by this act."

We have two witnesses, Mr. U. S. Branson, Jr., and Mr. J. S. Ewing, that I would like to have sworn.

 $\underline{U}, \underline{S}, \underline{B} \underline{R} \underline{A} \underline{M} \underline{S} \underline{O} \underline{\Pi},$ 

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By MR. HIRKLE:

MR. HIMLE: I am going to hand to the Commission the exhibits ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUEROUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3:6691

Ż

that will be introduced in evidence and attached to the application.

(Hamon-Warren Exhibits Nos. 1, 2 and 3 marked for identification.) 3

Q State your name, please.

A U. S. Branson, Jr.

Q You testified in the original hearing of this case, I believe, in February?

A I did.

Q I hand you Hamon and Warren's Exhibit No. 1 and would suggest that you tell the Commission what that exhibit shows.

A Exhibit 1 shows a spacing pattern showing how the wells as presently drilled and the remainder of the producing area can be divided up into 80-acre proration units and conform to the leaselines as they exist.

Q Was there any particular reason that you know of that these wells were drilled on the pattern which was shown here?

A The discovery well, Federal Davis 1, has three direct offsets drilled around it. The Wilhoit No. 1, the Fanny Holloway No. 1, and the Gulf's Cone No. 1 -- these wells were drilled there to comply with offset obligations immediately following the completion of the Federal Davis 1.

Q Is each well located on a separate lease?

A Each of those wells is located on a separate and distinct lease.

Q Are there any instances where there is more than one well on one lease?

A There are. One, that being the Federal Davis in the east half of 13 and the Gulf's Cone lease in the southeast of 12; in both

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

cases those two wells fit into the 80 acre proration pattern as shown here and have 80 acres assigned to them.

MR. MACEY: Does this show all the wells that have been drilled in this particular area?

A All the wells that have been completed in this particular area are on this particular map.

Q Are there any other wells being drilled at the present time?

À There is one well being drilled on the south end of the Fanny Holloway lease offsetting the Federal Davis 2.

Q What is the location of that well?

A It is 660 feet from the west line and 660 feet from the south line of the southeast quarter of Section 13.

Q That would be approximately the center, then, of the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 13?

A That is correct.

Q That is the offset to the Federal Davis No. 2?

A Yes.

Q Do you know how deep that well is?

A 0505 this morning at 7 o'clock.

Q Does, in your opinion, this spacing pattern which is shown by Exhibit No. 1 be fair and equitable to all the operators, and would it protect correlative rights and the interest of the property owner?

A In my opinion, the spacing pattern is fair to the operators and does protect the correlative rights of the royalty owners.

Q Is there any reason that you know of why this pattern cannob be put into effect at this stage of the development of the field?

A No, that is, no engineering reason,

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDIYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO THERMAR 3-6601 Q State whether or not in your opinion the development on 80acre basis would be in the interest of conservation and prevention of waste.

A In the interest of conservation, development on 80 acre spacing pattern is capable of draining the area as thoroughly as development on any closer spacing pattern. Development on a closer spacing pattern with the correspondingly higher rates of withdrawal will result in aggravation of edgewater movement and the combination of edgewater movement and bottom water coning will result in trapping off of oil beyond the producing wells.

For that reason, it is my opinion that drilling on a closer spacing will result actually in loss of production and ultimate recovery.

Q In that respect, would this protect correlative rights and the interest of royalty owners?

A The drilling on the 40 acre spacing would not protect correlative rights any better than arilling on the 80 acre spacing.

What wells have been drilled and completed since the original hearing in this case?

A The Cooper No. 1 has been completed; the Gulf Cone No. 2 has been completed since the original hearing of the case.

Q Have the completion of those wells furnished any additional information which has any bearing upon the further development of this area?

A Yes, sir. Water was encountered in the L. Cooper No. 1 Well at minus 8550 feet, some 60 feet above where we thought the water level was at the last hearing. That simply shrinks the reservoir and makes recovery from the top of the reservoir consider

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE, 3-6691

ably below what was calculated originally. It shrinks the reservoir.

Q Was Exhibit No. 1, the plat showing the pattern, prepared by you and under your direction?

A It was.

Q I hand you Hamon and Warren's Exhibit No. 2; state to the Commission what that exhibit shows.

A This map is a plat showing the status of the wells in the field as of May the first of this year. There are three numbers given under each well, the top number is the cumulative oil production to the first of May, by wells. The second number is the subsea section open, simply showing where the wells are completed. The bottom number was the water cut at that time. Beginning with the Cooper No. 1, by the time the well had produced 4,618 barrels completed at depths of 8496 to 531, it was producing at 50 per cent water cut. Gulf Cone 2, completed from 8438 to 549, was producing at 12 per cent water cut with, practically speaking, no past production attributed to it. In each of the successive wells, simply give the cumulative production, the amount of water being produced and the section open.

Q Why are the figures on this plat shown as of May 1st, 1955?

A That is the last time at which complete data from the entire field was available.

Q Do you have any additional information as to the status of the water that is being made at the present time?

A Yes, sir; since the time that this map was made, and as of the first of July, the Cooper No. 1 is no longer making 50 percent water. It is making about 62 and a half percent. The Cone No. 1 is producing approximately & percent water at the present time.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

The Cox No. 1 has increased to 17 percent. The Holloway and the Wilhoit, by reduction in production, we have been able to reduce the water cut in those wells. This map also shows, among other things, that all wells completed below the minus-8530 or at the minus 8530 contour are producing some water.

Q The production figures which are shown in this plat were obtained from what source?

A The New Mexico Conservation Commission records and the records of the operators themselves, of course.

Q At what rate have these wells been producing or are they being produced at the present time?

A The rate varies from well to well, depending on how much they will produce without increasing rapidly in water cut. On the L Cooper No. 1 well, that one is being produced at capacity and makes 61 barrels per day of oil at 62 percent water cut. The Cone No. 1, that is Hamon and Warren's Cone No. 1, is producing around 130 barrels per day; both of those two wells are pumped. The remaining wells are flowing, with the Cox 1 producing at 113 barrels and we have been able to hold, by maintaining a restricted rate on that, we have been able to keep the water cut from increasing rapidly. The Holloway No. 1, as I mentioned before, has been restricted as of July 1st to 92 barrels per day, at which rate we almost succeeded in drying the well up. The water cut is below 1 percent at present.

Q Your experience has been that few tried to flow these wells successfully at the full allowable?

A If we attempt to pull a full allowable, the water cut increases.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3 6691 Q You are trying to produce them at the rate to cut down the water production?

A We are trying to produce them at a rate that will not permit coning water.

Q Are any of the wells capable of producing the 40 acre allowable?

A Yes, quite a number of wells are capable of producing the O-acre allowable for a limited time. Specifically, whether they would produce them flowing or not is something else.

Q What, in your opinion, would be the result of trying to produce these wells at the full 40 acre allowable rate?

A Most of the wells would promptly increase in water cut and few among the ones flowing, with the increase in water cut, would to to pumping, with a resultant drop in production, so it would be possible to maintain the allowable rate for a limited time on most of the wells.

Q Was this plat No. 2 prepared by you and under your direction?

A It was.

Q I hand you Hamon-Warren's Exhibit 3 and ask you to state to the Commission what that shows?

A It is a revised structure map prepared since the completion of the Cooper No. 1 well, showing the contour on top of the Devonian section.

Q Er. Branson, in connection with the original hearing, there was an exhibit No. 4, I believe, introduced, which was similar to this structural plat on the Devonian. Can you state to the Commission the changes in this exhibit over that exhibit No. 4 that was originally introduced?

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENGLYPE SEPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPTIONE 3-6691

A After encountering water in the Cooper 1 sixty feet above where we expected, we went back and checked our structure map carefully. This particular structure map represents two deviations from the map presented as Exhibit 4. One, the oil-water contact has been moved to 8530 subsea depth, found in Cooper No. 1 well. The second change is a stemming of the gradient on the righthand side of that on the southeast corner of the field from a re-evaluation of shot pictures.

Q The major change then, in the structural map, is the oilwater contact?

A That is the major change in the structure, yes.

Q Have you made any additional bottom hole pressure surveys since the original hearing?

A A pressure survey was conducted on June 30th in which all wells in the field with the exception of the two pumping wells, were shut in 48 hours and bottom hole pressured at minus 8450. Those pressures ranged on this second survey, as of June 30th, from 4760 on the Cox No. 1 to 4900 on the Federal-Davis 2. The total variation represents a range of about  $1\frac{1}{2}$  percent of the pressure, of the average pressure there, being about 69 pounds above and 70 pounds below, the mean pressure. The pressure variation actually reflects more the lack of sufficient time for building up than it does the actual ultimate pressure on buildup.

Q Does this survey have any significance as far as the 80 acre spacing is concerned?

A The continuity of the pressure, the close relationship between the pressures on the different wells across the field, and the fact that the highest pressure measured is still approximately

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

the original reservoir pressure, indicates first that the wells are draining, are capable of draining the wide spacing or relatively wider spacing and, second, of course, that the water drive is fairly effectively maintaining pressure in the reservoir. The increase in buildup time is normal with continued production in a tight reservoir and actually indicates that the well is pulling from further back in the reservoir than during the early stages of development or production.

Q Due to the change in the conditions since the original hearing and the additional information which you obtained from the experience in the field and the drilling of additional wells, do you have any different view than was expressed by you at the original hearing, with respect to the economic aspects of the development of this area?

A The economic aspects of this development are, of course, considerably less favorable to the operators than we believed them to be when we had a deeper water level. That is approximately 60 feet off of the net effective section which amounts to a reduction of approximately 1500 barrels per acre in expected recovery, or, in other words, converts a marginal well from -- to a losing proposition and converts one that was going to make a little money to a marginal proposition.

Q Have you made a study as to the probable production of each of the wells that have been drilled?

A To a limited extent.

Q What would you say would be the result of your opinion after making the study?

A Economically?

Q Yes.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

11 There are several wells here that undoubtedly will not pay A out the drilling cost now. Specifically, the Cooper No. 1, which had a production of about, under 8000 of barrels, is already making some 62 and a half percent water cut, with an increase in water cut of 12 and a half percent, along with a production of only 3500 barrels of oil. U Is that one of the wells that is on the pump? A That is one of the wells that is pumping, yes. The indicated recovery is far below sufficient actually to pay for the pipe in the well. Other wells there that are questionable as far as payout is concerned are the Cox and the Cone and some of the others there will be a pretty close fit to pay for the drill also. Q What other well is on the pump? A Cooper No. 1 and Cone No. 1 are pumping at present. Q From an economic point of view, if the probable productive area is developed on 40 acre spacing pattern, will the pool or field return a profit to the operators, based on the present price of production? A Developed on 40 acre spacing pattern, it is very unlikely that it would pay for the drilling. Q How many additional wells would have to be drilled to completely develop the present prospectively productive area on 40 acre? A Six additional wells. Q By the drilling of these six additional wells, would any additional oil be recovered? A NO. Q What would be the additional cost of drilling these six additional wells? ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A About \$1,800,000. They cost approximately \$300,000 apiece. Q This would mean, would it not, that it would result in an

A That is correct. The additional expenditure investment of the operators would simply reflect that much loss.

economic loss, additional economic loss of approximately \$1,800,000?

Q In addition to the \$1,800,000 cost of drilling those wells, you would also have an economic loss in the cost of operating the wells and in lifting cost, would you not?

A That is correct. Each additional well increases the operating cost in the field. The more wells you have the more it costs you to produce. If you produce the same amount of oil, you simply have spent additional production money in obtaining it.

Q Then your conclusion is that if this area is required to be developed on 40 acre spacing pattern and all the necessary wells drilled that it would probably result in a loss to the operator?

A It would probably result in a financial loss to the operators.

Q As far as protecting correlative rights and the interests of royalty owners, would it serve any purpose in that connection?

A It would not serve to protect correlative rights as well as the 80 acre spacing, if as well.

MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness?

MR. HINKLE: I would like to offer in evidence Exhibits 1, 2, and 3.

MR. MACEY: Without objection, they will be received. Mr. Campbell.

CROSS EXAMINATION

By MR. CAMPBELL:

Q I gather from your testimony, Mr. Branson, concerning the

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENGLYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEDION, 3-6691

13 water situation and the fact that you cannot produce the full allow able from these wells, that whether the field is on 40 or 30 auro spacing program, you consider it to be a pretty sorry oil pool, it Q Do You know of anything, Mr. Branson, in the rules or reg ulations or the Statutes that require you to drill any vells? A I can't answer that question because I am not an expert on Q Do you know of anything in the rules and regulations or the that correct? Statutes that require you to produce the full allowable? Q Do you feel that any time you want to stop recommending that they drill any additional wells, they can stop drilling, New Mexico law. MR. HINKLE: I think that is the question of law. We have an implied obligation to these owners for reasonable development MR. CAMPBELLS I will be glad to ask Mr. Hinkle if he wants lirrespective of the pattern? Q Mr. Branson, since the last hearing, the only well that has been commenced is a well in the southwest quarter of the southeast That is a question of law. Q Quite obviously, that well wasn't commenced on your reco quarter of Section 13, is that correct? to answer it. dation, if your contour is correct, is that right? but that well is a direct 40-acre offset to the Feder A That is right. ୍ତୁ

Davis No. 2 to the east, is it not?

A 1320 feet west of the No. 2.

Q So that the only additional development that has taken place since the last hearing is another 40 acre location insofar as offset is concerned?

A With reference to Exhibit 1, it is in an 80 acre proration pattern. It is in the south end of the 80 acre proration pattern section on the Holloway lease, just as the No. 2 Federal-Davis is on the south end.

Q But it is 1320 feet from the nearest well?

A That is right.

Q With reference to the spacing pattern as indicated in your Exhibit 1, what is the reason for changing the pattern from northsouth unit to east-west unit in Section 24 and 19 in the south part of the area?

A Primarily the east-west 80 of the Ameradas there in the northeast of 24, simply to fit the lease ownership.

Q Do you know, Mr. Branson, whether or not the original leases are two separate leases covering the east-half of 24 and the west half of 19?

A Of my own knowledge, no.

Q Would you, so far as the development of the field is concerned, if the field were to be continued on 80 acre spacing, object to the changing of your pattern here in Sections 19 and 24, to a northsouth unit instead of an east-west unit?

A So far as engineering is concerned, there would be no distinction.

MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that is all.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPIRONE 3-6691

MR. MACEY: Anyone else? Mr. Rieder.

## By MR. RIEDER:

Q You mentioned before that there might be six additional wells drilled?

15

A Yes.

Q Could you give me an idea where?

A The question as asked was to give complete development on 40 acre spacing. For those six there would be, besides the one being drilled on the south end of the Holloway lease at the present time, there would be two additional Holloway, two additional Federal-Davis, and two, either one or both of them might be questionable, one on the Wilhoit and one on Cox.

Q On this 80 acre spacing pattern there would be no further development?

A As to that, I can't say for sure. Within the 8530 contour as we understand it at present, there would be no additional wells.

Q On the Holloway No. 2 from the contour, if the contour is correct, the well hasn't got a chance of being a producer?

A That is correct.

Q It would have had a better chance if it had been the northwest to the southeast?

A That is correct.

Q It would seem that the northwest to southeast would have been a more practical location and still proved the southern end of your contour.

A I expect that location was staked for other than engineering reasons.

MR. HINKLE: May I ask a question to clear that up?

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. MACEY: Yes. MR. HINKLE: Do you know whether or not any demand was made 16 by royalty owners? A I do understand it was an offset to Federal-Davis No. 2 that was responsible for the staking of that location. MR. RIEDER: No further questions. MR. MACEY: Anyone else? MR. CAMPBELL: Does your company just automatically meet those demands? A In a good share of cases -- I don't believe I could state the company policy. MR. MACEY: Anyone else have a question of the witness? By MR. MACEY: Q I would like to know, Mr. Branson, whether you consider the present top allowable for this pool, and taking the pool in its entirety, you consider that that figure, which is 264 barrels a hay, do you consider it excessive from the standpoint of economic, A I think it is excessive. Q There may be circumstances where you could produce it without? A There is, isolated on the structure, where the wells are papable of producing that without coning the water into them, there are isolated cases; in most of the field that is not true. Q Can you explain why the Federal-Davis No. 2 which is completed only 12 feet from the oil-water contact, isn't producing any water, yet it is producing at high rate? A It has been restricted to 125 barrels since its completion. We had water in some wells completed higher than that before we ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDINE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEFINITIES 3 0501

17 completed the Federal-Davis No. 2, and as of the first of July, it is producing 125 barrels per day. Q How much is the Federal Davis No. 1 producing? 230 . Q What about the Wilhoit 1? A 206. These tests are as of July 1st. Q Do you have any information on the Cone wells of Gulf? A I do not know of my own knowledge what they are producing now. It is my understanding, however, that with the appearance of water in Gulf Cone No. 2 its production has been restricted to someplace in the range of 125 to 150 barrels per day, and No. 1 is producing approximately the allowable rate, just as the Federal No. 1 Davis is. That is purely hearsay. Q Did you use any geophysical data in order to make the interpretation of your possible oil-water contact on your Exhibit No. 3, I believe. A The structure map itself is based, with the exception of where we have sub-surface control, it is based on geophysical data, yes. As far as the water level itself, that is based on where we found the water in the Cooper No. 1. Q Is there a possibility of a tilted water table? A Yes, I would say there is a possibility. Q Do you have the top of the Devonian on the No. 1 Cone? It is not very important if you don't have it on your exhibit.  $\Lambda$  8463, it is on this exhibit. I thought it was on all of them. Minus 8463. MR. MACEY: Does anyone else have a question of the witness? If no further questions the witness may be excused. (Witness excused)) ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDIYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

## 1. B. EMING,

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

### DIRECT EXAMINATION

### By MR. HINKLE:

Q State your name, please.

A J. S. Ewing.

Q You have testified at the previous or the original hearing in this case, did you not?

A Yes, sir.

Q I believe your testimony shows that you were general superintendent for Jack Hamon?

A That is correct.

Q Do you know whether or not any agreement has been reached between Mr. Hamon, Warren Petroleum Corporation, Gulf 011 Corporation and the Amerada Petroleum Corporation, with respect to spacing units or proration units in this South Knowles area?

A Yes, sir, that was agreed upon at a meeting on June 7th, with the representatives of engineers and counsel of Gulf, Amerada; and Warren and Hamon.

Q What does this agreement consist of, essentially?

A Well, the proration pattern as shown on Figure 3 ---

Q That is the Exhibit No. 1, I believe? A Yes.

Q That is the pattern referred to and the same plat which is attached to the application for rehearing in this case?

A That is correct.

Q Does your agreement require the drilling of wells in either component part of 80?

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDTIFE REPORTER ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO DEEMENTER S 6001

	A No, sir, either 40 acres.
C	Q Are you familiar with the well which is being drilled at
	the present time in the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter
	of Section 13?
	A Yes, sir.
	Q Do you know when you expect to complete that well, or about
	when?
	A About the first of September.
	Q If you don't have any trouble?
	A If we don't have any trouble.
	Q Do you have any short-term leases that might be affected
	by that particular well, the completion of it?
	A Yes, sir.
	Q What
1	A (Interrupting) The west half, I believe, of 19, and the
	east half of 24. I understand the Amerada lease, also.
	Q That also includes the Amerada 80?
	A Yes, sir.
	Q Do you know when those leases expire?
	A November 7, 1955.
	$\mathbb{Q}$ In other words, if the Holloway No. 2 should prove to be a
	dry hole or a well that is so low that it wouldn't pay out, what
	would be the natural result, with respect to these leases to the
	south?
	A I would imagine they would release them.
	Q Or they would expire?
	A They would expire, yes.
	MR. HINKLE: I believe that is all.
	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TULEPHONE 3-6691

20 MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness? CROSS EXAMINATION Q Supposing the Federal Holloway well is a good well, what By MR. CAMPBELL: would be the result? A I hope it is. A I imagine they would start a couple right quick. Q What would be the result? Q On the basis of the spacing pattern that you suggest here, by the changing of your pattern to east-west in Sections 19 and 24, it would appear that instead of drilling two offsets to meet your unit requirements there, you would drill one. A Well, the Amerada have that 80, it wouldn't be our well. We probably would have to go over here, I would say, in the west Q If you drill one in the west half of 24 and drilled it, half of 24, wouldn't we -- 19, I mean. which you undoubtedly would, in the north tract there, --A (Interrupting) I mean the west half of 19. I beg your pardon. I meant we would have to go into 19 would be my guess. Q I am not asking you to commit yourself on what you would do I am trying to get the result of changing the direction of your units when you reach this point. I believe the fact is that there is unc lease covering all the east half of 24 and one lease covering all the west half of 19? Q If you followed the same arrangement you did up in the A That is right. north part of this pool, by making your offsets direct offsets to meet lease obligations in that fachion, it seems to me that by re-STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3.6691

arranging the pattern here, even though it was not the purpose for which you did it, that the result would be that you could hold the east half of 24 and all of the west half of 19 with one well each.

A Well, I wouldn't know about that.

Q Would you have any objection if the 80 acre spacing is granted, to changing the direction of the proration units in Sections 24 and 19?

A Well, personally, I wouldn't, but I wouldn't know what the management would do about it, but my guess would be they would be glad to do it.

Q So far as your management is concerned, it would be a benefit to them?

A It looks like it would.

Q Do you know of anything, Mr. Ewing, in the rules or the Statutes of New Mexico that prevent you from stopping your drilling program whenever you see fit?

A I am not an authority on New Mexico regulations. I wouldn't know.

MR. CAMPBELL: That is all.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have a question of the witness? If nothing further, the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, that is all we have. I would like to make a short statement in connection with this matter.

As I have already pointed out, we have come in here now with an agreed plan of all of the operators who are involved in the area, agreeing on the spacing and proration pattern. We have come under

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTED ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

that Section of the Statute that provides in that case where the operators so agree that the pattern, and agreement must be respected by the Commission unless the Commission finds that it would not be fair to royalty owners. There has been no evidence introduced here by Mr. Campbell or anybody else which would show that this plan is not fair to the royalty owners or that it would not adequately and fairly protect correlative rights. In fact, the only evidence that has been introduced in this case by Hamon and Warren shows clearly that all rights will be protected.

There is another aspect to this thing which I think ought to be brought to the attention of the Commission, and that is the economic aspect. It has been clearly shown here that this is a case where, if the Commission requires that this field be developed and the royalty owners insist upon it on 40 acre spacing, that there would be an economic loss to the operators. There would not be any additional oil actually recovered in the operation. If the Commission is going to take that position in connection particularly with these deep pools, it is certainly going to discourage development in New Mexico. I think it has always been the policy of the State by the laws which have been enacted by the Commission and encouraging development in the State, particularly with respect to State lands and Federal lands, and the State ultimately gets the benefit of that by reason of the operation, the money that is expended in them, and in connection with the Federal and State lands, by the royalties which accrue and also the citizens of the State by the royalties that accrue to them in connection with fee land,

I don't think the Commission should adopt any arbitrary rule that there should be no fields developed on 80 acre spacing pattern

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6591

I think when we come in with a case of this kind, when we clearly show it is economically not sound to develop it on 40 acres, that the Commission should have that in mind, that an overall general policy should be adopted that would encourage development in New Mexico and encourage the drilling of these deep wells which cost some 300,000 to 350,000 to drill, being 13,000 feet deep. If the operators get the idea that the Commission is arbitrarily going to shut them off from 40 acre development, they are going to be reluctant to come into New Mexico and develop the areas, particularly when we know from the experience of Lea County that the deep Devonian areas are small in size. They are pinpoints that do not cover large areas. That has been the experience generally in New Mexico.

I think that the evidence clearly shows that this is a case where we are entitled to have 80 acre spacing. It shows that the operators of the field are in agreement on the spacing and the proration units. It clearly shows that the royalty owners are not going to be hurt.

Another thing I want to point out is that up to date I don't think there is any evidence or statement on the part of counsel for the royalty owners showing that they actually have any royalty interest that would be affected in the probable producing area of the field.

MR. CAMPBELL: I would like to make a brief statement on behalf of the protestants. The Counsission has on file a list of the royalty owners who have entered an appearance in this case, and a tabulation of the mineral interests insofar as we were able to obtain them at the time of the original hearing. I think that the only question involved here really is whether or not it is

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENSARE REPORTS ALBUQUEROUS NEW MEXICO THERDONE 3-6601

necessary for the Commission in a situation where you have a field as poor as this one apparently is to enter an order establishing a wide spacing pattern. The wide spacing patterns that we have come upon in New Mexico have always been in either real good fields or real bad fields. When you get to a situation where you have a bad field, it is hard for me to understand, other than the proposition that it might avoid somebody suing them, which is a chance that I think they take when they get a lease contract, why the Commission needs to intercede. If he feels that a prudent operator would not drill any more wells or would drill his wells on 80 acre spacing or 160 acre spacing, then there is nothing to compel him to drill on any other pattern. What it amounts to is that the Commission, by entering an order for 80 acre spacing, is simply, in my judgment as I view it, coming between the lessor and the lessee in this contract.

Mr. Hinkle has said that they have an implied obligation to drill wells. That is quite true, as long as you are on 40-acre spacing; I think that implied obligation probably means each 40 acres, but if conditions are such that a reasonably prudent operator would not drill those wells, then that obligation doesn't exist and couldn't be enforced if the conditions in this field are what these people say they are. I am sure they are. I for one wouldn't try to get them to drill 40-acre locations. I don't think it is a matter to be decided in this form. I don't think it is a matter that the Oil Conservation Commission from the point of conservation and protection of correlative rights should decide in a situation of this kind. If the Commission should see fit to approve 80-acre spacing in this area because of the fact that the operators can't pay their wells out on 40-acre spacing, then there are two things

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE PEPORTEPS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEVIDIOUT 3-0601

that we would like to request that the Commission consider.

In the first place, to my knowledge there has never been in New Mexico at the outset a permanent 30-acre spacing order. They have been on a temporary basis and the operators have been required to come in at some stated time, usually one year, and tell the Commission what conditions have developed since the field went on this spacing. I suppose it is conceivable, though improbable, that Mr. Branson could be wrong and that this well they are drilling there against his better judgment, apparently, might turn out to be an oil vell. I suppose that is possible. If it did, and if the field started to develop back to the south, I think that it is incumbent on the Commission to protect the correlative rights of the royalty owners, that at least they had the opportunity by future information to request a change in the pattern. It keeps the operators and the Commission and royalty owners advised of the development.

25

We suggest first that it be a temporary period of one year if on 80-acre spacing.

Second, we would like to request that the Commission, if it sees fit to put it on temporary 80-acre spacing, to change the pattern insofar as 19 and 24 are concerned so that the promation units will run north and south, just as they do in the rest of the field. I can understand why, with this Amerada situation here, Amerada having received in some manner either the original lease and farmed the rest out, or having a farmout, I don't know how it worked out, but it is all under the basic lease where they have an emst-west 80 there that the simplest way, from the operator's point of view, to avoid pooling of interest, was to make the units east and west, but the way we view it, the result could be unfair to the

> ADA DEARNILEY & ASSOCIATES STENSING PERSON AEBUQUERCUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPIENE 3-6601

royalty owners, because if the well now drilling proved to be a well, instead of having to drill an offset to the Federal Holloway or the followay No. 2 and to the Federal Davis, or two wells to hold the entire west half or east half of Section 24, they would only have to drill one well in the unit lying to the north. We feel that if it is fair to divide these units north-south elsewhere, they should be divided the same way by the Commission in any order they may see fit to enter for temporary 80-acre spacing in this particular field.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have anything else? Mr. Hinkle.

MR. HINGLE: Mr. Campbell has mentioned about the implied obligations of the lease owners for full development, which I had mentioned a while ago, which might require us to develop or drill these additional wells, which would result in an economic loss. One of the reasons the Oil Conservation Commission was established was to determine in matters of this kind what proper spacing units and proration units should be in connection with proration. That is set out specifically in the Statute and I think we have a perfect Fight to come in here and ask the Commission to determine a spacing and a location pattern for this area, and that we not be left to the Courts as far as our lease obligations are concerned in that respect. As far as the temporary order of one year is concerned, we have no objection to that, If the Commission should see fit in entering an order in this case to make it a temporary order for one year, I think that would be all right. I think certainly at the and of the year by the drilling of this additional well which would be completed before that time, that it will determine whether there is any additional area there that needs to be developed and if

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE NEW MEXICO CELEDISSIN COMPACT

conditions warrant at that time that further development of it, I and sure that Hamon and Warren would be willing to go ahead and develop 27 it. They are as anxious as anybody else to develop anything that will show a profit. They are certainly not anxious to be forced to drill six or seven additional wells here which would be a total loss to them. I believe the record in this case will show that both the Gulf and the Amerada agreed to this form of spacing. I was informed that the Amerada had sent the Commission a telegram --MR. MACLY: That is right. MR. HINKLE: -- which shows they were in agreement. Mr. John Woodward, attorney for the Amerada, was present at the meeting where this spacing was agreed upon. He couldn't be here and I understand he sent a telegram. I understand that the Gulf has written the Commission a letter also, stating that they concur in the application and want the 80-acre spacing as it has been agreed upon. I would like for those, the telegram and the letter, to be made a part of the record in this case.

MR. MACEY: Very well. Mr. Malone, did you have a statement? MR. MALONE: May it please the Commission, Ross Malone for Gulf Oil Corporation. Gulf, as has been pointed out, is an operator in the South-Knowles-Devoniun Pool and is in accord with the application which has been made by Hamon and Warren for an 80-acre spacing order, with 40-acre allowables to be assigned, with the customary depth factor. In supporting that, I would like to point out, as I have mentioned on previous occasions, to the Commission that we view with a number of reservations any argument that this Commission should act or should not act because of obligations that exist between an operator and the royalty owner, Those are contractual

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTOR MEMORY AND ALBUQUE PONT, NEW MEXAND TELEPONE A DOAL

rights and not correlative rights. In this case, as we view the testimony which has been presented, the most important single part of the testimony is the testimony that if a 40-acre pattern is adopted, the number of wells that can be drilled will be doubled, and the rate of withdrawal from this reservoir likewise would be doubled. The testimony shows that in that situation both coning and boundary water encroachment are going to result with the result that there will be a waste and a reduction in the amount of oil that can be ultimately recovered from this reservoir. Under the Statute which created the Commission, that waste which would result from a spacing pattern of that kind is certainly the primary consideration which must be kept in mind, rather than the question as suggested in the argument as to the Commission acting because a well would or would not pay out for a particular operator. As we view it, the uestion of waste is the predominant question and the evidence shows that waste will result from a 40-acre spacing pattern, by reason of an increase in the rate of withdrawal from the reservoir, which will result in coning.

28

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have a statement or anything further in this case? Nothing further? We will take the case under advisement.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 35. JOUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

I, ADA DEARNLEY, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my hand and notarial seal this 21st day of July, 1955.

Hotary Public, Court Reporter

My Commission expires: June 19, 1959.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEFOINE 3-6601

,

, .

	BEFORE THE	
	<b>Gil Conservation Commission</b> Santa Fe, New Mexico	
IN	THE MATTER OF:	
	CASE NO	
	CASE NO)	
	TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS	
	ADA DEARNLEY AND ASSOCIATES	
	COURT REPORTERS 605 SIMMS BUILDING	
	TELEPHONE 3-6691 ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO	
~		

•

#### BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION CONVESSION Senta Fe, New Nextco February 16, 1955

IN THE MATTER OF:

Application of Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation for approval of an 30-acre spacing pattern and distribution of allowable in the South Knowlas-Devonian Oil Pool, Lea County, New Mexico.

Applicants, in the above-styled cause, seek an order permitting the establishment of an 30-acre spacing pattern and the assignment of allowable to the following-described acreage in and adjacent to the South Knowles-Devonian Oil Pool:

Twp. 17 South, Rgs. 38 East Section 12: E/2 S#/4; Sections 13 and 24: all

Twp. 17 South, Rgs. 39 Mast Section 7: W/2; Section 18: W/2; Section 19: W/2

## Case 319:

## TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, this is Case 319 on the Docket. The application of Jake L. Hamon and warren Fetroleum Corporation for 30 acre spacing to an area known as the South Knowles-Jovonian Area. This area is situated about two and a half niles south of what is known as the movies area which has heretofore been developed on an 30 acre spacing basis by an Order of the Commission. The applicants Jake 5. He for and warren, own approxinately 32 per cant of the acres of the basis to be she

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE ELFORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEFRONE 3-6691

producing area of this field. The Gulf has approximately 14 per cent, and the Amerada approximately 2.9 per cent.

2

Jake L. Hamon and Warren Petroleum Corporation are each the owners of an undivided one-half interest in the leases, and Mr. Hamon is the operator as between the two companies. There have been six wells drilled and completed up to date, and I believe one well is in the process of being completed at the present time. We have two witnesses. Mr. J. S. Ewing, who is the General Superintendent for Jake L. Hamon, and U. S. Branson, Jr., who is a Fetroleum Engineer for Hamon and Jarren. I would like to have them sworn.

# J. S. EMING

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

#### DIRECT EXAMINATION

By MR. HINKLE:

Q Mr. Swing, will you take the stand, please. State your name, please. A J. S. Ewing.

Q Where do you live, Mr. Ewing? A Dallas.

Q How long have you been employed by Mr. Hemon?

A Thirty-three years.

Q In what capacity are you employed?

A General Superintendent.

4 As General Superintendent, do you have charge of all of Mr. Hamoa's operations in New Moxico?

A I do.

a Are you familiar with those lease holdings in Hew Jexico?

A Yas, sir.

g Are you familiar with the area known as the South knowles-

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE PEPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPSONE 3-6691 Devonian area in Lea County? A Yes, sir.

A Yes, sir.

(Marked Exhibits 1 through 9 for identification.)

2 State to the Commission -- you might refer first to this Exhibit No. 1. State whether or not that reflects the ownership accurately of the leases in that area.

A It does, the map reflects it.

Q What acreage is owned by Hamon and Garren?

A About 32 per cent of the acreage within this area. Do you want to describe the Sections or not?

I Yes, I think you had botter give accurately the Sections and subdivisions owned by Hamon and Sarren.

A In 17 South, 33 East, northeast quarter and the southwest quarter of Section 12; the east half and the northwest quarter of Section 13; and the west half, south half of the northeast quarter and the southeast quarter of Section 24. Those are all in Pownship 17, South, Range 33 East.

Now, in Township 17 South, Range 39 East, the northwest quarter, the west half of the southwest quarter of Section 7; the west half of Section 18; the west half of Section 19.

That is an aggregate of about 2,240 acros or approximately 32.4 per cont of the lands in the probable productive area.

4 What is the acreage owned by the Julf Gil Corporation? A The Gulf is in Township 17 South, Range 30 East, the southeast quarter of Soction 12, and the southwest quarter of Section 13. In Fownship 17 South, Range 39 East, the sact half of the

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6601

southwest quarter of Section 7, containing approximately 400 acres, being about 14.7 par cent of the lands in the probable producing area.

Q What other company owns working interest in the probable producing area? A Amorada.

2. What acreage do they own?

A In Township 17 South, Rango 35 that, the north half of the northeast quarter of Section 24, being 30 heres and about 2.9 por cent of the probable producing area.

When you refer to the probable producing area, you mean the lands that are sut up in the application that has been filed have by Hamon and Marron? A Yes, sir.

Q That consists of about 2,720 ucras altogether?

A That is correct.

Q Do you know whether or not the royalty ewnership is uniform under the respective leases?

A I think, so far as we have used able to ascertain.

2 So far as you know, the only working interest owners in this probable productive area are Madon and Carren, the Gulf and the Amerada, is that right? A fact is correct.

3. Do you know whether or not the duli and amorada, what their attitude is toward dovelopting to the cross on an 30 acro spacing pasis?

A They have indicated they have to dayou of shet type of specing.

bottons from the dulf and music are commutationed to the application?
A that is true.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691
Q indicating they are in favor of the JO acre spacing? A That is correct. 5

MR. HINKLE: I believe that is all.

MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness? Mr. Campbell.

MR. CAMPBELL: I am Jack M. Campbell, Roswell, New Mexico. I would like to enter an appearance is this case for myself and Mr. John F. Russell, Attorneys at Roswell, New Mexico, on behalf of a number of property owners in the area involved, and in the areas adjacent therete, which could in the future be affected by the application. The list of the persons by whom I am authorized to enter an appearance in this case, all of whom are mineral owners, is as follows: Powhatan Carter, Anderson Carter, Powhatan Carter, Jr., Vallye M. Bardin, Robert H. Reeves, Carl L. Reeves, Luther Cooper, Virgil Linam, T. E. Mears, Jr., Lee Carter, F. E. Chartier, Roy G. Barton, T. O. Porter, C. A. Forter, Jenny A. Clinton, Edna Ray Reinhardt, Artis E. Come, Melba Jean Aldridge, H. V. Black, Fanny Holloway, and deatrice Howell. Mr. Mears is attorney and may perhaps wish to make some statement or ask some questions with regard to his own interest in this area.

## UROSS EXAMINATION

## By MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Am I correct that what you are seeking here is an order without any present time limitation for 30 acro spacing in the area covered by your application?

A That is right.

In other words, you are sacking a permanent order subject to future rules of the Commission? A Correct.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

2 Are you seeking to have this order cover any future extensions of the area of the pool that may be involved of which you are not now sware?

A No, not anything that I know of outside the area that we have submitted in the application.

Q Are you acquainted with the type of spacing pattern that you intend to use in this pool?

A No, I am not, because that would have to be determined in the drilling.

Q You are not presenting to this Commission any proposed ruture spacing plan for the assignment of proration units in this area?

A No, other than assigning 30 acres to a well, because subsequent drilling will develop the shooting and prove what information we now have, and you couldn't say for sure just whether they want to drill in the north corner or south corner or what, or east and west would be my opinion.

MR. HINKLE: I might state that the spacing pattern will be sone into by Mr. Branson, the engineer. He is probably the proper one to cross examine in regard to that.

() Do you have any information personally, or records with you to reflect the mineral ownership in this area?

A No, sir.

(i) I believe you testified that so far as you knew, the mineral ownership was uniform under each of the Langua involved?

- A That is as far as I know, yos, str.
- g Do you have any information with you with regard to the

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE, 3-6691

expiration dates of the various leases?

A No, I do not, other than what the map shows. Son't we have a map there?

MR. CAMPBELL: Perhaps that information will be brought out also.

MR. HINKLE: No, the expiration dates are not shown.

A Mr. Ewing, Mr. Ewing, I believe it was stated by Mr. Hinkle that there are four wells presently completed, or six wells presently completed? A That is correct.

Q Six wells?

A Yes, sir. That is, you are reforming--

Q (Interrupting) How many wells are now drilling?

A Two, one by the Gulf and one by Mr. Hamon.

Q I believe you offered Exhibit 1 there, this plat showing the location of the leases?

A No, there are seven. I will correct that, there are seven completed.

2 Beg pardon. A Seven completed.

Q Including the Federal Davis well?

A Yes, sir.

a The two walls that are drilling, one in the southeast of Section 12 and one in the southwest of section 12?

A Phat is right.

4 Mr. Swing, with the exception of the rederal Davis well, is it not true that all of these wells are normal 50 acre locations?

A Woll, looking at it on the map you would say they were, wouldn't you?

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

<u></u>	2 That is what I want you to look at.		
	A see, the original well was drilled and then both offsets		
	were started on each side before we had any reservoir information.		
	So we got into this pattern and now we are in a jam with it. I		
	think the engineer can clarify a lot of that for you here.		
	2 Do you have any knowledge about what other acreage is to be		
	assigned to those walls yourself, or will Mr. Branson have to bring		
	that out?		
	A I think Mr. Branson can give you that.		
	MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that is all from this witness.		
	MR. MACEY: Any further questions of the witness? If not, the		
	witness may be excused and we will take a short recess.		
	(Racess.)		
-			
	having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:		
	DIRLOT EXAMINATION		
	By MA. HTNKLE:		
	2 State your mans, please. A U.S. Branson, Jr.		
	4 There do you live? A Dallas, Texas.		
	4 Are you's potrolaus an incor?		
	a Yes, sir, 1 am a readstared processional engineer, petrolou		
•	enjineer consultant.		
	) Of what schools?		
	A Traduate of Souleicks College, relations, University of		
	transas and further graduate work to daily coupy of thick to.		
	2 How long have you are these to but produced on as to broleum		
	encineer? A About Steven years.		

- 2 What areas have you practiced it in?
- A You mean what fields have I worked?
- Q Yes.

A Woll, in the United States, from the Indiana Basin to

## California.

Q Have you been employed by any companies, oll companies, as a pstroleum engineer?

A No, I have worked for potroleum engineering outfits from the beginning. Core happratories, James Lewis Engineering Corporation, and myself.

Q Where are the Core Laboratories?

A Dallas.

Q Where is the Lewis Corporation? A Dallas.

Q You have been a consulting engineer for how long?

A On my own for nearly four years now.

Q Have you ever been employed by Jako Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Company in connection with any of their work?

A Yes, in connection with the South Knowles in particular. I have been working with the reservoir performance of that area since approximately three weeks after the well was put on projuction.

a when was the first well placed on production?

A In day, 1950.

. Have you sale a study of thespecticalar runa is the light of the walls that have been initial actuals of the Anoulos Aroa?

A Yes, sir, I have.

3 there is the Knowles trep with contreved to the conthess. or South Knowles-Devonian area?

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEFHONE 3-6691

A The Knowles pool is approximately two siles north and one nile west, or two and a half siles northwest of the south knowles area.

Q If you will refer to Exhibit 1, I would like for you to explain to the Commission just what this Exhibit shows.

A Exhibit 1 is a map showing the area known as the South Inowles Area and showing the development at the present time. It shows the seven wells that have been completed in the Devonlan and the two wells that are currently drilling.

Q Are you prepared to give to the domnission the data with respect to the wells that have been drilled in this area?

A I am. Exhibit 2 shows the completion date, the total depth by Schlumberger measurements, and the completion depth in feet subsea for each of the seven wells that are currently producing from the reservoir. The first well was completed in May of 1954, at a total depth of 12,174 feet. The oil producing interval is 5,445 to 70 feet subsea. That came data is given on each successive well that has been completed up to February 1st, 1955.

2 That is all shown on Exhibit 2 which you have prepared?

A That is all shown on exhibit 2.

4 Are there any wells being drilled at the present time which are not shown on the Exhibit 2?

A there are two wells correctly drilling tost are not shown on Exhibit 2: the L. Gooper so. I in the coatbreat quarter of Section 12, foundlip 17 South, design 35 must, build, drilled by Hamon and Larren. The Galf 4. 4. Sone do. 2 to she southeast quarter of the same soction. The completion fate is not lyon on those two

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENGTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

wells because they have not yet been completed.

a Can you tell the Commission the approximate status of those wells at the present time?

11

A I do not know the status of Gulf Core No. 2. Gulf Cooper No. 1 cored the top of the Devonian yesterday.

In your study of this area, are you propared to give to the Commission the information in regard to the reservoir data?

A From practically the beginning of the completion of Federal Davis 1 as a producing well, we set out to obtain or accumulate sufficient reservoir data to enable us to predict with reasonable reliability what the future performance of this reservoir would be. In a reservoir of this type at depths below 12,000 feet, it is essential that that data be obtained as early as possible to avoid making mistakes in the development that are extremely expensive to the operator.

With regard to that, we set up a program for coring and analyzing the cores on successive wells that would be drilled until we could obtain sufficient data. Then we feel a further core analysis would not improve it. Likewise, we measured initial pressure on the Federal Davis 1 prior to the completion of any further wells in the field; book a subsurface sample of the reservoir fluid and had it analyzed for pressure, volunt, temperature relations, and viscosithes. The factors that are used are incorporated in calculatin; preservoir perioduance.

Exhibit 3 is a summary of the data that had been obtained up to January, 1955. At that time we had corol or pertially cored, since we did not powetrate the entire soction in most of the wells,

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDIFPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPRIONE 3-6601

we did not core in most of the wells, we had cored four wolls and had the cores analyzed. We had recovered 107 feet of permeable productive formation. Defining there as permeable productive, anything showing a permeability as high as one millidarcy on core analysis. The range of permeability of all the cores was from zero to 445 millidarcies with an average permeability of 19.9 millidarcies for the 107 feet of permeable section encountered. The porosities varied from seven-tenths of one per cent in some of the importmeable sections up to 11.3 per cant of the bulk volume. with an average in the permeable section of 4.1 per cent. The residual oil saturation and water saturation given in the next two lines, 3.1 and 50.9 per cent, are additional data acquired during the core analysis. Of those two, the residual oil saturation is the only one that is used in engineering calculations. The productive thickness is given as 25 per cent of the gross section. This figure was taken from the core analysis from coring and analyzing some 380 feet of section in the Wilhoit No. 1 well, the only one that has penetrated anything like that, the main bulk of the soction.

Of the 380 feet that we cored, we found approximately 25 per cent of it to have an effective permeability. That further agrees with one well. We had a microlog on one well in the Knowles area northwest of this. The percentage shown before the microlog of the two sections, somewhat off 300 feet, was approximately the same. We deduced that, or called it simply 25 per cent of the gross section would be permeable productive section.

The original pressure seasured in the Fodoral Davis to. 1 in

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6631

July after production of loss than 15,000 berrols of oil, was 4,902 pounds on 36 hour shutin. The pressure offit up rapidly. 48 ran a pressure buildup on it. It built up rapidly for the first 12, reaching 4,902 before 24 hours, and remaining constant for the remaining 12-hour period. It was considered a stabilized reservoir pressure. We took the sample from the Federal Davis 1 after the build up test and had it analyzed. It showed a saturation pressure of 1,155 psig, a solution gas-oil ratio of 570 cubic feet per barrel; reservoir oil viscosity at 182° F., 4,900 psig of 0.43; formation volume factor 1,357; estimated connate water saturation, per cent of pore space at 21 per cent. That figure, it should be emphasized, applies only to the permeable productive section. The massive section with permeability of loss than one millidarcy is not included as 21 per cent connate water.

Q Mr. Branson, refer to Exhibit No. 4 and explain to the Commission what that shows.

A Prior to drilling the first well, a structure map was constructed from the shot picture and the first well located. The Exhibit 4 shows the current structure map that we are carrying on this particular reservoir. It has varied only in minor details from the initial shot picture, although this is primerily a subsurface control map, grafted on to the original shot picture.

Exhibits 5 and 5 are simply cross sections of the same well shown on Exhibit 4, illustrating the shope of the top of the Devonian from Exhibit 5. It shows that he the cort-west cross section from J. J. Cox Ho. 1, showing the cross of the structure at the Moderal Davis 1 and the dip to such sile. Exhibit 6 is a mortesouth cross section from the Federal Davis 2 up through the dulf

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

R. K. Cone No. 1, showing the same slope in all directions from the top.

Exhibit  $l_{i}$ , 5 and 6 actually sorve to illustrate our reasons for believing that this productive area that we have laid out here is essentially completely defined.

Q Is it your opinion that the acreage described in the application which consists of approximately 2,720 acres, would be the outside limits of all possibility of production in this area?

A Essentially it is my opinion there will be no production beyond that area. Practically speaking, there will be, or it is not expected that there will be any material, or very great change in this structure map, although some small changes are to be expected on drilling.

Q There could be slight variations that you would make after drilling additional wells? A Yes.

Q Which is always the case?

A Yes, there are always some variations in structure map shown by the drilling pattern.

Q You believe this does portray the productive limits of the area?

A Essentially I think it portrays the productive ligits.

2 Based on the Information you now have?

A Yes.

Are you propared to give to the Commission the productive platery of the wells in this area?

A In Exhibit 7 I have presented and production history of the South Knowles Field beginning when and production of the first

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

well, the Federal Davis No. 1 in May, 1954. It is presented here as the number of producing wells, the average daily oil production for each month and the cumulative production at the end of each month through December 1954. At the end of Decembor, there were five producing wells in the field, oil production averaged 777 barrels per day in December, and the cumulative production to January 1st was 123,102 barrels.

Q That Exhibit 7 then, shows the history of the production up to and including December, 1955?

A Up to and including complete December returns.

Q Now, Mr. Branson, if you will refer to Exhibit 3, and explain to the Commission what that plat shows.

A Exhibit 3 is a plat showing the reservoir pressures measured in January on the six walls that were producing at that time that had been completed to that time. All the wells were shut in on January 3, the pressure allowed to stabilize over 4d-hour period and then pressures were measured on each well, using the same bomb and the same operator.

The total range in pressures vary from 4,853 pounds, incidently, the reference depth is minus 3,450, about the center of the section. The pressures vary from 4,353 to 4,390, a total variation of not over 20 pounds from the average, which is within one-half of one for cont variation, or in other words, all pressures are, precticalby speaking, the same sithin limitations of bomb error. That articular graph, or that particular map, simply shows the pressure continuity existing from one corner of the developed reservoir to the other.

The production varied from a few humarol parrols ap to ever

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE BEPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

60,000 barrels from individual wells with no corresponding variation in reservoir pressure, indicating that all of the wells within the developed area are in substantial pressure equilibrium regardless of their past productive history.

A Mr. Branson, what does that show or tend to show, that they are in substantial pressure equilibrium?

A It would tend to show that they are producing from a common reservoir that is in connection with itself. That is their continuity and communication between the parts of the reservoir from one side to the other.

Q If you will refer to Exhibit 9 and explain to the Commission what that shows.

A Mr. Hinkle, I believe we are getting a little ahead of that.

Q Go shead, if you care to make further remarks.

A In connection with Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 9, they both come in following the resume.

In connection with the study of the reservoir, the first problem for the reservoir engineer to figure out is what sort of a arilling, pattern should be followed and what are the commercial prospects of the production. The reservoir data in exhibit 3 was collected to permit as nearly as possible calculation of recoveries from the reservoir and estimation of the general over-all economics of the production. From that data, we had calculated an everage convery of one hundred barrels per more flot of net productive eaction, which reduced by the fraction of not section to gross, beomes 25 barrels per gross acre foot from the top of the Devonian to the water level.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

In connection with that, the water level was determined in the Federal Davis No. 2 by drill stem tests. The well was tested from 8557 to 8590 and salt water having the same composition as the salt water produced from the Devonian in the Knowles Pool was found in the drill pipe. So the water level is at approximately the base of that test, or minus 8590 feet subsea. That is the basis, incidently, for the water level shown on the structure map, Exhibit 4 and on the two cross sections, Exhibits 5 and 6. With a total section then not exceeding the 215 feet found in Federal Davis No. 1, the maximum recovery per acre comes down pretty low, about 5,000 barrels to the acre in that particular area, which is the crest of the structure, and will grade down from there on.

So the problem of what kind of well spacing pattern to follow here reduces itself then as far as the operators are concerned, to a question of economics. The cost of these wells averages approximately \$300,000 per well. As a rule of thumb, the minimum recovery for which an operator can afford to drill consistently is approximately one barrel per dollar spent drilling. If the recovery falls much below that, the project becomes worse than marginal and will probably result in a net loss to the operator.

We had to figure on recovering approximately 300,000 barrels from each well. If the wells are spaced on 40 acre spacing, that requires a total of 7,500 barrels per acre. No section in that reservoir is thick enough to expect a recovery of that type. Reducing or expanding the spacing to an 80 acre spacing, on the assumption that one well would drain 80 acres, would reduce the required thickness to approximately 150 feet. That is not intended

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

to imply that no single well might or might not do better than the On the average, from the data we have collected, that is what you will expect. Essentially from an economic point of view, the operators then could not afford to drill on closer than 80 acre spacing. That economic aspect has inferences not only for the operators, but for royalty owners, but all others interested in royalty production. For, if an operator has to drill so closely that he cannot make any money out of an operation, there is very little inclination for him to go out on the market and acquire leases and drill additional wells. Forcing drilling closer than the operator can reasonably expect to profit on will tend to discourage further development. That, in the long run, hurts not only the operator, but also the royalty owners who might have wells on their property under a different system. Just as a practical proposition, then, it appeared that it would be necessary to drill this production on 80 acre or wider spacing in order to come out on the project.

Then, the next thing to be considered was could we drill it on 80 acres and reasonably expect to be able to produce it. In connection with that, the map Exhibit 8 is one piece of evidence that tends to prove that it is possible to drill this project. There is one thing I have forgotten in connection with the 80 acre spacing, and the calculated recovery. That is calculated on the assumption of a complete water drive. We feel there will be a water drive in this reservoir, first because we found water in the base of it in two places, and even more conclusive, is the fact that the Knowles Pool two and a balf miles to the northwest and producing from the same reservoir, has been producing under a very

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

effective water drive with the pressure drop during the first four years of production of only about 50 pounds on 24-hour shutin. Most of that 50-pound drop it is believed is probably lack of complete stabilization of the well. We have found it requires somewhat more than twenty-four hours for the wells to build up and complete. We have reason to believe that the field will produce under a water drive, and that the water drive will probably be largely a bottom water drive, rising vertically, if production is handled properly.

The evidence that the reservoir is in continuous contact, or in continuous communication is presented there, or one piece of evidence is presented in Exhibit 8 showing that the reservoir is in continuous pressure equilibrium from one side to another, certainly within all reasonable limits of accuracy and measurement. A very strong piece of evidence that one well would be capable of producing and draining adequately at least 80 acres, is the performance of a Knowles area two and a half miles to the northwest. Through July of last year, the last time at which that data was available, the Knowles area had produced about 24 percent of all the oil in place under the pool. The area, or the productive area datermined, incidently, from our own structure map, is approximately five hundred acres and there are currently seven wells producing from the area, a spacing of approximately 72 screes to the wall.

With the production of last July of 24 paramet of the oil in place, an indication that the probable recovery will run in the vicinity of 50 percent of the oil in place, which is extractly thorough and complete drainage even under water drive in this type

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3.6691

of reservoir, that in itself indicated that this formation couldbe produced and produced efficiently through one well to every 80 acres. Then the communication here over a total distance of more than 1320 feet spacing, in other words, considerably greater than any spacing you would encounter on any 80, reservoir pressure was the same.

In addition to that, after 24 hour additional shutin on the Federal Davis 1 which had produced more than any other well in the reservoir and actually through January produced about half of the oil produced, the well returned to its initial pressure, the 72 shutic pressure was 4900 pounds, or only two pounds below discovery pressure. The pressure is being maintained. The reservoir is in continuous pressure equilibrium throughout, indicating that over a spacing longer than 80 acres there is communication through the reservoir.

The last piece of evidence we are submitting on that is Exhibit 9. Among other tests we ran productivity index and buildup tests on these wells and compared the measured buildup curve on the Federal Davis 1 with the calculated buildup curve. For reference, that calculated curve was taken from Millor, Dies and Hutchison paper in Petroleum Technology. The calculated curve is for a well shutin at the sand face, or in other words, at the bottom. You have also a lag in pressure buildup due to the fact the flow continues into the well bore after the well is shut in at the top. So the section of thet curve from a dimensional standpoint 001 up to some place . Then is also falls below the calculated curve, reaching the calculated curve comeplace in that range and then it should, if our spacing arrangement is right,

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

follow it fairly closely. In this particular case the buildup curve for the Federal Davis 1 well corresponds almost exactly with the calculated curve for 160 acre spacing, indicating that the well is draining from outside of an 80 acre pattern and that we will be able to drain the reservoir thoroughly and completely on a spacing of 80 acres.

The last thing that we considered there in connection with that possible 80 acre spacing, is whether the spacing would be reasonable and equitable to all concerned or whether putting it on 80 acre spacing would perhaps give one operator an undue advantage or one royalty owner an undue advantage. All the leases in the area that we consider probably productive are 80 acres or more. To the wells that are already drilled, each of the wells already drilled can be assigned 80 acres, 80 productive acres on leases which they involve the remaining acreage can be divided in any of several ways into regular 80 acre patterns. That no pattern has been submitted here because several different ones could be developed. It is also possible, although we feel like our structure map is pretty good, it is also possible at any time too to find a variation of ten to fifteen feet in a top of a zone which might justify the drilling of a location not contemplated, or might cause us to move or abandon a location we had originally contemplated. The pattern has not been drawn and rigidly set pending obtaining more structure data in drilling of additional wells. Spacing this on 40 acre pattern, incidentally, will require that all wells be drilled, I say required, will force the operators to try their wells at the top of the structure only leaving the wide area around the fringes either undeveloped or developed at a loss to

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

22 the operator, which operation can't continue very long. In all, the wells are clumped at the crest of the structure and has to be drained from the flanks of the field by force as the actual drainage radius is going to be larger than the 80 acre spacing between wells. Whereas permitting drilling on the wider pattern would encourage the operators to develop out closer to the flanks because they can do so commercially and should result because of that in wells being drilled closer to the edges and actually in having a better aerial coverage than you would develop under the 40 acre spacing pattern. We feel that the evidence that we have shows the field can be drilled up and produced on 30 acre spacing and completely depleted, that all of the leases will break down readily into 80 acre patterns without doing any damage or disturbing any equities of any royalty owner or operator, that the resultant aerial coverage and ultimate recovery will be at least as good and probably better under the 80 acre than it would be under a forced 40 acre pattern, and that the result of this type of development or permitting this type of development, will be to encourage development of similar reservoirs rather than to discourage them by forcing the operators to luse money on his operation. Q Mr. Branson, were all of these exhibits and plats prepared

by you or under your direction?

A They were all prepared by myschl and under my direction.

9 From information which you obtained personally in analyzing cores, logs and so forth in connection with the wells?

A I did not analyze the cores. I did check the logs, of course. They are from information obtained by myself and by service companies working for the people I represent.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q More or less by way of summary of your testimony, state to the Commission the factors upon which you base the aerial extent of the area.

A The aerial extent is based on two things. The structure map shown in Exhibit 4 and the oil-water contact found by drill stem test in Federal Davis 2. The structure map is a composite of several shooting pictures. There were three shot pictures before the original structure map was drawn. On that we place each well as it was drilled with its proper subsurface Devonian top. The number shown on Exhibit 4 are the subsea top of the Devonian in each case. There have been some changes in the structure map but none of them of any material size. So apparently our initial, or the initial shot picture map was fairly close to what the structure is going to develop, and as confirming evidence on the structure as presented in this particular map, the Gooper 1 cut the top of the Devonian yesterday within less than ten feet of where it is shown on the structure map.

So all the data that we have to date indicates that map is accurate and that the productive area will be approximately as shown here, which is not meant to imply that it may not be moved out to some extent in any one direction.

Q Mr. Branson, by way of summary of your testimony in regard to the water level, state the factors on which you have your statement that this is a water drive and it is coming from the bottom.

A The major evidence that we have for the fact that it will be an effective water drive is, of course, the fact that another Pool in the same Devonian section and in this immediate area has

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

produced for a period of several years under a completely effective water drive. The reason that we think it will probably be a bottom water drive in this area, is the performance of the wells themselves. When producing their allowable several of these wells started producing a little bit of water from the bottom. On re-

24

ducing the production rate, that water fell out. Q Was that one of the wells on top of the structure?

The first well to show any water was the Holloway 1. At approximately the same time that showed water, the Federal Davis 1 on the extreme top of the structure began showing a little bit, which is usually a direct indication that in a couple of days you are going to keep going on at that rate you are going to have water at the bottom. We reduced that slightly and haven't had any trouble. But wells inside or wells at a lower level which have not been produced quite so long were making water while wells produced deeper in the structure were not making water, indicating

that the water did not come in from the flanks but up from below. Q Is the bottom water drive indicative of cnything as far as maintaining the position of the respective lease and royalty holders?

A As far as maintaining the position of the respective lease and royalty owners, yes, it will.

© I believe you have stated that in your opinion one well will effectively and economically drain as much or more than 30 acres?

9 State to the Commission what you base that statement on.

A That statement is based on the pressure continuity found in the reservoir without reserd for, or rather in spite of differences

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES

STENOTYPE REPORTERS TELEPHONE 3-6691

in production. It is based on the fact that a very similar reservoir in the immediate area is effectively draining 80 acres.

Q You have given some testimony with regard to the probable recovery per acre. I would like you to state again to the Commission upon what you base that statement.

A That statement is based on the calculated recovery by a completely effective water drive calculated by the standard permeability procedure which has been found to be applicable in similar reservoirs and the data obtained from the bottomhole sample analysis and core analysis. It is a standard engineering calculation.

Q I believe you made a statement to the effect of the average cost of the wells at \$300,000. That all wells, or practically all wells drilled on 40 acre basis might prove to be marginal wells. What basis do you make that statement on?

A The total productive section from the highest well in the field to the water level is 215 feet, allowing 25 percent factor, that allows to about 50 net effective feet at 100 barrels per acre foot, 40 an acre spacing, a little over 200 barrels to the well. It means that each well is going to cost you a dollar and a half drilling cost to drill and complete the well for each barrel of oil you ever make. By the time you finish paying production costs, taxes and so on on the well, there will be no profit and in all probability will have lost money for the operator. The best well in the field at the very best will be marginal with the probability of it being a losin; vesture.

9 I believe you have also about it your testimon; that it

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENGTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

each well, and also that the spacing of the wells, the wells now located lend themselves to 80 acre spacing?

A Yes, from the map, Exhibit 4, it can be seen that 80 acres, 80 productive acres essentially can be assigned to every well. The reason for not laying out additional wells or a proposed set drilling pattern, the first of course is that it had not been agreed upon by the different operators in the concern. The second is the possibility that we might encounter the top of the Devonian in the next stepout well at 15 or 20 feet difference from where we expected it, which is certainly within the limits of probable variation. That might justify shifting the pattern from the northsouth to east-west 80 and drilling additional wells on the royalty owners property. Whereas if it were fixed to begin with, we would not have the flexibility and might prevent us from developing to the extent it should be developed some of the flanked leasos.

C Allowing some flexibility would be to the benefit of the royalty owners as well as the working interest?

A The interest are identical in that they are to obtain the maximum amount of oil to be obtained. The additional interest of the operator is that he not lose money in doing so.

0 In asking for an 80 core spacing here, what ellowable is being requested?

A We are requesting the normal 40 acro allowable with the dopth factor. No additional allowable is requested for the sail aing of the 80 acres. We fact this is necessary because of the character of the reservoir with the bottom unter arise. Hules bottom mater drive and producing at escately rates, the vetor from the bottom will to on inter the vette, forcing much surplus and

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6591

26.

correspondingly earlier rise in water cut and premature abandonment and also blocking of oil back in the reservoir which could migrate into the well bore.

27

We have asked for the normal 40 acre allowable for wells of this depth rather than the increased allowable, to minimize the likelihood of that occurring, and therefore increase the prospect of obtaining the most probable oil from the reservoir.

Q It has been established by reason of the too rapid production of the wells on top lead to the encroachment of water?

A It has been established that coming does occur in this reservoir.

Q In your opinion would this plan of development on the 80 acre spacing basis and the allocation of one 40 acre allowable plus the deep well factor to each 80 acres be fair both to the working interest owners and the royalty?

A It is my opinion it would be fair to both working interest and royalty.

Q In your opinion would it be in the interest of conservation and prevention of waste?

A It would be in the interest of conservation and prevention of waste.

Q State whether or not in your opinion the greatest amount of oil will be produced by developing on 80 acre basis or 40 acre basis.

A The amount of oil produced under either extern, according the same geographical coverage would be approximately the same. Under the discouragement for drilling that results from a closer spacing, it is doubtful that ap equivalent geographical coverage

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

28 would be obtained on 40 acre spacing that would be obtained on 80. It is probable that the 80 acre spacing will actually result in more ultimate recovery. Q In your opinion will the 80 acre spacing and this allocation of production allow each lease to recover its fair share of the recoverable oil in the reservoir? A Tes, the reservoir pressure will be maintained by the bottom water drive and each well will produce its own oil essential. Q Is there any other information you would care to give to the Commission? A No, I believe that covers it. MR. HINKLE: That is all. MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness? MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, sir. MR. MACEY: Mr. Campbell. CROSS EXAMINATION By MR. CAMPBELL: Q I might state to climinate any question about our position on this, the people that have entered appearances as mineral ownars have no objection to the reduced allowable on 40 acre basis if the 80 acre spacing is granted, or the present control of the production from each of the individual vells. Our question is whether or not the reservoir will be destined title of sure spacing and whether or the the rights of the country orders individually will be afforted. I bolleve you which that you working with this reservoir performance clace incrediately after the completion of the raderal David 10. 1 mill? A Yes, I don't recall the exact lines duy, let it was within

> ADA DEARNILEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

28 would be obtained on 40 acre spacing that would be obtained on 80. It is probable that the 80 acre spacing will actually result in more ultimate recovery. Q In your opinion will the 80 acre spacing and this allocation of production allow each lease to recover its fair share of the recoverable oil in the reservoir? A Yes, the reservoir pressure will be maintained by the bottom water drive and each well will produce its own oil essential, Q Is there any other information you would care to give to the Commission? A No, I believe that covers it. MR. HINKLE: That is all. MR. MACEY: Any questions of the witness? MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, sir. MR. MACEY: Mr. Campbell. CROSS EXAMINATION By MR. CAMPBELL: C I might state to climinate any question about our position on this, the people that have entered appearances as mineral owners have no objection to the reduced allowable on 40 acre basis if the 80 acre spacing is granted, or the present control of the production from each of the individual wells. Our question is whether or not the reservoir will be drained with 80 ears spacing and whether or not the rights of the royalty owners individually will be affected. I believe you sinted that you wore working with this reservoir performance since immediately after the conplotion of the foderal Davis No. 1 wall? Yes, I don't recall the exact first day, but it was within

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-5691

		29
	a very short time.	
~	Q You have been observing the production from each of these	
	wells since that time? A Yes.	
	Q When did you feel that you had established the water-oil	
	contact in the Federal Davis No. 1?	
	A Approximately, well, it was in January, early in January.	
	The water-oil contact, now wait just a minute.	
	Q Wasn't it Federal No. 2 or No. 1?	
	A It was the Federal Davis No. 2 not No. 1.	
	Q Until you got the water in the Federal Davis No. 2, you	
	didn't know where the water-oil contact was?	
	A We did not know for sure where it was, no.	
•	Q Have you recommended the location of the wells that have	
	heretofore been drilled in this pool?	
	A No.	
	Q Have you in connection with your study of the reservoir pe	<b>r-</b>
	formance, been consulted about it? A Yes.	
	0 Vell	1
	A (Interrupting) Just a minute, do you mean have they con-	
	sulted me as to where to establish the exact location, or what	
-	kind of a general specing pattern to follow?	
	O The general spacing pattern to follow.	
	$\tilde{\mu} = \Sigma \mathbf{es}_{\bullet}$	
	C. Men did you first decide that the sattern to follow was	
	a vider spacing than 40 acros? A About October.	
	() October of 1954?	
	A Approximately in October why the first time that general	
	communication was put out.	ļ
-	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES Stenotype reporters ALOUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691	

Q By that time you had drilled the Wilholt No. 1 and the Holloway No. 1 in addition to the discovery well?

A Those two wells had been completed, yes. Two additional ones had been started.

Q Since that time, Hamon has drilled Cox No. 1, Cone No. 1, and Gulf has drilled the R. K. Cone No. 1 and their Cooper No. 1, on 40 acre stepouts, haven't they?

A Each of those wells have 80 acres assigned them. They are on an apparent 40 acre pattern. Each of them fits into an assignment of 80 acre tracts.

Q But the wells are now clustered at the top of the structure on 40 acre spacing?

A They are clustered across the structure in the northern third of it, yes. However, that statement implies that after the general discussion at the early part of October these wells were started. The wells were actually already drilling. They had already been spudded.

Q Was it from May of 1954 until October of 1954 from the production history of the discovery well before you decided this wasn't a very good reservoir?

A No, it was not that long before I discovered it myself. However, we had no evidence at that time as to what the base of the reservoir might be and had we had a thousand feet of section above water, or five hundred feet of section above water, the economic picture would be different from what it is with two bundred feet. So the conclusive evidence was actually, as to the opposite, was actually not available with the conty part of January, although from a generalized engineering basis it was apparent that

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

the per acre foot recovery was going to be low from almost the beginning.

Q Have you had any previous experience with the fields in New Mexico other than the Knowles field to the northwest of this one which have been developed on 80 acre spacing?

A Not that have been developed on 80 acre spacing in New Mexico, Devonian Field directly, no.

Q You have experience in other Devonian Fields in Texas perhaps? A Devonian-Ellenburger.

Q Have most of those been on a uniform 80 acre spacing pattern?

A Some of them are, some are not. It depends on the stage of development at which time the facts become known, and also on the size of the reservoir.

Q As a reservoir engineer, do you feel that it is better from the point of view of ultimate recovery and proper protection of the correlative rights of the owners that the 80 acre spaced field or any field on any spacing pattern be reasonably uniform?

A As long as the aerial coverage is approximately the same, that is the geographic coverage over the reservoir itself is approximately the same, and as long as under any pattern, as long as the individual royalty owners and operators wells are so located that they can drain adequately the lease under consideration, I feel that the correlative rights of both operators and royalty owners would be served by any pattern whether regular or invegular.

Q From the point of view of reservoir engineers, whether you use a 40 acre allowable or half of a 40 acre allowable as you are now using, or whatever production you have in a water drive field,

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

where you have wells that are situated closer together in one particular area, particularly at the top of the structure, do you think that that is a proper way to fully drain the reservoir? 32

A To the extent that we can keep that water level flat, that is never perfect of course, but to the extent that we can keep that water level flat, each of those wells will drain the reservoir underlying the top of the Devonian which is in effect what part of the reservoir is in existence there, and to the time that the water reaches the top, say for example, in the lowest well, the Federal Davis 2, the wells will have to drain effectively on the same allowable from the reservoir lying below it. The Federal Davis as an example, will have recovered its fair proportion of the well because it will have recovered its portion of the oils that was in existence, or in place at the time of its discovery.

Q One or two other questions about the development up to date as related to your application. You have stated that the information you have obtained from the wells that have been developed has indicated that your original structure picture was reasonably accurate? A Yes, sir.

Q Not deviated from to any extent?

A No, to a large extent. There have been some variations, of course.

Q Could you tell me from the history of the field as developed, why you didn't diagonally step out from some of these locations and drill the wells on 80 nores to start with?

A on the last step out that was mode, the Puderal Davis 2, that was done. It was stopped rather long stoods. The other wells

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPYONE 3-6691 with the exception of the Cooper 1, were also established prior to the general discussion in the early part of October, not only established, but drilling prior to the general discussion in October and it was too late to move those wells at that time.

Q With the exceptions of the wells, of course, that have been started since that time?

A I don't know. I don't remember the exact starting date on the other wells. However, there cannot have been by Hamon and Warren over two wells that have been started since then, one of which is a large stepout. The R. K. Cone of Hamon was drilling at that time.

Q The R. K. Cone of Gulf was apparently drilling at that time also? A Yes.

Q The R. K. Cone of Gulf's and the Cooper No. 1 of Hamon were not drilling at that time?

A I can't say for sure.

C They haven't been completed yet?

A No, they are not completed at the present time, but the Cooper 1 is approaching completion. I do not know the exact date they were started.

Q Your application states that the operators had agreed upon a plan of spacing for this pool. I assume that plan now is to assign 80 acres to every well and work it out as you go along?

A Yes.

C Het a uniform plan of sphering? A That is a plan.

0 Then was that plan agreed upon?

A That plan has been discussed off and on since October. I believe it would be January before it was actually agreed to.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES Stenotype reporters ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. MINKLS: If the Commission please, I would like to mak a statement in that connection. I don't believe the application says specifically we have agreed upon a plan of development. We state there that the Gulf and the Amerada have indicated that they are agreeable to go along developing this on 80 acre basis, and attach letters from Gulf and Amerada which speak for themselves, of course. We can't go outside of those letters.

MR. CAMPBELL: I wouldn't want to make an issue of it, but your application, Mr. Hinkle, does state in paragraph 7 that the applicants or the owners of 82.4 percent of the working interest cover the probable productive area and have agreed upon a plan for spacing of wells in the development of said area. Also, upon plan and method for the distribution of the allowable findings by the Commission. I realize that covers the applicants only.

MR. HINKLE: That is right. That is the substance of the agreement, but there is nothing in writing about it, the extent of our agreement is shown by the letters that are attached.

MR. CAMPBELL: I don't have a copy. There were none attached to the copy that I received.

Q Do you know anything about the mineral ownership in the Hamon area in the north part of Section 13 and the south part of Section 12?

A I don't know exactly what you mean by do I know anything about it.

Q Do you know whether the Warren Foundation owns any sizeable amount of minerals in the area covered by the presently producing wells? A Co, I do not.

Q Mr. Brauson, in connection with your Exhibit No. 3, I

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

believe you stated that most of the wells, in most of the wells you did not penetrate the entire Devonian section?

A Yes.

Q Did you penetrate the entire Devonian section in any of the wells until the Federal Davis No. 2?

A Actually we have never penetrated the entire Devonian section. We haven't the faintest idea how much there is below the bottom where we found it. The Wilhoit penetrated the largest part of that section and that is the most penetration that we have had.

Q How much is that roughly?

A Actually the amount of core that we had analyzed is about 380 feet. I don't have the exact number. It is that plus minus ten feet.

Q You had not reached any water-oil contact in that?

A We had reached the water-oil contact. We drill-stem tested water at that level.

Q Are you satisfied that was a water-oil contact?

A No, we do not believe it was a water-oil because the Devonian oil contact in the Federal Davis 2 was non-porous and impermeable. We feel that we did not get water at the higher level in the Wilhoit 1 is due to that fact.

G Are you satisfied in your own mind that you have definitely determined the water-oil contact in this recervoir?

A Yes, sir. We sampled the water from the Mederal Davis 2, had it analysed, compared it with the analysis of the produced water from the Holloway No. 1 and which the analysis of the produced water in the Knowles area from the same reservoir just northwest of

us, and assemulally the times concerned associates condition of conditions stenotype reporters Albuquerque, New Mexico Telephone 3-6691

and iron distribution.

Q Do you customarily determine the water-oll contact by the comparison of some other separate oil pool? Is that the way you made the determination?

36

A No, we made it when we got water on drillstem test in Federal Davis 2.

Q You are satisfied that was water-oil contact and not water of some other kind?

A I am satisfied that is Devonian. The amount of it produced would not compare to the amount produced by pressure drawdown in connate water. That it is Devonian water or that the water lies at or below minus 4590.

9 You stated, I think in your Exhibit No. 3, you set up the average permeability and average porosity. Which wells did you take to make the core analysis on?

A Federal Davis 1, Wilhoit 1, Fanny Holloway 1 and a few feet from the top of the Federal Davis 2 were analyzed. There was so little change in the average values after the first two wells, we did not consider an appreciable improvement on our average values would be valuable in analyzing more core.

7 Your Federal Davis 1 and Vilhoit No. 1 are the basic cores for your conclusions?

A Actually there are more foot from the Milhoit 1 than from the other because more foot included. Averages from the Sederal Davis 1 and Holloway 1 and Mainrik Davis 2 and combining theo made only very slight variation from 3.05 to 4.115 average perosity, for example.

9 How many foot of course did you analyze in the Milhoit No. 1?

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A	About	380.
---	-------	------

Q Do you have your core analysis with you?

A No, I do not.

Q All you have are your conclusions, is that right?

A All I have is the range and the average.

Q Do you consider that range of permeability from zero to 445 milidarcies considerable range of permeability?

A Well, for fractured vugular Devonian section I don't think it is considerable range.

Q Do you have any sufficient core analysis from your Federal Davis No. 1 or either of the other two wells which you have cored to some extent to indicate any comparison between the permeability and the core in the Wilhoit with the core in the other well?

A Actually I have better data than that in the specific productivity index of the wells. The specific productivity index is the producing capacity of the foot of section open. With the exception of the one well that is not completed in the same fachion as the others, all of the indeces are essentially the same, varying from 006-008 on all wells. So that the formation itself is very consistent.

C You consider that the persechilities and percently in the field is uniform?

A lo, the fact it is not uniform is given in the range as shown here.

O Where you have a reservoir, Mr. Dranson, that has considerable variation in permeability and percently, ion't it possible that if you do not develop it on a reasonably close spacing, that you may not be able to recover the ultimate amount of oil that you do on wider spacing?

A If you have continuous connection or continuous communication between all parts of the reservoir, which we apparently do have in this particular field, and which apparently does exist in the same formation in the immediate area, provided that you do not create excessive drawdowns by producing at too high rates for the reservoir to maintain, and provided that you maintain reservoir pressure or that reservoir pressure is maintained by an outside force, which apparently is here, it is at least theoretically possible to drain the entire reservoir with one well at the crest of the structure. So with regard to that, as long as the wells are produced properly and the well is handled properly, yes, the recovery should be as high as can be obtained.

Q I believe --

A (Interrupting) There is one other item in that though. I don't know exactly what you are driving at. It would be possible theoretically by stripping all the surface beds of this and producing it all from --

Q (Interrupting) -- mining it?

A Yes, from zero spacing to recover more oil than you can under any other pattern. Up to a spacing of 250 actually a little above that up to ten or fifteen acre spacing, closer spacing will recover somewhat more oil. After you get out past say twenty acre spacing, however, the shape of the pressure curve from the producing well is so flat there is no practical difference between the different spacings.

Q It then becomes a matter of economics?

A Yes, it is essentially a matter of economics from there on,

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

, 14 <b></b>	and rate of production. You could produce them somewhat faster on a closer spacing than on the wider spacing.	
	Q Mr. Branson, in December I believe that the production	
	from all of the Hamon and Warren wells at least, was cut back con-	
	siderably.	
	A On a number of them it was cut back, yes.	
	Q Was that upon your recommendation?	
	A Yes, sir.	
	Q And what was your reason for that?	
	A The appearance of water in the wells.	
	Q Was the water appearing in all of the wells, or did you	
	just decide to cut them all back proportionally?	
	A The water did not appear in all the wells. We started	
	cutting as soon as the water appeared in the first well. The	
	reduced rates were determined from the conventional bottom water	
	coning calculation.	
	, Q Have you since that time maintained production at approxi-	
	mately the same level as December?	
	A Well, we varied the production to some extent when we were	
	testing the wells. We made productivity index tests, measured	
	pressure buildup tests and shut in the entire field for a pressure	
	survey. In general, we have been producing as close to those ind	
	cated correct rates as we could.	
	Q Your water production has disappeared?	
	A Almost completely. Yes, there is one well still in the	
	field from which we get a little water occasionally. Not consisten	
	2 A few questions on the aconomic proposition. At the time	
	that you decided to get lack the production from the Federal Davis	
	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS	
		ł
---------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------
		40
	No. 1, that well had produced approximately 52,000 barrels of oil	
<ul><li>↓</li></ul>	in seven months? A Yes, sir.	
	Q Under a normal 40 acre allowable with a deep well factor?	
	A Yes.	
	Q Now, it is cut back from, that well wasn't cut back accord-	ł
	ing to my information. I assume that information is wrong. Did	
	you cut back the Federal Davis 1?	ļ
	A Very slightly because the information was that the well was	<b>ķ</b>
-	capable of producing at that rate.	
	Q It didn't have any water, is that right?	}
	A At the allowable rate it started making a little bit. We	
	cut it a little below and got rid of it. That is usually the first	ł
	indication of the appearance of water.	ł
	Q My records indicate that the well produced in November,	
	8100 and in December 8370 barrels, that is the latest figure I have	•
	It may have gone down in January, I don't know.	
	A I don't know. I don't know what the exact production is	ļ
	at this time, but it has reduced below that figure.	
	Q What do you consider producing a barrel of oil at that	
	depth costs?	
	A That varies from one operator to another. I have not run	
	that particular figure on this reserve. As long as the wells flow	
	and don't require any work over the cost of producing from that	, ,
	depth, is the same as producing from any other depth.	
	Q Is 32.00 net reasonable?	
	A I expect that is a reasonable figure for what we are re-	
	covering, yes.	
	Q From that well in a period of eight months, a hundred and	
-	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691	

.

¢

twenty thousand dollars has been recovered?

A Yes, assuming those figures.

Q Which assuming the 300,000, I am sure the original cost 300 and more. Q Assuming a \$300,000 cost of well which you did, that would at that rate of production would pay out in a period of some two years, wouldn't it?

41

A That would be true. However, the appearance of BS in that well indicated that either the rate had to cut down or water would break into the well. With the appearance of water in the well you get off the proposition of flowing a well. Pumping a deep well and flowing them, the production costs are very sharply different. Where there is very little difference in the cost of actually flowing a well whether 12,000, 18,000 or 2,000 feet deep, when you start lifting the fluid, when it no longer lifts itself naturally, the

difference becomes marked and increases rapidly with depth. Q What do you consider a reasonable period of payout for an 011 Well?

A If the payout period is extended much beyond three years, there is very little inclination to, or there is very little encouragement for an operator to drill it. There are exceptions to that drilling in the center of the east Texas pool where there is long background of history and where it is about as safe as puttin it in Government bonds, you can stand a longer period. On reservoirs of this type and these deep Devonian reservoirs, small pools or deep limestone reservoirs in small pools don't have that kind of long-term ussured production, so you are involved in a pretty risky venture in the first place and the phyont period accordingly

		42
	must be shorter to justify investing the money in drilling.	+
4	Q I believe you did make the statement in that regard that	
	where this condition existed there wasn't much encouragement to	
	buy additional leases and do additional drilling?	
	A Well, now, no.	
	Q With what you considered to be a small recovery per acro?	
	A I believe what I said is that if operators, if the custom	
	or requirements are that they drill the wells on such a close space	Ing
	that they cannot pay out on the average, it will certainly tend to	2
	discourage any financial organization from going into that kind of	2
	a venture. If they know to begin with that the probabilities are,	•
	even getting good wells which these are good wells, that they	
	will be forced to drill them on such close spacing, they can't	
	make any reasonable profit there will be certainly little encourage	<b>1</b> 0-
•	ment for getting leases and drilling wells.	
	Q You are aware, Mr. Branson, that it is generally the	
	custom in New Mexico to drill wells on 40 acre spacing?	
	A It is generally the custom in reservoirs, I am not as	
·.	familiar with New Mexico as others. It is generally the custom t	4
	drill them on 40 acre spacing where you make your money out of	
	them, yes.	
	C You don't consider 40 acre spacing to be close spacing,	
	do you?	
	A For a pool of this type, yee.	
	O Do you know whether since this field has been developed,	
	these wells have been drilled and this information that you have	
\$	has been furnished to Mr. Hamon, that he is continuing to buy	
	leases in this area?	
	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES Stenotype reporters Albuquerque, New Mexico Telephone 3-6691	

1

A No, sir, I do not. I am a consultant and not connected with his land department.

Q Do you feel that he openly seeks the perforations that you have in these, wells which I calculate averages about 34 feet, is all that you can economically, and from a conservation point of view, properly utilize?

A You mean do I consider that that method of completing the wells perforating or completing them high in the section, is advisable?

Q Yes, and whether there may be other perforations that you can make now or some time later, that will recover or increase the amount of recovery per acre that you are referring to?

A No. I do not believe so. The recovery from a single well in a bottom water drive reservoir is a function of the percentage penetration. The smaller the PP the larger the recovery factor.

Q Do you really believe that you have on the basis of your information from your Federal Davis No. 2 well which is the only one which you feel you have made water-oil contact, that you can definitely say that this is a water drive field with a vertical water drive? Do you have enough information for that?

A Now the existence of the water level in the Federal Davis No. 2 does not imply water drive. The presence of an active water drive is predicated on other information. The other information is the fact that the same Devonian section in the Knowles Pool just two and a half miles northwest of it producing from the same general area wide formation does have a very active water drive as evidenced, by several years of production history. Further evidence within

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEFINONE 3-6691

the pool itself is, after the production of 60,000 barrels, that the reservoir pressure in this Federal Davis was exactly the same as on discovery, there was no decline. The pressure was being maintained by something. The third piece of evidence, or the reason I consider it will be a bottom water drive, is the fact that the wells on the crest of the structure did show some coning at the same time as well as lower down or earlier than wells lower down that had not been produced at those rates sufficiently, indicating that the water cannot only move from the flanks but directly up from the bottom. The water is apparently capable of moving up from below each of the wells, even the ones on the crest of the structure, and it seems to me to be fairly conclusive evidence from that fact that we will not only have an active water drive, but an active bottom water drive.

Q I believe you stated that in order to take advantage of that at the flanks of the reservoir, you thought starting now, stepping out with 80 acres, that you would reach the limits of the field sooner and be able to get the oil at that stage?

A No, I did not say exactly that.

C What did you say?

A What I said was that you would wind up economically with a better aerial coverage by drilling on 30 acres because that will permit the drilling of thinner sections closer to the water sections than could be drilled on 40. That is surally a commercial aspect.

0 I thought you had referred to the fact that people on the edges of the pool might get their acreage developed if they developed it on 80 by stepping out faster?

A Not faster, that I know of. Of course, if you jump a

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

location and don't have to drill the intermediate location first, you should get there sooner of course.

Q As you approach the edge of the field you are a little less inclined to jump those locations?

A That is the time when the theory and the practical inclination of the operator might run into disagreement, yes.

Q Bo you know anything about the expiration dates of the leases on the edge of this structure?

A I have heard them. I do not know what they are, no.

Q If I told you that the lease in the northwest quarter of Section 7, you could tell by the contour map, is maybe outside this field, I don't know, the one year lease acquired not too long ago expired in April 1955, and leases in the west half of Section 19 and the west half of Section 24 expire in November 1955, it wouldn't make much difference to the operator if he wanted to hold the leases if it was on 40 or 80 acres?

A There are always some considerations other than purely scientific in drilling a well. In the first well that was drilled you just shut your eyes and dig a hole where you hope to find some oil. They had considerable acreage they wish to prove or disprove. I could not go to an operator and say dig this hole, you are going to make an oil well. The possibility of making one, combined with the fact that they did have considerable acreage around it which to their mind justified the gamble of the money, that might occur on any other lease; I wouldn't, although from an engineering or geological point of view there might be little likelihood of encountering a payout well in some of the leases around here. It might be that the management of the companies would choose

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

1		46
	to drill them and take the beating of the lost drilling money just	
	to prove that the present picture is correct. On that, that is a	
	question for the decision of the people holding the purse strings	
	and it is	
	Q (Interrupting) That is when economics rears its ugly	
	head again?	
	A Yes, that is when our scientific advice may or may not be	
	observed, depending on how they feel economically at the moment.	
-	MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that is all.	
-	MR. MACEY: We will recess for lunch.	
	(Recess.)	
	MR. MACEY: Mr. Campbell, do you have any further question	B?
	MR. CAMPBELL: I have no further questions of Mr. Branson.	
	I want to ask Mr. Ewing three questions before he leaves. I am	
	through with Mr. Branson.	
	MR. HINKLE: We have no further examination of Mr. Branson	ł
	I would like to offer in evidence at this time, Exhibits 1 to 9,	
	inclusive.	
	MR. MACEY: Is there objection to the introduction of	
	Exhibits 1 through 9 in Case \$19? If not they will be received in	
	avidence. Is there anyone else who has any further questions of	
-	Mr. Branson?	
:	MR. RHODES: Yes, I have some.	
	CROSS EXAMINATION	
	By MR. RHODES:	
	9 Mr. Branson, could you give us some idea as to what these	
	wells are capable of making, that is, are they top allowable wells	Ì
	A All of the wells at the present time according to my	
-	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES Stenotype Reporters ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691	

understanding and from past tests we have made on them, are capable of producing the allowable that we have requested. They have all been tested for potential at producing rates above, I believe, the 270 barrels per day rate, or equal to it.

Q Have you ever calculated the optimum rate, or what we laughingly call the MER?

A I have calculated for each well completed in the field on the Hamon and Warren leases, the maximum safe producing rate at which the wells should not cone, yes. If you call it a MER, it has been calculated.

Q Could you tell me how that calculated optimum compares with the allowable which you are requesting here today?

A In all except one case it is below the standard 40 acre allowable, 40 acre with the depth factor allowable.

Q Even though the optimum rate is lower, you still wish the allowable to be assigned on the basis of 40 acres times depth factor?

A That being the standard allowable schedule in the state, and most of the wells being capable of making that, we thought it would be a good place to start as a maximum allowable for any well in the field.

Q You definitely do not want the 40 acres times depth factor plus 40 acres?
A No.

Q Which the Statute says you are entitled to?

A We don't want any allowable higher then the one we have requested.

Q Or lower?

A I can't speak for everyone else in the group on the lower.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES BTENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

<pre>serves in place in this reservoir? A Under the entire reservoir, no. A have calculated the oil in place per acre to the entire field would be simply perime G What was the figure that you arriv A You mean recoverable? Q No, total reserves. A Excuse me just a minute, I don't h have it in here someplace. Q Let's approach it from this angles factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is smact. C What was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that for place. However, it should be in the main Place. However, it should be in the main Wr. Pranson, you stated that you if on all these wells? A Under the set of the set of the set of the factor is the set of the set of the set of the factor is the set of the</pre>	ade a calculation of re-
<ul> <li>A Under the entire reservoir, no. A have calculated the oil in place per acres to the entire field would be simply perima?</li> <li>Q What was the figure that you arrive.</li> <li>Q No, total reserves.</li> <li>A Excuse me just a minute, I don't is have it in here someplace.</li> <li>Q Let's approach it from this angle.</li> <li>factor you were using in assuming your 1,0</li> <li>A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel.</li> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is start.</li> <li>Q What was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the margin?</li> <li>Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Wr. Pranson, you stated that you is on all these wells?</li> </ul>	
<pre>have calculated the oil in place per acre to the entire field would be simply perime G What was the figure that you arriv A You mean recoverable? Q No, total reserves. A Excuse me just a minute, I don't b have it in here someplace. Q Let's approach it from this angle. factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of th that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact. Q Mat was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the might O Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you is on all these wells? A Something in that immediate area.</pre>	
<pre>to the entire field would be simply perime G What was the figure that you arriv A You mean recoverable? Q No, total reserves. A Excuse me just a minute, I don't M have it in here someplace. Q Let's approach it from this angle. factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is sunct. Q What was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that for place. However, it should be in the make Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you if on all these wells?</pre>	Actually, of course, I
C What was the figure that you arriv A You mean recoverable? Q No, total reserves. A Excuse me just a minute, I don't have it in here someplace. Q Let's approach it from this angle. factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact. Q Maat was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the make Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Franson, you stated that you it on all these wells? A Something in the interval on all these wells? A Something in the state interval A Something in the inter	foot and to reduce that
<ul> <li>A You mean recoverable?</li> <li>Q No, total reserves.</li> <li>A Excuse me just a minute, I don't it have it in here someplace.</li> <li>Q Let's approach it from this angle.</li> <li>factor you were using in assuming your 1,0</li> <li>A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel</li> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact.</li> <li>Q What was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the make?</li> <li>Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you it on all these wells?</li> </ul>	eter acre of feet.
Q No, total reserves. A Excuse me just a minute, I don't is have it in here someplace. Q Let's approach it from this angle. factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact. Q Mat was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the minging. Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Promson, you stated that you is on all these wells?	ved at?
<ul> <li>A Excuse me just a minute, I don't is have it in here someplace.</li> <li>Q Let's approach it from this angle.</li> <li>factor you were using in assuming your 1.0</li> <li>A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel</li> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact.</li> <li>Q What was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the maight Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you is on all these wells?</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>have it in here someplace.</li> <li>Q Let's approach it from this angle.</li> <li>factor you were using in assuming your 1,0</li> <li>A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel</li> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact.</li> <li>Q Mat was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the maight Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you is on all these wells?</li> </ul>	
Q Let's approach it from this angle. factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact. Q Mhat was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the maigh Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you it on all these wells? A	have it in my mind. I
<pre>factor you were using in assuming your 1,0 A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel Q Yes. A I am not sure just which one of th that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact. Q What was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that is place. However, it should be in the noigh Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you is on all these wells? A </pre>	
<ul> <li>A (Interrupting) One hundred barrel</li> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the</li> <li>that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is</li> <li>exact.</li> <li>Q What was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that the</li> <li>place. However, it should be in the naight Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Franson, you stated that you it on all these wells?</li> </ul>	• What was the recovery
<ul> <li>Q Yes.</li> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact.</li> <li>Q What was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the neight Q. Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Promson, you stated that you is on all these wells?</li> </ul>	000 barrels
<ul> <li>A I am not sure just which one of the that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is exact.</li> <li>Q Mhat was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the neight Q. Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Franson, you stated that you is on all these wells?</li> </ul>	ls per net acre foot?
<pre>that in. The 100 barrels per acre foot is cwnet.</pre>	
<pre>exact. Q What was your recovery factor, do A No, sir, I have not reduced that f place. However, it should be in the neigh Q Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you i on all these wells? A</pre>	hese files I will find
<ul> <li>Q Mhat was your recovery factor, do</li> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that it</li> <li>place. However, it should be in the neight</li> <li>Q Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you it</li> <li>on all these wells?</li> </ul>	s correct, 101 to be more
<ul> <li>A No, sir, I have not reduced that the place. However, it should be in the noight O. Forty-five to 50 percent?</li> <li>A Something in that immediate area.</li> <li>O. Mr. Pranson, you stated that you it on all these wells?</li> </ul>	
place. However, it should be in the neight O. Forty-five to 50 percent? A. Something in that immediate area. O. Mr. Pranson, you stated that you it on all these wells?	you remember?
9. Forty-five to 50 percent? A Something in that immediate area. 9 Mr. Pranson, you stated that you i on all these wells? A	to percentage of oil in
A Something in that immediate area. Q Mr. Pranson, you stated that you i on all these wells?	hborhood of 45 to 50 percen
O Mr. Pranson, you stated that you i on all these wells?	
on all these wells?	
	had PI tests available
	That is correct.
C Did you bother to calculate back .	from your Pl to obtain
a check on your effective permeability?	
A Yes, we did. The average permaab	ility for the section

	╋
pipe and 1500 feet of sulphur water.	
an hour after cleaning water cushies, we shat in and pulled the drill pipe. We recovered several theorem feet of all in the dri	
The nates cushion was recovered, the wall flowed five barrels is	
A There was a good blow doring the initial part of the test	L.
C 85907	
drill sten test was from 6557 to 8500 subseq.	
A I don't remember how many minutes it was open or what the	
test available?	
test. Do you happen to have the particulars on that drillstem	
the oil-water contact in this reservoir on the basis of a drillste	11
C Now, you further testified to the fact that you established	
A Sure.	<b>.</b> 4
O Could you supply one for the Commission's consideration?	
A I do not have one with me, no.	
Q Do you happen to have a core graph available for inspectio	T
A Yes.	
you recorded a considerable interval in your Wilhoit No. 1?	
Q Vugular and fracture. You also mentioned the fact that	
and fracture porosity.	
A Most of it in the permeable productive section is vugular	
Devonian lime, is that in your estimation vugular porosity?	
Q (Interrupting) This porosity that you speak about in the	
more acid we got in them, the higher the	
bility because all of the wells have been acidized somewhat. The	
ly 25 milidarcies. That is somewhat higher for formation permea-	
to one factor for a net gross on the average would give approximate	ļ
from the productivity index is 6.6, which multiplied by the four	
	4

e

O That is a 33 feet drill stem test?

A Yes.

Q As a reservoir engineer, do you feel that a 33 foot drill stem test provides a basis for the definite establishment of the oilwater contact?

A The oil-water contact is either in that interval or in the immediate vicinity of the interval, or I should say probably in the immediate vicinity.

Q What would you say would be the maximum interval by which the water-oil contact could deviate from the depth limits of this drill stem test?

A That I should not expect it to be more than 10 or 15 feet from the bottom depth. In view of the other performance, I do not think we could lift water any further than that on a short-term drill stem test in this particular type of reservoir. It is unlikely to be much higher than the bottom or any higher than the bottom of that test, because if it had been we would have recovered considerably more water in proportion to the oil we did recover. We arbitrarily set it at the base. A shift of ten feet in the oilwater contact would actually make very little difference as far as the overall picture in the practicability of drilling wells is concerned.

Q You feel that ten feet would be the maximum, or let's say it could run as low as 8600, but that would be the maximum?

A I would think that would be about correct. I would hesitate to make an absolute flat statement on how many feet. That is merely a borderhouse guess.

O I see. You feel that that is a pretty well qualified guess

on the basis of the drill stem test?

A Yes, I think it is pretty close.

Q Have you or your client ever considered unitizing this area?

A That has been considered, I know. It did not seem feasible, it has not seemed feasible up to the present time.

MR. HINKLE: That is feasible in the sense of ætting everybody together on the unit.

Q Now, I would like to get one thing straight in my own mind, are Warren and Hamon applying for the permanent 80 acre spacing order or for temporary 80 acre spacing order?

A It is my understanding it is a permanent order.

Q Permanent order. Would you care to venture a guess as to how many additional wells would be required in that reservoir to adequately drain the area?

A With the understanding that this is just a guess, I should think about three would complete.

Q Three additional wells? A Three additional wells.

Q I would like to refer you to Exhibit 9 for purposes of illustration and particularly refer you to the northwest quarter of Section 19, better yet, I believe Exhibit 4, the structure map would serve the purpose better. A Yes.

Q I see by my ownership map here that there is a well drilling in the northwest, northwest of Section 19?

A Your ownership map is in error. There is no well drilling there.

Q Was a location over established there?

A I don't believe a location has ever been surveyed and established. I have no personal knowledge of it. It is my under-

standing that no location was established. In discussions in the offices, we spotted locations here there and yonder on the maps and talked about whether we would drill this one or that one or not. So far as I know, that location was never surveyed and established, no. That is my own information on the subject as far as --

52

Q (Interrupting) You think mayhaps this could have been placed, this particular situation, due to a mistake on somebodys part?

A I think that is more likely the case.

Q And that the well which they were talking about when they made the mistake was probably your No. 2 Federal Davis?

A I expect so, yes. I don't mean to imply that there will not be a location there either.

Q That is what I was coming to on my question about the northwest quarter of Section 19. Would you say there was an occurmence of hydrocarbon under that northwest corner in commercial quantity?

A From our present working, it would appear that there is hydrocarbon under that tract, that a well drilled in that tract would probably be marginal.

Q Would be marginal? A Yes. MR. RHODES: That is all I have.

A That, of course, as to the exact shift in that range of 10 or 15 feet could make a difference between the payout and not. I am not implying by anything I stated or trying to commit the operators either to drill or not drill that particular location.

MR. HINKLE: That is all I have.

		53
•	By MR. REIDER:	
	Q In your determination of this salt water contact, did you	
	use any logs? Did any of the logs taken show any?	
	A I believe there was some evidence no, I am afraid I	
	will have to back that off. There was some evidence in the Wilhoit	
	that we were in a salt-water at considerably greater depth than	
	this. I don't believe our information reflects any water contact	
*	above that, and since 8590 was the bottom that we cut there, we	
•	simply assumed that bottom was the contact, or that the contact	
	at most would be just slightly below that.	
	By MR. KITTS:	
	Q Mr. Branson, this morning you outlined the factors which	
	lead you to believe that there was a water drive in this field, one	
-	of those was the maintenance of pressure between the two tests?	
, ,	A Yes.	
	Q What was the interval of time between those?	
	A I should say the middle of July to the middle of January,	
	six months.	
	Q Which well? A Federal Davis 1.	
	MR. MACEY: Anyone else have any questions of the witness?	
	MR. CAMPBELL: This questioning brought one thing up I	
	would like to ask him about.	
*	By MR. CAMPBELL:	
	Q You stated the operators didn't think it was practicable	
	to unitize this field; why was that?	
	A I am afraid I am not really qualified to answer that ques-	
	tion because I have not worked on any unitization program. I was	
	simply informed at the time I was doing the reservoir work, that	
- -	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3:6691	

~

----

unitization would be from very difficult to practically impossible I am quoting what I was told, not what I know.

Q Were you told whether or not any of the royalty owners had been contacted either with reference to the unitization or the spacing plan?

A No, I was not told anything with regard to either of those items.

MR. CAMPBELL: That is all.

MF. MACEY: Anyone else have any questions of the witness? By MR. MACEY:

Q Mr. Branson, I would like to know, Mr. Rhodes I believe asked you a question about how many more wells you thought would be drilled in the pool under an 80 acre program. What was your answer to that question?

A I believe the field, what I said, I believe the field can be adequately drained by three additional wells. I am not in a position to say how many of the operators will drill. It is probable that there will be some dry holes drilled to prove our structure map.

Q Do you think in drilling three additional wells that although you will adequately drain the reservoir, do you think that the correlative rights of all the royalty owners will be protected by those three wells?

A Yes, sir, I do because the wells will be placed so, or the wells can be placed so, I should say, that they will drain the reservoir underlying the wells up to the top of the Devonian where they cut it. At the time, for example, as I used before, the Federal Davis 2 goes out, the well is gone. On an allowable

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

schedule all of the wells in the field will have produced the same amount of oil from below the top of the Devonian there, therefore, recovered what was in place under it at that time. Similarly, if you drill one in the southeast quarter of 13 on the Wilhoit lease, that is at the time that well became too wet to produce, it would have recovered its proportionate share of all the oil overlying the top of the Devonian in that area, which essentially amounts to its share of the oil in the pool. That condition would be true under a bottom water drive properly maintained and produced.

Q Taking, for example, the Wilhoit lease which occupies the west half of Section 18, according to your structure map of Exhibit 4, virtually the entire west half of that section or 320 acres is productive? A Yes.

Q Wouldn't that 320 acres be entitled to a total of four wells under an 80 acre pattern?

A Under a normal, I suppose it would be that, depending on the direction of the pattern certainly. The east half of that 320 however, is a question of commercial productivity. It is very questionable drilling that close to the strand line if you drill along the east half of it there, 660 feet west of the center of the section, any wells that you drill there according to our present structure map would not be commercial wells, they would not pay out.

Q I agree with you there. What would prevent the operator from drilling down the west half of the west half of Section 18?

A So far as I know --

each roll

0 (Interrupting) He could have easily dedicated 80 acres to

4 To each of the wells.

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

56 Q Drilling down the west half. In Section 13 of 17 South. 38 East, there is an 80 acre tract that is not developed in the east half of the section, isn't there? A Yes. Q The west half of the southeast quarter is not developed? A Yes. Q There would be a possibility of a well there, wouldn't there? A Yes. I want to clarify something I said a minute ago. I did not say that was all the wells that would be drilled. I said I thought the aerial pattern and the resultant depletion of the reservoir could be served by that. I did not specifically intend to imply that would serve at the royalty and working interests. that that was the number of wells that would be drilled. Q That is the reason I asked you the question if you thought that all the correlative rights of the royalty owners in the field would be protected with three wells. A I see what you mean. As to that, to answer that statement completely, to give the kind of answer I would have to give, I would have to perimeter that and determine the reservoir volume under each lease and then calculate the recovery from each well to give you an accurate statement on that. I don't think I am prepared to answer that as exactly perhaps as it would require. In particular, on the Wilhoit lease, the acre foot reservoir volume may be sufficient there to sustain and require additional walls, and that I am not sure at the moment. Q Concerning your Ho. 1 Wilholt which is located in the northwest, northwest of 18, 17 South, 39 East, can you give us some details about the manner is which the well was drilled into

the Devonian and the coring that was done, and also where you first contacted water in that well?

A We started coring in the well for just above the Devonian, I believe we cut ten feet of shale above the line, diamond cored the next ten feet above it, to slightly below 8820. I don't know what the bottom of the core was, five or six feet below 8820 on drill stem test 8820 we got water. We had substantially dry drillstem tests over a considerable interval above it, massive dolmite and no permeability as shown by the core analysis.

67

Q That is considerably deeper as you established, as the water-oil contact in the Davis No. 2?

A That is right.

Q The Wilhoit No. 1, did it have any abnormally low permeability or porosity in the cores?

A There were considerable sections of the core which had no measureable permeability, and the porosity of which ran as low as less than one percent. On drill stem test, those sections gave up, that is the rest of the story, we tested it at eight foot intervals all the way down. On drill stem it gave up very little fluid.

Q Was there any oil recovered below what you established as the oil-water contact at a minus 8590 and the point where you did recover water at minus 88 something, was there any oil recovered on any drill stem test?

A As far as I can recall the only recovery was said until we got salt water on the last test. We got ten feet of our load water and ten feet of mud on drill stom test. As far as I recall there was no free oil recovered below this depth.

Do you know whather or not the core

<b>~_</b>	
-	well below the oil-water contact reflected any large percentage of
~	water in place, or was it
	A (Interrupting) As my memory serves me, there was very
	little difference in the core data.
	Q Would you have any objection to submitting all the core
	data on all the wells you cored in the pool?
	A No, as I understand it, there is no objection whatsoever
	to submitting that to the Commission.
•	MR. MACEY: Does anyone else have any questions?
	MR. RHODES: I have one more.
	By MR. RHODES:
	Q Do you have the completion date of the Wilhoit at hand?
-	A September of 1954.
_	Q About what time of the month, the first of the month?
-	A I don't know that. It was sometime during the month.
	MR. MACEY: The 15th?
	MR. HINKLE: Was it the 15th?
	Q I was going through the scout records and I was unable to
	find any reference to the Wilhoit. I find some reference to the
	Cox. I was wondering
2	A (Interrupting) The Wilhoit and the Holloway were completed
	during the same month. The Cox and the Cone were completed later,
-	but they were not completed until in December I believe. They were
	drilling in, I believe they were started in September, but they
	were not completed at that time. I think the month is given in
	that table. I am not sure whether I gave the specific date of the
	first production in Exhibit 2 or not.
	MR. MACEN: For the information of Mr. Shodee and the
• •	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

record, the Wilhoit No. 1 was completed on September 8, 1954. At least that is when the allowable was assigned.

A I just had the month. I did not have the specific date.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have any questions? I have got one more question.

By MR. MACEY:

Q That answer to Mr. Hhodes' question about the optimum producing rate of certain wells, did I understand you to say that the rate that you determined was less than the presently assigned allowable?

A On some of the wells it was less. On one well in particular it was higher than the present assigned well.

Q Do you believe that by assigning the field as a whole, the allowable based on a 41 barrel unit allowable which is presently in effect, times the depth factor 277 barrels, do you feel that the field is being produced wastefully or produced at a proper rate?

A To answer that purely as a technical question, I believe it will be found in the immediate future that somewhat lower rate will be desireable from the standpoint of conservation and operating economy both.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else have any questions of the witness? If not the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

J. S. BWING

having previously been duly sworn, testified further as follows:

CROSS EXAMINATION

By MR. CAMPFELL:

O Mr. Swing, in your testimony you referred to the lease ownership in this area and sitter you or Mr. Franson on both.

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

indicated that 80 acre spacing would not affect the rights of the royalty owners and it could be accomplished because the leases in the area all contained at least 80 acres and that you thought the royalty ownership was uniform under these leases. You are seeking here, as I understand it, a 40 acre allowable. You have drilled 8 wells on a 40 acre pattern, what is to have prevented you from starting out on an 80 acre pattern, and what is to prevent you from continuing on an 80 acre pattern without an order from this Commission?

A The reason we started out on a 40 acre pattern is primarily because that is your statewide rule. On the No. 1 well on the Federal Davis, that was the reason for that location. Then you have different ownerships on different leases on each side which demanded an offset obligation. They proposed in that manner --

Q (Interrupting) What I am getting at is this. You haven't undertaken to unitize the field, aren't seeking to do it here, subject to your obligations under your lease contract, what is there to prevent you from just starting to attribute 80 acres and go ahead and drill on 80 acres?

A You are asking me something that I can't answer. I don't know why you couldn't or not, maybe the lawyers could tell you.

Q Maybe they can.

A I think we drilled them why we did because we had offset and the first was drilled to conform to the statewide obligation. The first well cost 470,000 bucks and when we wert on to commence with these others, they took a look at their hole card.

MR. CAMPEZLL: That is all.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-5691

	•	
1		61
	By MR. HINKLE:	01
-	Q You testified that the Federal Davis No. 1 was drilled	
,	first and the next wells were the Holloway and the Wilhoit which	
	are the offsets. A That is right.	
	Q They are offsets to the Federal Davis No. 1. Now the	
	Wilhoit is all one lease, is it not, that covers the west half of	
	Section 18? A Yes.	
	Q The Federal Davis covers the east half of the east half of	
	Q The Holloway covers the west half of the east half of	
	Section 13? A That is right.	
	Q That is another separate lease. It just happened those are	\$
	separate leases offsetting the original well?	
•	A That is right.	
2 1	Q Do you know whether or not your decision to drill those two	•
	wells would have been otherwise if it had been all one lease?	
	A They would not have drilled them that close, they would	
	have stepped them out.	
	Q You were trying to meet the offset obligations under those	
	particular leases at the time? A That is correct.	
-	Q Does that prevent you, in your opinion, in going ahead	
	with 80 acre spacing at this time?	
·	A No, you can split them in two.	
	Q Because you have met your offset obligations on these	
	leases? A That is right.	
	Q Except for two instances, there is only one well on each	
	lease, is that right?	
	A That is right. Two on the Federal Davis.	 
	ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691	

Q The exception would be the Foderal Davis, the two leases, and they are on an 80 acre pattern and the Gulf lease which is the southeast quarter of 12, two wells there, one which is still being drilled that can still be on an 80 acre pattern, yet they are meeting offset obligations which were required by the Federal Davis No. 1 and by the Holloway No. 1, is that right?

A That is right.

MR. HINKLE: That is all.

MR. MACEY: Anyone have any further questions of this witness? If not the witness may be excused. (Witness excused.)

MR. HINKLE: That is our entire case. I think Mr. Campbell wanted to submit a statement as to the royalty ownership which is agreeable to us provided he submits it within a reasonable time so there will be no delay in the decision in this case.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, I requested Mr. Hinkle to allow me to make available to him for examination and then to the Commission, simply a statement showing the interest of the people who have appeared here and where that interest is situated and the intent of it. I would also like to make, and I would go ahead if you have finished, I am not going to put on any testimony if the Commission please, I do want to make a statement of the position of the pople that represent here, and if it is agreeable with Mr. Hinkle and the Commission, I will make it now and he can go ahead and close the uncomm.

MR. MINKLE: Very well.

MR. CAMPEELL: As I stated at the outset to Mr. Branson, the people that I represent are not urging that this field be produced on a 40 acre wide open wells, or even with the top allowable if they feel that is not a proper way to produce the reservoir,

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3 6693

They do feel, however, that due to the early development in the field, that these wells situated on 40 acre locations straddled at least the top of the structure. That any stepping out now on an 80 acre pattern will create a condition of non-uniformity that will be not only bad for the reservoir but affect the rights of the respective royalty owners. They think secondly, that the admitted variations in permeability and porosity in this field and in most Devonian fields, make question of full recovery or best recovery on 80 acre spacing extremely questionable, and that it should not be undertaken unless it is started originally. It should not be undertaken until we are certain it will recover the greatest amount of oil in the reservoir.

The third thing I want to call to the Commission's attention is this. This application seeks a 40 acre unit allowable exactly the same that is being attributed to these 40 acre locations, these 40 acre wells now. They say that it, in their opinion, would be wasteful to drill wells every 40 acres in the point of view of economics, and coning might result in a waste problem. That 60 acre spacing will properly drain this reservoir. It is also apparent that most of these leases in this area are fairly large leases. As they go they are larger than the SC acres in most instances. All of that being true, I cannot see why they need a Commission order establishing 80 acre spacing in this field. There is nothing to prevent, short of failure to comply with the lease contract, and there was nothing to provene them at the outset from diagonally offsetting the original well, or from starting to drill on 80 acre spacing nov. If they are correct in their belief that this is a poor recervoir, probably they wouldn't be subject to any

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE, 3-6601

great danger insofar as the royalty owners are concerned. occurs to me that the purpose of some of these applications for 80 acre spacing is simply to make it possible for the operator to say to the royalty owner at a later date, we were justified in doing this because we had a hearing before the Commission and they issued an 80 acre spacing order. I think that is particularly true where they do not seek and the royalty owners do not demand that they get any more than the 40 acre unit allowable with a deep well factor even though they want to space the wells on an 80acre pattern of some sort.

For that reason, the people for whom I have entered an appearance, feel that the application should be denied and that this Commission should issue no order for SO acre spacing in this field.

MR. MACEY: Mr. Hinkle.

MR. HINKLE: I wonder if there are any further statements

before I make mine. MR. MALONE: May it please the Commission, Ross Malone

for Gulf. Gulf is the leasehold owner of a relatively small percentage of the area that is included in the apparent producing limits of the South Knowles-Devonian pool. It has, as has been stated, given to the applicants in Case 819, a letter indicating its general approval of their problem. Gulf would like to express the view that regardless of any question of the development to date, the establishment of uneconomic proration units would not be in the interest of the State, the operator, or the royalty owners. On the basis of the evidence presented in case by applicant, Gulf recommends the establishment of an 20 acre proration unit in the field and that a normal 40 acre unit allowable with appropriate

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES A DEARINEET & ASSOCIAT STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

64

Τt

depth factor be assigned to such units.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else? Mr. Christy.

MR. CHRISTY: R. S. Christy, Amerada Petroleum. Amerada owns an undeveloped lease within the prospective limits of the South Knowles-Devonian pool. We recommend to the Commission that this field be developed on an 80 acre unit basis for the following reasons. First, the testimony indicates one well would adequately and efficiently drain 80 acres. Therefore, more than one well to 80 acres would be unnecessary wells. Secondly, a point which I don't believe has been brought out, 80 acre units with the allowable here recommended, tends to keep the State's allowable near the market demand, which is considerably lower than the present State allowable. As we all know, these deep wells have a high allowable and every time you get a deep well with its allowable you increase the State allowable that much more by doubling that on 40 acre units, just makes the situation a little more acute and since one well will drain 80, I think that is all that is necessary and we recommend that the Commission adopt an 80 acre unit basis.

MR. MACEY: Anyone else? Mr. Hinkle.

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, I think that the evdence which has been introduced in this case overwhelmingly supports the application of Hamon and Warren for 80 acre spacing, and for allocation of 40 acre allowable in this case. I think it is clearly shown by the experience which we have had in the Knowles Field, to which this area is quite similar, that if there ever was a case for 80 acre spacing, that this is a proper one. I think it has been conclusively shown as Mr. Christy has pointed out, that one well will effectively and efficiently and economically drain

> ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

80 acres or more. If that is the case, there is no reason why the operators should be required to drill more than one well to 80 acres.

66

It has also been conclusively shown, and there has been no evidence introduced to the contrary, that the royalty owners will be protected. The correlative rights of all parties are protected by this form of development. As I say, I don't know of any reason why the Commission shouldn't approve the 80 acre spacing in this particular case, and I want to point out that there hasn't been one iota of evidence introduced to show that it would be unfair to the royalty owners.

MR. MACEY: Anyone have anything further in this case? For the purpose of the record, as I understand it, you, Mr. Campbell, are going to submit a statement?

MR. CAMPBELL: Just as to the ownership of the royalty owners.

MR. HINKLE: Just a tabulation.

MR. MACEY: Of mineral interests?

MR. CAMPBELL: Of the people who I represent.

MR. MACEY: The applicants are going to submit core data. We would appreciate electric logs.

MR. HINKLE: We will be glad to submit them.

MR. MACEY: If nothing further, we will take the case un-

## CERTIFICATE

I, ADA DEARNLEY, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have affixed my hand and notarial seal this 28th day of February, 1955.

Vda Searchey Notary Public, Court Reporter

My Commission Expires: June 19, 1955

3

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

## ۲ ۲ ۲ 1 •

\*

.

.

JAKE L. HAMON OIL PRODUCER FIRST MATIONAL BANK BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS ì

J. S. EWING General superintendent production department March 22, 1955

Mr. W. B. Macey, State Geologist Secretary and Director New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Macey:

Pursuant to your conversation this afternoon with Mr. Hinkle, I am attaching a plat showing approximately the water and oil contact as we see it now on the South Knowles Field.

The Luther Cooper No. 1 in the SE SW of 12 is now producing 66 bbls. of oil per day and approximately 30% water. The J. G. Cox No. 1 in the NE NW of 13 is producing around 95 bbls. oil per day with approximately 9% water. The Cone in the SW SW of 7 is now producing approximately 40 bbls. oil per day wide open with approximately 2% water and BS. The Federal Davis No. 2 we have been producing at the rate of about 100 bbls. a day on 13/64" choke with 400# on the tubing in an attempt to hold back the water encroachment. The Gulf R. K. Cone No. 2 topped the Devonian approximately 48 feet lower than our No. 1 Holloway and they are taking a drill stem test this morning from 12,224-61' and had a slight blow of gas after 2 hour test, which confirms our picture as to the structure dropping off to the North.

It is very apparent from the information we have that the field is going to be very small and be confined within the area of the red line. Thought this information that has become apparent in the last 30 days might be of help in evaluating the spacing program in this area.

S. Ewing

nn

JAKE L. HAMON OIL PRODUCER FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS J. S. EWING GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT PRODUCTION DEPARTMENT

February 21, 1955

Mr. W. B. Macey, State Geologist Secretary and Director New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Macey:

Enclosed are Schlumbergers and core analyses of wells in the South Knowles Devonian Pool as per your request. Core analysis and Schlumberger on the last well drilled, the Cooper "A" No. 1, are not completed, although we have tested and water appeared at Minus 8548, Schlumberger measurement.

As soon as core analysis and Schlumberger are available on the Cooper they will be forwarded to you.

A truly yours, Ver∛ S. Ewing Л.

mm

, <b>`</b>	
•	
	BEFORE THE
	Gil Conservation Commission
	SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO JULY 18, 1956
i	IN THE MATTER OF:
	}
	CASE NO819)
. •	
•	
	TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
	DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES
	COURT REPORTERS 605 SIMMS BUILDING
- -	TELEPHONE 3-6691 ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO
,	



TELEPHONE 3-6691

Jake Hamon and the Warren Petroleum Corporation. I would like to make a brief statement in connection with this matter before we proceed with the evidence.

As the Commission knows the original hearing in this Case 819 was held on July the 14th, 1955; the petition for rehearing was filed and the subsequent hearing was held on October the 20th, 1955. There was also some evidence having a bearing on this case which was introduced in connection with Case No. 965, which was the application of Mr. Williamson for an unorthodox location. I simply mention this because it is my understanding that the evidence introduced in connection with this Case 819 and in connection with the two previous hearings will constitute a part of the record in connection with this hearing, being simply a continuation of the case, and we will also probably refer to one or two of the exhibits that were introduced in connection with the Williamson hearing which was No. 965.

The evidence which we propose to introduce here this morning will be simply supplemental of that which has heretofore been introduced in connection with this case, and the Williamson case. In order to bring the Commission up to date on the statute of the development of the field and to show that there is no reason for the change in the spacing pattern, we have eight exhibits which we have marked from "A" to "H" inclusive. The previous exhibits in this case were numbered, so this will distinguish them from the previous exhibits. We also have two witnesses, Mr. Elliott and Mr. Branson, which we would like to have sworn.

(The witnesses were sworn.)

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDITYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

		4
	F. C. EFFIGLL	
	called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as	
	follows:	
	DIRECT EXAMINATION	
	BY MR. HINKLE:	
	Q State your name, please.	
	A A. C. Elliott, District Geologist, Hamon & Warren Petroleum	
	Corporation for West Texas and Southeast New Mexico.	
	Q Where do you live?	
	A Midland, Texas.	
	Q Have you previously testified before the Commission?	
	A Yes, sir.	
	Q In connection with what matter?	
•	A The hearing in behalf of J. C. Williamson.	
•	Q In October?	
	A October, yes, sir.	
	Q At that time you qualified as an expert geologist?	
	A Yes, sir.	
	MR. HINKLE: Are the qualifications of the witness acceptable her	e?
	MR. PORTER: They are.	
	Q Mr. Elliott, you are familiar with what has transpired in	
	connection with this case at the original hearing and the subseque	uit.
	hearing, and also in the Williamson case which you have referred t	1
	A Yes, sir.	
	Q During the original hearing of July the 14th in 1955 and	
	October the 20th of 155, there was introduced in evidence a contou	r
	map showing the structure as portrayed at that time from the	
	DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES Stenotype reporters Albuquerque. New Mexico Telephone 3-6691	

information of the wells that had been drilled on top of the Devonian Formation, is that not right? Q And there was also an additional exhibit introduced in A Yes, sir. connection with the Williamson case which showed the contour on top of the Devonian Formation, due to the change and condition -because of the well which had been drilled subsequent to the original hearing? Q How many wells have been drilled since these original exhibits were introduced, which were exhibits having borne exhibit A Yes, sir. A Since Mr. Williamson's hearing there has been one, two, numbers one and three, I believe? three, four, five, five additional wells. Q There was one well drilled subsequent to the original hearing in Case 819, is that not right? A That's right. Q What well was that? A Holloway No. 2. Q And where is that located? Q Would you give the location to the Commission, rather than A This well right here. referring to the exhibit at the present time?  $\lambda$  The Holloway No. 2 was drilled 1980 from the east line and 660 from the south line of Section 13. Seventeen South, Twenty-Q And when was that well completed? nine East. DEARNLEY MEIER AND ASSOCIATES ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO
A That well was completed, let's see, the Holloway No. 2 in September of 155.

Q All right, now what is the next well that has been drilled since that time? Give the location and the name of the well.

A Subsequent to the drilling of this well, Mr. Williamson's well which was drilled 1980 from the east line and 660 from the north line of Section 24, and the next well was the Warren-Hamon C-1.

Q When was the second well completed?

A The second well --

Q Was that referred to as the Gulf Black No. 17

A The Gulf Black No. 1 was February 19, 1956, which was drilled 1980 from the west, 1980 from the south of Section 17, 17 South, 38 East.

Q What is the next well chronologically?

A The Hamon and C-1.

MR. PORTER: Is that Lawrence C-1?

A Lawrence C-1, yes, sir. Subsequent to the drilling of this well --

Q In what location is that? Give the location.

A The location of the Lawrence C-1 is 1980 from the west and 660 from the south of Section 24, 17 South, 38 East.

Q All right, what was the next one?

A The Lawrence A-1, located 660 south of the northwest corner of Section 19, 17 South, 39 East.

Q And when was it completed?

A Lawrence A-1 in February, 1956.

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

	Q What was the next well drilled?
	A The Wilhoit No. 2 located 660 from the west, 660 from the
	south of Section 18, 17 South, 39 East.
-	Q When was it completed?
	A May, 1956.
	Q Is that all of the wells which have been drilled?
	A Yes, sir.
	Q Subsequent to the original hearing?
	A Yes, sir.
	Q Now, since the completion of these wells/have you made an
	additional study of the South Knowles reservoir, Devonian reservoir
	A Yes, sir.
	Q And have you prepared a contour map showing the top of the
	Devonian Formation as from the information obtained from these
	additional wells?
• •	A This is an up to date interpretation
	Q Well, now just a minute, answer the question, answer the
	question have you prepared
	A (Interrupting) Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
	Q Refer to Exhibit A, and tell the Commission what that is
	and what it shows.
	A Exhibit A is a structural map contoured on Top Devonian
	Formation, based on Schlumberger core analysis.
	Q What else does it show?
	A It shows the position, the structural elevation of the top
	of the Devonian fifty foot contours that we have established in
	the original presentation, access running a little bit west of
	DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES stenotype reporters Albuquerque, New Mexico Telephone 3-6691

south, our subsequent drilling has only shown that there is a slight access from the information from the Lawrence A-1 and the Wilhoit No. 2, a slight lobe existing on the southeast flat of the structure.

Q Were any of these additional six wells which you have testified as having been drilled, completed as dry holes?

A The Wilhoit No. 2 was completed as a dry hole.

Q is it a high or low well?

A It is structurally a high well on top of the Devonian.

Q In your opinion is there any reason why it didn't produce although high?

A The development of the limestone and porosity in this well is, -- was cored and there was no porosity, and has no showing of commercial value to the extent that would justify completing it as an oil well.

Q Now, Mr. Elliott, refer to Hamon-Warren Exhibit "B" and tell the Commission what it is and what it shows.

A Exhibit "B" is a Schlumberger cross section showing the structure on the South Knowles of the Devonian Pool and is shown on our plat as a section extending along the red line, which is shown on the structural interpretation plat.

Q That's Exhibit "A"?

A Exhibit "A".

GOVERNOR SIMMS: Do you want us to make one of these or are you going to introduce those?

MR. HINKLE: Those are going to be introduced.

Q Mr. Elliott, what does the blue line on Exhibit "B" represent?

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A We have drawn the blue line, -- the black line is marked on the top of the Schlumberger, top of the Devonian Formation and the A-1, the Williamson-Hardin No. 1, the Holloway No. 2, the Hamon and Warren Davis No. 2, and the Lawrence A-1. The blue line represents the structural top of the Devonian based on Schlumberger correlations.

Q Do you know whether or not, in connection with previous testimony in this case, a similar cross section was introduced that covers the north portion of the field?

A We introduced a similar cross section extending across the north end of the field, across this line of wells, at the J. C. Williamson hearing in October.

Q And there would be no change in that condition because of the drilling of these wells to the south, is that right?

A We see no evidence for any change.

Q So there is no reason for offering another cross section, as far as the north portion of the field is concerned?

A Right.

Q Now, I believe you stated that you were familiar with the previous contour maps which had been introduced in connection with this case and the Williamson case. Explain to the Commission the difference between those and the one which you have referred to as Exhibit "A".

A On the access of these wells on the southeast flange, we had this bavis No. 2 well and the Holloway No. 2, which is absent in this data. We connected the high Devonian points here and showed the access in this direction.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q Does Exhibit "A" still show that all of the wells which have been drilled are producing from the same reservoir?

A Yes, sir.

Q Your revision of the contour on top of the Devonian, has that changed in any way, the spacing or the reason for the spacing of the wells in the area?

A From the geological standpoint and additional information, we have no evidence that would require any change in the present spacing pattern.

MR. HINKLE: That is all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone else have a question of Mr. Elliott? Mr. Mankin.

QUESTIONS BY MR. MANKIN:

Q Warren Mankin of the Oil Commission. Mr. Elliott, I notice you have drawn a cross section on your Exhibit "B" and then on your Exhibit "A" have you attempted to draw any connecting section on the Wilhoit No. 2, through the Wilhoit No. 2 as to try to interpret what happened there? The Wilhoit No. 2 has recently been completed as a dry hole?

A This cross section here was prepared at the time we completed this well here. This well was just recently completed and we have not prepared any section, the only reasons that we have, from a geological standpoint, was the fact that we have the development of porosity which was sufficiently high in  $\Lambda$ -1 to make a marginal well, whereas in the Wilhoit No. 2 we had a development of lime for a hundred and thirty feet, and at the time we reached the porosity, we had three drill stem tests and the third test showed water.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

Q You indicated that the Lawrence A-1 was a marginal well, it is not a top allowable well? A That, I think, would be covered in the testimony of the reservoir engineer, by Mr. Branson. Q Will this Wilhoit Nc. 2, not having any porosity development, which was anticipated, will be used for a salt water well in the upper horizon. Was this structure map which you have drawn here, drawn after the Wilhoit No. 2 was completed? A Yes, sir. Q And it is still the same interpretation? A We have taken the top of the Devonian into consideration. Q There was no development of porosity in there? A No, it was cored and examined very thoroughly. Q The field has not yet been completely defined? The South Devonian Pool has not yet been completely defined, has it?  $\Lambda$  Well, we feel that with the edge wells, the  $\Lambda-1$  as showing water, the C-l showing water, we feel that it is defined as far as economics is concerned. Q You say it is showing water. During the test in March neither one, the Lawrence A or Lawrence C, produced any water but it did in May, is that correct? A That will be covered by the reservoir engineer. Q I don't believe I understood you, you feel that it is practi cably developed, the field is practicably developed from the outer boundaries? A Yes, sir. MM. MANKIN: That is all. DEARNLEY MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. PURTER: Mr. Campbell.

MR. CAMPBELL: Jack Campbell, Roswell, New Mexico. I would like to show an appearance in this case for Ted Carter and other royalty owners for whom an original appearance was made at the time the original hearing was held in this case. QUESTIONS BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q At the time the hearing was held on Williamson on an unorthedox location, you also thought that this field was fully developed at that time, didn't you?

A Not to my knowledge.

Q Didn't you testify at that time that as far as economics were concerned you were satisfied that the field had been developed to the fullest extent?

A Not at that time.

Q Well, another question, is it possible that your findings with regard to your Wilhoit No. 2 being a dry hole, could tend to confirm the interpretation of the structure as made by Mr. Williamson at the time of the hearing on his application?

A Not at all.

Q You are unwilling to say that it is a possibility that you may have a dry hole there by reason other than the lack of permeability in the Devonian?

A Lack of permeability and porosity.

Q No other possibilities as far as you are concerned?

A Not to my knowledge.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone have a question of Mr. Elliott?

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

```
Witness may be excused.
    MR. HINKLE: I would like to ask him one other question. Were
both of these exhibits "A" and "B" prepared by you and under your
direction?
    A Yes, sir.
   MR. HINKLE: I would like to offer Exhibits "A" and "B".
    MR. PORTER: Without objection, they will be accepted.
                                   (Witness excused.)
    MR. PORTER: Next witness, please.
                  U. S. BRANSON, JR.
called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as
follows:
                    DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HINKLE:
    Q State your name, please.
   A U. S. Branson, Jr.
    Q Where do you live, Mr. Branson?
   A Dallas, Texas.
   Q And what is your profession?
    A Consulting engineer, pretroleum engineer.
    Q Have you previously testified in connection with this Case
8197
    A Yes, sir.
    Q At both hearings?
    A Yes, sir. At three past hearings.
    Q And also in connection with the Williamson case?
    A Yes.
```

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 Q No. 965.

GOVERNOR SIMMS: His qualifications are accepted.

Q For the benefit of the Commission we have six different exhibits which I would like to have Mr. Branson refer to, and we have marked them from Exhibit "C" to "H" inclusive.

Now, Mr. Branson, please refer to Exhibit "C", Hamon and Warren Exhibit "C" and state to the Commission what that is and what it shows.

A Exhibit "C" is simply a summary of the production data from the entire field, giving both the number of wells producing during the particular month, the average daily oil production from all wells for each month, and cumulative production from the beginning of the field, from the completion of the first well. This production information was obtained from the individual operator and simply added up and presented for convenience in seeing what the field has produced and what time.

Q And what is, this is through May, 1956, is it not?

A Yes, sir.

Q What is the accumulative production?

A As of June the 1st, '56 the accumulative production was 801,526. There were fourteen wells in the field, the average daily production during the month of May was one thousand five hundred eighty-three barrels per day.

Q Now, refer to Hamon-Warren Exhibit "D" and state to the Commission what it is and what it shows.

A Exhibit "D" is a summary of the data on each of the wells that has been completed in the South Knowles Devonian Pool to the present

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

time. At an earlier hearing, I think, all but six of these wells were presented, those wells have been then included here simply to keep from having to refer to two different exhibits. It gives all fifteen wells that have been drilled in the field, the data at fifteen wells that have been drilled in the field, the data at which they were completed, that is, the month they were completed, the total depth to which they were drilled by Schlumberger measure, and the section that is open to production at the present time. U All right. Now, refer to exhibit, Hamon-Warren Exhibit "E" and state to the Commission what that is and what it shows. A Hamon and Warren Exhibit "E" is a summary of test data on all wells in the field except the Williamson well. Some of the

tests were made in imy of wells were made between, in the period May 19th through May 28th, except the No. 1 Cone which was retested following acidation. The 28th, except the No. 1 Cone which was retested following acidation. The tests on the hemon'& Warren wells: were run in the first ten days of July, tests on the hemon'& Warren wells: were run in the first ten days of July, the last one being completed on the 10th of July. Opposite each the last one being completed on the 10th of July. Opposite each well is given the twenty-four hour oil production, or the oil well is given the twenty-four hour oil production, or the oil At the completion of the well test program carried on in At the completion of the well test program carried on in

At the completion of the weight hours, in forty-eight hour May, we closed the wells in forty-eight hours, in forty-eight hour shut-in pressure on cach of the wells as shown here on each of the flowing wells. We didnot pull the tubing and run the pressure on flowing or Cone Wells. This exhibit in connection with past the Cooper or Cone Wells. This exhibit in connection with past exhibits, and with one of the subsequent ones, simply serves to illustrate the progressive increase in water cuts in most of the wells around the field. It also indicates or shows in particular that in the Lawrence C-1 there was some question about before, in

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

July it was producing, was capable of producing one hundred sixtyfive barrels of oil with twenty-three per cent water cut. The Lawrence A-1 in July was producing one hundred twenty-three barrels of oil with only eight per cent water cut. The only other new wells in that group is: the Gulf's Black No. 1, which was flowing at a rate of one hundred seventy-six barrels of oil with four per cent water cut.

Q This shows, does it not, that there are only three wells in the entire pool, field that are not making water, is that right?

A No, sir, Mr. Williamson's well was not, again I state on that, and in the Gulf Cone No. 1 the water is a bare trace, it was not sufficient to record any percentage. There are three wells of the thirteen that we tested that were dry, making less than two tenths per cent of water, and one that was making a bare trace. The remaining wells in the field are producing water in percentages varying from 4.93.

Q What is the average pressure for the field?

A The average pressure, neglecting one well in taking these average pressures, the Cox No. 1 Well has, for the past year ran something over around one hundred pounds below the average pressure in the rest of the wells in the field, it is also a low capacity well and we consider that evident that the buildup of the well was very slow and will drop it from the average of the wells. Excluding that well, the average pressure is four thousand seven hundred ninety-two pounds as of June the 1st, '56.

Q Is there any great differential between any of the wells, what is the average percentage of variation?

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

17 A Approximately one per cent of deviation of the average is the maximum, both below and above the average pressure. Were these pressure tests made under the same conditions, as  $\lambda$  Yes, sir, the wells were shut in simultaneously and two to all wells which were tested? days later a bomb was run in. The entire field was, with the exception of, or all of the Gulf and Hamon and Warren were shut A Forty-eight hours. The pressure reference was eight thouin and --Q What was the shut in? sand fifty feet, at approximately the middle of the producing Q Now, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "F" and explain to A Exhibit "F" is a plot of the pressure history of the field. zone. the Commission what that shows. On discovery or on completion of the Federal Davis No. 1 in July, 154 the well was shut in twenty-four hours, it built up considerable water in it, and the bomb shell and the pressure ceased rising before the end of twenty-four hours, pressure four thousand nine hundred two pounds. At intervals since then, to begin with, of approximately every month, over the past year at six months intervals, the field has been shut in and pressure measured. The solid black line on Exhibit "F" is simply a plot of the average pressures as measured in the Field, with the exception that since July of 155 the Cox No. 1 has been dropped from the average. Circles on the map are the pressures measured in what we refer as new wells. That is, they are the pressures measured after forty-eight hours DEARNLEY MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

shut in period on a well that has been under production for a period less than a month. Some of the new wells, in particular this one measured in October of '54 did not build up appreciably above the field average. Other wells drilled since then, as shown by the points across the top, were fairly high in pressure, even on the forty-eight hour shut in period until the ones completed in February and measured in March of this year, and now that reservoir pressure measured in the new wells has declined below that measured in the new wells initially, indicating that the production from the field is having an affect even in the areas where there is no production. The principal purpose of that exhibit is simply to indicate that there is pressure continuity across the field.

Q All right. Now, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "G" and explain to the Commission what that shows.

A Exhibit "G" is the pressure, present pressure that is shown on, is the same pressure as the ones included in the last column of Exhibit "E". Simply shown in the map for areal reasons.

Q To the different wells?

A Yes, sir, comparing them with the exhibit that was introduced last July, as figure 4, you find that all of the wells in the field have fallen somewhat, varying from approximately thirty pounds to as much as seventy pounds. This simply serves further to illustrate the same thing as the tabulated pressures that the present continuity across the field is quite low, within approximately one per cent deviation from the average.

Q Now, refer to Hamon and Warren Exhibit "H" and explain to

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

the Commission what that shows.

A Exhibit "H" is an areal plot of the same thing as the test data shown in Exhibit "E", also, for reference or for comparison with the same chart which was presented in May of 1955. At that time we placed under each well on the map accumulative production to that time and the present per cent water cut. To bring that status up to date we have here the status of May and July actually, 1956, showing the accumulated production from each well as afforded incidently from the test data, and the water cut at which each well is producing. Now it serves to show, perhaps, better than the tabulations of test data, that around the flanks of the field all of the wells are producing water. In particular, when compared with Exhibit "D" which gives the completion depths, it indicates that the new wells as a result, Hamon and Warren Lawrence 1 and Lawrence Black 1, both show water almost immediately after completion, after production of very small amounts of oil indicating that the water is actually moving into an area which had no production within nineteen hundred feet from it, as a result of the production from the remainder of the field. This simply confirms our original belief that the field would reduce under a water drive and that the field would be capable of drilling wells in excess of thirteen hundred foot rates.

Q Were all of these exhibits "C" to "H" inclusive prepared by you and under your direction?

A They were.

MR. HINKLE: We would like to offer in evidence, Exhibits "C" through "H".

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. PORTER: Any objections to the admission of these exhibits? They will be admitted.

Q Mr. Branson, in that previous hearing I believe you testified as to the probable ultimate recovery of the field if developed on a forty acre spacing pattern as against an eighty acre spacing pattern. Have you any reason to change your opinion, of your previous testimony in connection with this?

A No, sir, I have no reason to believe that production on a forty acre spacing pattern, ultimate production, will exceed that on eighty. Actually, the apparent move, possible edge water movement along the sides indicates that closer spacing would, if anything, reduce the ultimate recovery from the reservoir.

Q The exhibits which you have referred to and testified to in regard to the wells, do they show that all of the wells which have been drilled are producing from the same reservoir?

A Yes, sir.

Q They tend to show that?

A They show that there is considerable pressure continuity, within actually practicably speaking the limits of the access of the bomb, the pressure measurements there are approximately the same pressure. It also shows, or the appearance of water early in relative high wells drilled after considerable production, indicates that the reservoir is being drained by existing wells.

Q Now, Mr. Branson, I believe also in your previous testimony in this case, you testified that a high producing rate, because of reservoir character in particular, might be injurious to the entire field?

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

A High producing rate in this particular reservoir would have two harmful effects. First, it will result in coning as proven early in the life of the field by the appearance of water in the Hamon and Warren Holloway No. 1 well which yield climbed to approximately twenty per cent water cut in a period of four months after completion. The well producing rate was cut back, the water cut drop last July was about one and a half per cent after three months of reduced production. Continuing that reduced production, the water has in the past six months began to rise slowly, being now approximately nine per cent, as compared to a higher earlier value. We feel that excessive production, or that any increase in the production rate will increase the tendency to cone water into the bottom of the wells, resulting in the operator having produced abnormally large volumes of the water too early in the life of the field, and the result an earlier abandonment than will be if they produce at a reasonable rate. In addition to that the high rate of the withdrawal from the field as a whole will promote the encouraging of the edge water, in general the horizontal permeability runs a little higher than vertical, and the water will run a little better, side water, horizontal and vertically. What we are attempting to do here is bring the water up, slowly up from the bottom, keeping the water level as level as possible so that all of the reservoir will be swept out rather than bring water in from the sike to meet with the coning under a rapidly producing well, possibly resulting in additional loss of oil through trapping off.

Q It is your opinion then that the field should be continued to be produced on lower than the regular allowable rate?

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO ?ZLEPHONE 3-6691

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, I believe you also previously testified in connection with this case as to the economic aspect, as far as the operators are concerned, of the field being developed on a forty as against an eighty acre basis. Do you have any reason to change your opinion with respect to that?

A Well, the picture at present is even gloomier than it was in the beginning. Complete development on a forty acre spacing now instead of having all the wells marginal, there would be a large share in commercial losses, and only a relative small percentage of the wells actually drilled or to be drilled that would make commercia! producers, and they would be commercially in the, close to marginal class at best.

Q Approximately how many wells would it require, additional wells would be required if the field were developed on the forty acre basis at this time?

A Assuming that all operators would drill any place they could make any oil on forty, it would require approximately ten additional wells. That does not mean to imply that the operator would necessarily drill those wells. There are a number of them that would, the leases would probably be recessed in preference to drilling.

Q Has there been any change in the cost of drilling wells?

A Since getting into it more thoroughly we found that we have been able to reduce the cost somewhat below that experienced in the first six or eight wells, in the current cost so I understand, this is not of my knowledge. I haven't totaled the figures, it

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

runs approximately two hundred fifty thousand dollars per well, on the average.

Q Then if ten wells were drilled it would amount to an investment of some two and a half million dollars?

A Yes, sir, for the recovery, practicably speaking.

Q In your opinion would that result in the recovery of any more oil than would be produced under the present pattern spacing?

A It would develop in the recovery of no appreciable amount of additional oil. There might be a few additional buyers.

Q If the operators were forced to drill these wells on the forty acre spacing basis, how would they come out?

A They would be two hundred fifty million dollars further in the hole.

MR. HINKIE: I believe that is all.

MR. PORTER: Does anyone have a question of Mr. Branson? Mr. Campbell.

QUESTIONS BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Mr. Branson, you represent just Mr. Hamon, or Warren, also?

A Hamon and Warren.

Q You make the recommendations for the drilling of additional wells by those concerns?

A You mean do I stake the locations?

Q No, do you recommend --

A Not the specific locations, no. I recommend the areal spacing. I recommend the areal spacing in the reservoir but not for the specific location.

Q Would you recommend to either of, or both of them, that any

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENGTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691 additional wells be drilled?

A You mean drill additional wells on their tract at this time?

Q Yes, sir.

A Judging from this structural map I don't see any very promising locations, no, sir.

Q Would you recommend to them that rather than drill any additional wells on the basis of your structure map, that they surrender the leases?

 $\lambda$  You are referring to edge leases or to the entire area?

Q Any leases. Rather than drill any forty acre locations.

A There are some possible forty acre locations in the center of the field that it might be desirable to drill rather than release.

Q You would not recommend that as to any of the outer boundaries?

A No, sir, I would not recommend drilling a twelve thousand foot well, offsetting wells already producing water.

Q I assume that the J. C. Williamson well is not producing water, would you recommend the drilling of any additional wells to the south of that?

A I haven't made a direct study of this with regard to the staking of any particular location. However, just a quick glance, the structure is dipping in this direction from it, probably dipping also in this direction, your best location here would be with respect to encounter the top of the Devonian at about eight thousand five hundred feet below sea level, with his low completed as high as eight thousand five hundred one producing in excess of

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

twelve per cent water. That would not be commercial at all. 4 Mr. Branson, at the time the Holloway No. 2 was drilled you anticipated that to be the only well?

A That's correct.

4 So the structure is changed with the drilling of additional wells?

A In this particular case the Federal Well No. 2 offsetting had been a low well. At that time we only had one well in the structure at the south end of the field. At the present time there are seven. At that time, originally it was their opinion that the structure was north, south and drilling the low well on the Federal Davis No. 2 about halfway condemned the southern area. However, there was considerable acreage down here, and a possibility that the access might be tilted at a somewhat different angle, and besides I think there was an official demand that the well be drilled.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

MR. PORTER: You are through questioning? Mr. Mankin. QUESTIONS BY MR. MANKIN:

Q Warren Mankin of the Oil Conservation Commission. Mr. Branson, relating to your Exhibit "H" which shows the water cut of the wells, let's consider for a moment the Lawrence "A" Well in Section 19. I believe it shows that it now has eight per cent water cut?

A Yes.

Q Do you have knowledge that in March that Hamon and Warren took a survey and that showed zero water production, March of this

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

26

year?

A Just a second, sir. I do not have that March potential of gas in the well, no.

Q It was submitted?

A The first test that I have was on the 19th of May.

Q And in May it was approximately three and a half per cent water?

A Yes.

MR. PORTER: Just a minute, for classification, Mr. Mankin, are you referring to a test for C-1, 16?

MR. MANKIN: Yes, represented to the Commission.

Q In May approximately the same percentage for this same well, the Lawrence C-1?

A That is my recollection, yes.

Q At the present time, the lst of July?

A Eight per cent, yes.

Q Referring now to the Lawrence C #1, you apparently have no knowledge that in March that was zero water production on the test?

A No, sir, the only thing I actually know is a verbal report that they were completed dry, I don't have any record.

Q In May, a little over sixteen per cent on the same well,

sixteen per cent water?

A That's correct.

Q And at the present time twenty-three per cent?

A Yes, sir.

Q On the basis of that increase in water, and on the basis of a statement that you made awhile ago about producing rate, do you

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

feel a hundred fifty barrels -- Before I ask that question, those two wells are top allowable at the present time, are they not?

A I believe so, I do not know what the allowable is.

Q One hundred fifty barrels a day.

A I think so.

Q You think that is too great a rate for these wells on the edge to be producing?

A In this particular case, the wells were completed fairly low on the structure, with the water level having already moved up as a result of the production of eight hundred thousand barrels of oil, I feel that they would be making water even if the rate were cut back, or that the water would appear in the future in any event. And I don't actually consider that further reduction in their rate would have much prospect of improving them very much. We found that it did not in the cone for the Cooper 1 and Cox 1 which were completed low, also.

Q Then you do not have a recommendation to reduce top allowables from one hundred fifty barrels a day?

A No, sir, not at this time.

Q I thought I heard you make such a recommendation or statement previously, but apparently that was an error.

A No, I think the only figure I ever used was one hundred fifty, actually of course, I qualify, the reservoir should be produced differentially in theory. But it is necessary to have a reasonable pay out at that time on the well, and be able to pay the cost of production, and that interferes with the theoretical production make. If you call these wells much below one hundred fifty

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

barrels the pay out on them gets extensively long, and for that reason as well as the fact that I don't feel they are actually injuring the reservoir at this time, I don't think there is any particular reason for reducing the allowable.

Q All right, Mr. Branson, referring now to the Wilhoit No. 1, I noticed on your Exhibit "H", that shows that is twelve per cent water cut?

A Yes, sir.

Q However, on a test submitted by Hamon and Warren in May, showed a production of ninety-five barrels of oil and forty-three barrels of water, which would be approximately thirty-one per cent?

A That is correct, at the time of the May test the well was flowing and apparently loading up on water, in the tube, and when we ran the test we got a load of water. Since that time pumping equipment has been installed and the well is pumping, keeping the water pumped out of the tubing and the actual water cut we have found since then is twelve per cent.

Q It is pumping higher, therefore it is not producing much water?

A It pumps at a higher produce rate, which tends to keep the tubing in the lower part of the casing from loading up with water. Of getting a slug of water in any one test.

Q But the actual oil production rate has increased as a result of the pump being installed?

A Yes, it would flow only ninety-five barrels previously, at present from seven thousand feet it's producing one hundred sixtysix barrels of oil at twelve per cent water cut.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

29 Q So it is now a top allowable well with pumping equipment? Yes. A Q Referring to Exhibit "A" which Mr. Elliott had prepared, and referring to your prior testimony as to the water table, has the water table changed? A It is our feeling, or actually the result of completing the new wells, the Lawrence A-1. I will have to go back to Exhibit "D" I believe it is, that gives the completion dates of those wells. The Lawrence A-1 well was completed from 445 to 502, and shortly after completion showing some water in the flanks on the field. Gulf Black was completed higher than that, at 413 to 468, and shortly after production, after completion started showing some water. We feel that the water level has moved up considerably. At the time of the initial completion, the water production in the Cone 1 and the Cooper 1 was comparatively slight. Since that time, although their compression interval has not particularly changed, the Cone is not a fair case because that well was acidized The Cooper has not been changed in any way and the water cut is from, oh, about fifty per cent last May to eighty-seven per cent, I believe, on our last test; indicating an actual movement of the water in the reservoir. Q Could you recall what the original oil-water contact was? A At the completion of the Cooper we found water at the completed drill stem at the time at 8530. Q Sub sea minus 8530? A Yes. Q What do you feel it is now? DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

	A Probably the actual high water-oil contact is something in
·, ·	the neighborhood of 8512. Now there will be, of course, local
	variation there.
	Q So there has been a movement of about eighteen feet?
	A Something like that, yes.
	Q Referring to your Exhibit "C" on the oil production in
	April, 1956 and May, 1956; what was the reason for the decrease in
	oil production in May of 1956 from April?
	A In May of 1956 from April?
	Q Yes, sir, showed 1583 daily average in May, and 1727 in
	April, was that because what was the reason for that decrease?
	A Well, part of it, I expect, was the fact that we shut in the
	entire field for two days in order to make a pressure survey.
	4 Had nothing to do with producing ability of the wells?
•	A No, the producing ability of the wells in May was substan-
	tially the same as it was in April, all the wells were shut in a
	minimum of two days and others were shut in longer than that.
	Q Your exhibits do not indicate any reflection of data from
	the Williamson well, you have no data from the Williamson well?
	A I have no data from the Williamson well with the exception
	of its monthly production figures.
	Q Have no water production?
	A No, sir, nor test data, nor pressure.
	Q Mr. Campbell asked you a question with regard to the develop
	ment of the south of Mr. Williamson's well, and you indicated that
	you didn't think that was a very favorable well. On the Wilheit
	lease of liamon, now with the drilling of the dry hole of the Wilhoi
······································	

STENDITE REPORTERS ALBIQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

No. 2 and still a commercial well in the Wilhoit No. 1, do you feel there will be some development between those two wells?

A The Wilhoit No. 1 well has increased in water cut over the past year, let's see, I have those figures here, a year ago the Wilhoit No. 1 well was producing at one and a half per cent water cut, at the present time it is producing at twelve per cent water cut. Most of this increase in water cut came about actually just before we had to put in the pump. I feel that the water cut in the Wilhoit No. 1 will increase quite rapidly. We are finding the informal effect of the upper part of the Wilhoit No. 2 leaves the picture about like this. If you drill a well there you will get one, or judging from the performance of Wilhoit No. 1 which is commercial since, that is it is producing at the present time a full allowable, but somewhat questionable in the sense that in ultimate production it is producing some water which is really half enough to really pay the well out. It is already showing a twelve per cent water cut. We would expect, possibly, to get a well equivalent to that, possibly get a well on the same line development on the top of the Devonian and get another dry hole, so it would be at best a very marginal venture, risky venture.

Q It would be another well on that Section 18, and would be a little higher structurally than the Wilhoit No. 1, would it not?

A Judging from the structure I found in Wilhoit No. 2, yes.

y it would not make a commercial well?

A That would not mean you found enough porosity in the Devonian to make a commercial well. We found the top of the Devonian quite level in the Wilhoit No. 2, but the first producing

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

section was back in the water, so you will be fighting actually two things there, encroachment of the water that already exists as shown by the performance of Wilhoit No. 1 and the tightening up of the top of the lime as you go south there, indicated by the Wilhoit No. 2.

Q The original hearing on South Knowles, I believe, was in July of '55, at least the Order 638B was entered, at which certain eighty acre patterns were specified at that time based upon structure and other means. Would you at this time recommend any change to the eighty acre patterns that were developed and introduced at that time?

A Considering that the development is practically complete and the acreage assigned, I don't see any particular change to be made, no.

Q Of course, you are assuming that there will be no more wells drilled on that basis?

A That's correct.

Q If there was another well drilled would you be in favor of a change in pattern such as the Williamson well was granted, and was also considered at that original hearing in July of last year?

A At that time we showed, I believe, the Williamson drill on an east-west angle due to the lease ownership. From the apparent shape of the structure the south well might be better off on an east eighty, also. However, if I don't consider them a commercial venture any way, I won't recommend drilling them or changing the pattern, to requesting a change in pattern to make them more attractive.

> DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

33 Q To bring us up to date for the eighty acre units that have been assigned since the original hearing of July, 1955; do you have knowledge of what units had been assigned for the new wells that had been completed since that hearing? A No, sir, I do not. I have no personal knowledge of that at all. Q So far as you know, other than the Williamson well, they possibly were a standard east half or west half of the forty section? A That's correct, that is my understanding. MR. PORTER: Anyone else have a question? MR. HINKLE: I have one more question. MR. PORTER: Mr. Hinkle. QUESTIONS BY MR. HINKLE: 9 Mr. Branson, Mr. Mankin referred to in his cross examination, to Lawrence A-1 and the Lawrence 1-C, you know when those wells were completed? A February of 1956. Q And the test you referred to where they were making water was in May? A That is correct. Q In other words, they were not making any water, but by May 1956 --A That is my understanding, there was no measurable water shown on the original completion. Q But they started making water very fast? A That's right. DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS TELEPHONE 3-6691

MR. HINKLE: That's all.

MR. PORTER: If there are no further questions the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.) MR. HINKLE: That's all we have. I am ready for a statement. MR. PORTER: Are there any other witnesses in this case? Mr. Hänkle.

MR. HINKLE: If the Commission please, we believe that the evidence which has been submitted here clearly shows that there is no reason for a change in the spacing pattern for the development of these wells at this time, and that it would be clearly an economic loss if it should be changed and go back to forty acre pattern. It would be untenable as far as the operators are concerned.

There has been no evidence submitted here to show that anybody really is objecting to the continuation of the field on an eighty acre basis and at the allowable.

We recommend to the Commission that the order which has heretofore been entered in Case 819 be continued at least for a year. If the Commission wanted to make it permanent it would suit us, but if they just want to make it for a year it would be all right. And I think that has clearly been demonstrated in the end that it has been for the best interest of all concerned, and in the interest of conservation for the prevention of waste to develop and produce this field on an eighty acre basis.

MR. PORTER: Mr. Campbell:

MR. CAMPBELL: On behalf of the people for whom I have entered

DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENDTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

an appearance, we have no objection to the continuation of this spacing pattern for an additional year. We don't feel that the field has been fully developed, I think that the number of changes that have been made since the matter first came to the attention of the Commission, as evidenced, it is difficult to tell when the field is fully developed until there is more than one dry hole. We have no objection to the continuation of the spacing pattern for another year. We are not requesting at this time that there be any increase in allowable. However, we do not want to commit ourselves to top allowable of a hundred and fifty barrels for a full year. We want to reserve the right, upon proper application, to the Commission, to request an increased allowable. one hundred fifty barrels was established at the time when there was only one or possibly two operators in the field who were in accordance as to what the maximum or top allowable should be. And if they have marginal wells in the field, of course that is unfortunate if others have wells that can produce the regular allowable without damage to the reservoir or to the wells. We see no reason why they sould not be permitted to do it, upon proper application and upon evidence that there would be no waste committed by virtue of a higher or normal allowable for that depth. But so far as the present extension is concerned we do not oppose it for one year, resorving the right if we see fit to request an increased allowable at a future date. MR. WALKER: Don Walker of Gulf Oil. We operate three wells in MR. PORTER: Mr. Walker. this yool and we are in accord with Hamon and Warren for a DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENGTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6591

36 continuation of the present spacing. MR. PORTER: If there is nothing further we will take the case under advisement. The hearing will be recessed until one-fifteen. (Recess.) CEHTIFICATE STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) COUNTY OF BERNALILLO ) 88 I, AMADO TRUJILLO, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability. Gour Subscribed and sworn to before me. Witness my Hand and Seal this, the \_\_\_\_\_day of August, 1956. Notary Public My Commission expires: DEARNLEY-MEIER AND ASSOCIATES STENOTYPE REPORTERS ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO TELEPHONE 3-6691

• . ٨ • • 6